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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANCIN- )

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Zhihua
Ms. Jin Keli

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Weilun®

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Weilun®

Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin®

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin (Chairman)®

Mr. Zhang Weilun (Chairman)®

Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Siu Kai Chun, FCA, FCCA, FCPA(HK)®
Mr. Kwong Lun Kei, Victor®

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Siu Kai Chun®

Mr. Kwong Lun Kei, Victor®

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Notes:

(1) Mr. Zhang Weilun's office as independent non-executive director of the
Company has been vacated with effect from 11 November 2021.

(2)  Mr. Huang Anxin has been appointed as a member of the audit

committee on 11 November 2021.

(3)  Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin has been appointed as chairman of the

remuneration committee on 11 November 2021.

(4)  Mr. Siu Kai Chun has tendered his resignation as company secretary
and authorised representative of the Company with effect from 1

January 2022.

(5)  Mr. Kwong Lun Kei, Victor has been appointed as company secretary
and authorised representative of the Company on 1 January 2022.
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

Suite 613B, 6th Floor,
Ocean Centre, Harbour City,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE

PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
1601 Block 1
Pacific Dingwang Commercial Center,
2 Baichen Lu, Chihua She Qu,
Chencun Town, Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.gdzawy.com

HKEX STOCK CODE
1538

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@zahomegroup.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place,

979 King's Road,

Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Communication Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

Liu Jian
Chairman and chief executivelofficer

gz
E R FRA TR

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, EWRER

For and on behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the AHXAFEREXRFTBIAREBARAR([EAQT] &
"Directors”, each a "Director”) of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited RHEWNBAR [AEBDEZ(EE] SHEBE
(the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), lam ZE|) @ ([EEg|)RARE AR aEZ 2021 F 12
pleased to present the annual report of the Company for the year 831 HIEFERF R o

ended 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

In summary, the key financial performance of the Group over the
last year ended 31 December 2021 included (i) the growth in
property management business revenue from approximately
RMB1,252.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB1,332.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, representing an increase of approximately RMB79.8 million,
or 6.4%,; (ii) decrease in revenue generated from sales assistance
services of approximately RMB5.4 million; (iii) increase in revenue
generated from cleaning and greening business of approximately
RMB71.5 million; (iv) decrease in revenue generated from real
estate agency business of approximately RMB72.4 million; and (v)
increase in revenue generated from other businesses of
approximately RMB47.7 million. Overall, the Group’s 2021 profit
attributable to owners of the parent amounted to RMB106.3 million
(2020: RMB131.5 million), representing a decrease of 19.2% as
compared to 2020. The decrease in the Group’s 2021 profit
attributable to owners of the parent was mainly due to the decrease
in revenue from real estate agency business. In addition, the
prolonged Covid-19 epidemic and the impact of the real estate
market in PRC also affected the performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK2.50 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 3.00 cents) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 9 June
2022, making the total dividend payment of approximately HK$21.3
million.

OPERATION REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management
company in China. In 2021, the Group has the following recognition
and awards.

In January 2021, the Group received the £l % « 2020FEEFH
BeREUKEMNBREEMEBESEFHLE (Outstanding
Enterprise, 2020 Excellent Vice President Unit and Guangzhou
International Smart Property Expo Excellent Organisation Award*)
from EMMMEEEITEHE (Guangzhou City Property
Management Industry Association®).

*  For identification purpose only

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

Bt 75 1ol R

R EPTAt  REEEHE2021F12A831H 1E F—
FEMNIZUBERRBEBNDETEEBWEH
HE2020F12A31HIEFERNHARY1,252.3
AELBEEEHE2021F12A31BIEFENY
ARB13NIEETL BMTHARKIISHE
TLEk 6.4% (i) B RIS FT S W DA R 5.4
BB (i)ERRFCEBFMEREEMNOAR
71588 (VB ERBEBIBRER LD
HMARBET2488TT 0 k() b EBETEREE
MBARKAITEE L BEEME - A%EE2021
FHARHBEABRGFBEAAREI063EET
(2020%F : AR®1315B &) © 82020F &
19.2% ° N5 [E 2021 F & A 51 A A FEG R B R
VDI EREMEREEBBAR DT - N -
FEMARBHEULRTREEMETISNEFE
SEREERET2021F12 AN BILFENEE -

R E
EEERRESVHEHE2021F12A31MHIEEE
RS R HA RS B & A% 2.50 78 11l (2020 £ = 3.007811l)
T 20229 6 A9 AEHARTIREAHAARRE -
BRBSEO213BEBTT o

LELNRE
AEBRHREEEBIEERAF - 12021
F - REERE TR R -

R2021F 1A AEBRERMNTYEERITE
BERTEBEEE 2020FEEFRIGREMLK
ENBRESNEEESEFEME -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

In February 2021, the Group received the 2020 F[E =BT HREH
SRYIEE IR RIS EEIE (the 2020 Top 100 Property Management
Service Providers in China Award*) from BT EEE (S & (Government
Procurement Information™).

In March 2021, the Group received the [7C88%WETEE | (Anti-
epidemic pioneer property projects*) recognition for the two
buildings located in Hangzhou under the Group’s management
from #70)N T &R L (2 (2 55 OB 2 2%
District Residential Houses and City Municipal Construction
Bureau*). The Group was also praised by ER&# 1L = /K& FAE
HEMERE TIRENTH B (Guangdong Province Foshan City
Sanshui District Southwest Street Office Department of Land, Urban
Development and Taxation*) for the building located in Foshan.

= (Hangzhou City Xiaoshan

In April 2021, the Group received the 2021 FEIZE RIS B Z
(2021 China Top 100 Property Management Companies in China*)
from A BIFEEUAFERT (China Index Academy™).

In June 2021, the Group received the 2021 EEEY 3 B B3 (2021
Blue Chip Property Top 100 Company*) « EiraENTEREF
2 (EIE4E ) from &BEEIZTH (The Economic Observer®).

In August 2021, the Group was recognised as a IR EEE EE R
E{I (National Sports Industry Demonstration Unit*) by BIZREE B 42
/& (General Administration of Sport of China).

In October 2021, the Group received the ER AV X EIBITEERE
A0FF mIEIET % (Guangdong Province Property Management
Industry 40th Anniversary Brand Benchmarking Enterprise Award*)
at the 2021 Guangzhou International Smart Property Expo co-
organised) by BN EEITEWHE (Guangzhou City Property
), PEIBERMEERERIFER

B & (China Commercial Property Development and Construction

Management Industry Association*

Working Committee*), Guangdong Property Management Industry
Institute, Guangzhou Property Management Association and B M
BEERRE
Company Limited*).

55 R~ 7] (Guangzhou Xuyang International Exhibition
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In December 2021, the Group received the 2021 E R & ¥ ¥ RIS4R
BENLE 202 EBRRNEBRMERGRECEREREVEE
BITEWE&IEE B4 (2021 Guangdong Province Property
Services Comprehensive Strength Enterprise, 2021 Guangdong,
Hong Kong, Macau and the Greater Bay Area Property Services
Brand Enterprise and Guangdong Property Management Industry
Institute Best Member Award*) from the Guangdong Property
Management Industry Institute.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had maintained its presence in
46 cities in China where it was contracted to manage a total of 637
residential properties and non-residential premises such as
commercial or government buildings with an aggregate contracted
Gross Floor Area (“GFA") of 72.3 million square meters (“sq.m.”).
That remained the same compared to the aggregate contracted
GFA of 72.0 million sg.m. as of 31 December 2020. In relation to the
delivered GFA of 66.1 million sgq.m. in 2021, which was similar to the
delivered GFA of 65.6 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2020.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain its own
advantage as an independent property management company,
competing with counterparts in the market by its high quality
service and operation efficiency, actively establishing stable
partnership with leading property developers in all regions,
exploring potential new development projects and pursuing
properties which have established owners’ associations. When right
opportunities arise, the Group will accelerate its expansion of
business scope and coverage in China through acquisition of
property management companies and other value adding service
companies which provide services related to communities.

In addition, we will closely persist in the philosophy of stable
development by gradually expanding the upstream and
downstream industry chain, as well as strategically realigning our
industry foothold. On the one hand, we expect to penetrate into
the first-hand and second-hand agency services, while further
advancing the downstream sector of the industry chain by acquiring
firms specialized in living value adding services. In the next few
years, we will gradually ride on our strength to extend our reach
along the upstream and downstream of the industry chain with a
focus on property management. In doing so, the Group will
ultimately evolve into an integrated operator offering the whole-
industry community services.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

R2021F 128 AEBEREREMEEETED
SR T 2021 EREMERBEAENDE - 2021
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
every shareholder, especially Greentown Service, our new strategic
partner, and business partner for their constant support and trust of
the Group, and also to every employee for their hard work and
contribution to the Group over last year. In the coming year, the
Group will continue its active expansion of business and enhance
its property management service quality, so as to bring a better,
more enjoyable and more satisfying experience for home life to
residents. With the continuous efforts of the Group, | believe that
the Group will bring good returns to its shareholders in the long
term.

Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 April 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

& 437 Th
MERE
For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020 £F
RMB'000 RMB'000 Change
AR®T T ARET T g5

Revenue Wz 1,873,533 1,752,317 6.9%

Gross profit EH 432,739 441,641 -2.0%

Profit for the year F N A 132,039 150,780 -12.4%

Profit attributable to owners BREHEA ARG T

of the parent 106,282 131,509 -19.2%

Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 25.2% 2.1 pp

23.1% 2VEE DB

Net profit margin (%) AT R (%) 7.0% 8.6% -1.6 pp

-1.61E B 7 Bh

Basic earnings per share (RMB) FREAREF(ARETT) 0.124 0.157 -21%

Final dividend per share (HK$) S REAR B (BT 0.025 0.0300 -0.5%
FREREEERAT 9

2021 F 3



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B i &

Revenue Gross profit and gross profit margin
Wz EFNRERR
(RMB million) (RMB million/%)
(AR¥BAET) (AREBEBTL %)
2,000
1,752.3
N
266
- 1 B
237.9
1859
83.4
1229 !!!!!! 40.4
1200 £ 500
10230 441.6
m s
‘ 400
800
1,242.3 300 282.1
1,138.7
948.3
200
400
100
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
[ Property [l Cleaning and greening business
management services BB RIS
s
MBI [l Real estate agency
1 Sale Assistance business
services o E I 275
W SHRTE [l Other business

HAbR

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the company

RATEE AELFE(FE)
(RMB million)
(ANREEBHET)

140

131.5

120

108.6

100 96.1

80

60

2020 2021

HOME GROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHERE

Total assets Total equity
EERE R AR
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEETT) (NR®EET)
2,500 1,000
891.4
2,069.5
2,000 1,894.6 800
737.9
606.0
1,500 s 600
1,000 400
500 200
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
Total Contracted GFA Average price of property management service
RENEEEEEE MEEE R FIE9ER
(million sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m./month)
(BBFIK) (AR¥/FFK/A)
80 20
. 705 720 72.0 1.80 1.81 1.81
- N -
13.6
60 15
50
40 10
65.4 65.6
30 56.9
20 05
10
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
M Undelivered GFA [ Delivered GFA
AR REEE ER R
Note: Mz

1. ltis calculated as a weighted average of all the prices and fees specifiedon 1. IR EBEBEEERDELWHN A DTRANAEEBR

the contracts that are generating revenue as of the end of each relevant REBEANMNEFTSENE  BETEREEEENER
year, excludes management fees for parking lots.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE E L AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management
company in China. In 2021, the Group received the following
recognition and awards.

In January 2021, the Group received the £ % « 2020F EEF
BeREMMENBEREZVEEESEFHEME Outstanding
Enterprise, 2020 Excellent Vice President Unit and Guangzhou
International Smart Property Expo Excellent Organisation Award*)
from BMMHWEERITEHE (Guangzhou City Property
Management Industry Association®).

In February 2021, the Group received the 2020 /E £ BEIBUNHE B
R FEEIRARTEPG IR (the 2020 Top 100 Property Management
Service Providers in China Award*) from BT EREE(Z B (Government
Procurement Information®).

In March 2021, the Group received the [5C#¥%IEE ] (Anti-
epidemic pioneer property projects*) recognition for the two
buildings located in Hangzhou under the Group's management
from FUNTRILEEFSFMBERKS (Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District Residential Houses and City Municipal Construction
Bureau*). The Group was also praised by ER&# LT =7KE&FAR
HENEEE T WEMBHB (Guangdong Province Foshan City
Sanshui District Southwest Street Office Department of Land, Urban
Development and Taxation*) for the building located in Foshan.

In April 2021, the Group received the 2021 /B3 AR 7% & %
(2021 China Top 100 Property Management Companies in China*)
from A BIFEEURAFEET (China Index Academy™).

In June 2021, the Group received the 2021 &Y B3R % (2021
Blue Chip Property Top 100 Company*) * tHiraE NTEERES
1 ( BETEEE ) from LBEEIZIR (The Economic Observer*).

In August 2021, the Group was recognised as a MRS A EE
B (National Sports Industry Demonstration Unit*) by BIZR 885 42
/& (General Administration of Sport of China).

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In October 2021, the Group received the BREWEERITELRE
A0AF FHFRIZFF 2% (Guangdong Province Property Management
Industry 40th Anniversary Brand Benchmarking Enterprise Award?*)
at the 2021 Guangzhou International Smart Property Expo co-
organised) by BMM¥REIEITERE (Guangzhou City Property
Management Industry Association*), HEIFE Y EEHRER TIEL
B& (China Commercial Property Development and Construction
Working Committee*), Guangdong Property Management Industry
Institute, Guangzhou Property Management Association and /!
JEIS IR R BB R A Al (Guangzhou Xuyang International Exhibition
Company Limited*).

Reference is made to the announcement dated 25 November 2021,
the Group entered into an agreement to acquire 49% equity
interests in Guandong Huarui Environmental Engineering Company
Limited ("Guandong Huarui”). Up to the date of this report, the
acquisition has not been completed. Upon completion of the
acquisition, it is expected that Guandong Huarui will be able to
enhance the Group's profitability. In addition, the Group will be
able to continue to provide value adding cleaning services to the
property projects and bring synergy effects to the existing property
management services of the Group.

In December 2021, the Group received the 2021 & R & M RIG4ER
BENLE 2021 EBRKNEEMERGMECEREREVEE
BITEWME&ES B (2021 Guangdong Province Property
Services Comprehensive Strength Enterprise, 2021 Guangdong,
Hong Kong, Macau and the Greater Bay Area Property Services
Brand Enterprise and Guangdong Property Management Industry
Institute Best Member Award*) from the Guangdong Property
Management Industry Institute.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total contracted gross
floor area ("GFA") of approximately 72.3 million square meters
("sg.m."”) where it was contracted to manage 637 properties across
46 cities in China.

The Group’s main business line is property management business.
Under the property management business line, the Group is
engaged in the provision of property management services,
provision of sales assistance services, provision of cleaning and
greening services, provision of real estate agency services and
other services.

B E S WA

R2021 510 A AEEREMNHYEERITER
T THEEBEVEERRERIFLZES  ERE
MEEBRTEHE BEMNTYEERTEHSR
M B 15 B R A BR 2 B L R 28 9 9 2021 & M
BRESVEBESRRERAMEEETESR
fR 40 AF mAEIFAT (B E -

ZIRMBE A2021F 11 A25BEH AL - AEE
ROt WNEBERERREIRBRA
AI((ERER | MNIO%KE BEEAREEEH
URBE AR ek o BB TRk 2 « TEE B R =N A5 48
IRFANEBRAFIGE S o LI - NEBBEEN
BELMEBEIRHEESZTERY  WAAEE
IR B ) 5 B 1R IR AS A5 SR 155 B U FE o

R2021F 128 AEEREREMEEEITER
R T2 EREMERBGZEENDE + 2021
BERKERMERTREBOCEREREMES

BITEpEREGER -

R2021F12A31H  AEBEMBEYELEME
([BEMB) AN 2IEEFTHFKRKTERK])
B4 E R 46 B T ) 637 TBY Z -

AEENTEXBRAMETEER - REME
EEEGE  AREESREHEMEEERS - &
R HIRTS - BB R R - IREEHENRE
AR A B EL A AR5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S w0

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Group primarily provides property developers and property
owners with a broad range of property management services to
mainly residential properties, commercial and government
buildings. Services provided by the Group include standard
property management services and also ancillary services such as
cleaning, gardening, security guard, repair and maintenance and
butler services. Through its butler services, the Group provides
personalised and premium property management services to
residents with its trained butlers onsite. While its primary and long-
term business focus is on the residential property market, the
Group also provides services to non-residential properties,
including both stand-alone non-residential properties and
properties associated with residential properties, such as schools
and commercial buildings.

The Group believes that service quality is fundamental to establish
a solid foundation to support the growth of the Group’s business.
The Group holds various qualifications and licenses in respect of
property management services, namely CMS31950, IEC27001,
ISO50001, ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001 and level one
property management qualification certificate.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had maintained its presence in
46 cities in China where it was contracted to manage a total of 637
residential properties and non-residential premises such as
commercial or government buildings with an aggregate contracted
GFA of approximately 72.3 million sg.m. This represents a slightly
increase of 0.4% compared to the aggregate contracted GFA of
approximately 72.0 million sq.m. as at 31 December 2020. In
relation to the delivered contracted GFA of approximately 66.1
million sg.m. as at 31 December 2021, it represented an increase of
approximately 0.8% compared to the delivered contracted GFA of
approximately 65.6 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2020.

The Group strives to develop new business relationships from its
existing customer base and network in order to provide strong
organic growth to the Group. In addition to organic growth, the
Group continues to identify appropriate acquisition targets to
strengthen its portfolio and increase geographic presence across
China.

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

The Group will continue to strategically select markets to enter into,
focus on those with more developed economies and comparatively
high per capita GDP. Once the Group has established presence in
a new city, it will seek to expand its business within the same city or
neighboring cities with a view to maximising its economies of scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R W AT

The map below illustrates the cities in which properties the Group  TEIBBIR 2021 F12 A3 HAEE T HEER
was contracted to manage were located and the number of ¥R EHT RS THIER A -
projects in each city as of 31 December 2021.

Eastern and Central China

R L HE

Southern China

Ee)

- Northern China
Eic=ld
Western China

ey

Eastern and Central China FERKIEH

1. Changde (1) &E#E(1) 10.  Jiaxing (1) Z=E(1) 19.  Suzhou (44) #=JM (44)
2. Chongging (3) EE(3) 11.  Kaifeng (2) FE(Q2) 20. Taizhou (2) AIMN(ER)
3. Chuzhou (4) BN (4) 12.  Nanchang (1) FE&(1) 21.  Wenzhou (8) J&JN(8)
4, Fuyang (1) BF5(1) 13.  Nantong (15) F3i#(15) 22.  Wuxi (8) #85(8)

5, Hangzhou (59)  #JH (59) 14.  Nanyang (1) (1) 23.  Xuancheng (3) EHk(3)
6. Heze (4) SiZE (4 15.  Ningbo (309) %) (309) 24.  Yanan (2) EZ(2)

7. Huaian (2) #Z(2) 16.  Quzhou (7) M ({7) 25.  Yueyang (1) EF(1)
8. Huanggang (1) =i (1) 17.  Shanghai (21) _E/&(21) 26.  Zhenjiang (3) $EIL(3)
9. Huzhou (19) /1 (19) 18.  Shaoxing (8) #AH(8) 27.  Zhoukou (1) FEEA(1)
Southern China %7

28.  Cenxi(9) 2Z9Z(9) 33.  Guilin 3) ##(@3) 38.  Sanya(7) =zp(7)
29.  Chongzuo (2) =7 (2) 34.  Jiangmen (1) JIF9(1) 39.  Wenchang (1) 3X&(1)
30. Foshan (20) #51L(20) 35. Laibin(2 KEF(Q) 40.  Wuzhou (8) 1B/M(8)
31.  Guangzhou (12) E/M(12) 36.  Nanning (19) FFZE(19) 41.  Zhaoging (4) ZEE(4)
32.  Guigang (1) &7#(1) 37. Qingyuan (4) JE&E(4)

42.  Baotou (7) HBFE(7) 44.  Tianjin (1) K (1)

43.  Beijing (1) 3EF(1) 45.  Zhangjiakou (3) RZHRH (3)

Western China
46. Lhasa (1) HhzBE(1)

Note: Numbers in parentheses represent the number of contracted  [f&T : AN FEIRETLHEB EE -
projects.

HREIEEERAE




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S w0

The table below sets forth the delivered contracted GFA and the
number of properties under management as of the dates indicated.

As of 31 December 2021
M 2021%12H31H

TREBVRFARARZERNENEERMELE
EHWEHE -

As of 31 December 2020
720209 12 A 31H

Sg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FE 5K A FHEHAK A

Residential properties FEYE

Eastern and Central China® HEHRERO 44,560 344 43,020 326
Southern China® FEFO 13,872 66 13,649 63
Northern China® FELO 2,095 8 1,979 7
Subtotal /Nat 60,527 418 58,648 396
Non-residential properties FEEYE 5,611 147 6,913 153
Total et 66,138 565 65,561 549

As of 31 December 2021, the Group's contracted GFA of
undelivered properties amounted to approximately 6.1 million

sg.m. (2020: 6.4 million sg.m.)

Notes:

K) e

U

(O] Including Changde, Chongqing, Chuzhou, Fuyang, Hangzhou, Heze (M
Huaian, Huanggang, Huzhou, Jiaxing, Kaifeng, Nanchang, Nantong,
Ningbo, Quzhou, Shanghai, Shaoxing, Suzhou, Taizhou, Wenzhou,
Wauxi, Xuancheng, Yueyang and Zhenjiang.

(2) Including Cenxi, Foshan, Guangzhou, Guilin, Jiangmen, Nanning, @
Qingyuan, Sanya, Wenchang, Wuzhou and Zhaoging.

(3)  Including Baotou, Beijing and Zhangjiakou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will continue to expand its business through obtaining
new service engagements and acquisition of other property
management companies. The table below indicates the movement
of the total contracted GFA and the number of properties the
Group was contracted to manage during the year.

B E S WA

AEBKEREBBFIHRBEHLKEE LY
XEERRMMBEER - TREAIFRBANE
KEERAEEITNBEENYEHENES -

As of 31 December 2021 As of 31 December 2020

M2021%F12A31H 72020512 A 31 H
Sqg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.

FF 5K #HE T K 2R
As at beginning of year F4) 72,014 613 71,971 584
New engagements!” Madn 3,522 58 5,275 78
Terminations®? BE® (3,253) (34) (5,232) (49)
As at end of year FR 72,283 637 72,014 613
Notes: ByeE
Q)] In relation to properties the Group manages, new engagements (1) HAKBEMREENMERNS  HEHNETZREY

primarily include service engagements for new constructions
developed by property developers and service engagements for
residential properties replacing their existing property management
companies.

(2)  Including the contracted GFA and the number of properties the
Group ceased to manage, which were primarily due to non-renewal
of certain property management contracts and mutual termination
prior to expiration for commercial reasons.

SALES ASSISTANCE SERVICES

The Group provides property developers with sales assistance
services by deploying on-site staff at the sales centres to maintain
the conditions of the centres and provide timely assistance to
facilitate various aspects of the sales process. The Group generally
continues to serve the property developer clients after the
expiration of the sales assistance contracts by entering into
preliminary property management contracts. Sales assistance
serves as an important source of business for the property
management services.

XERBEENFREERBEBORBEO - &
FEMFEERRAFYEEERFTNRBAL

2 EBEAKEITBEENYMESNHEEEELEEA
RHE FERATEBETHEERBAORER
RIEEmNEmATIHE &L -

15 85 AR %%

AEBRAMEZERBRRHIFERYE  KEHSE
TRHEPOLAEZED LM THIEEBIETS
TEEEREEGE - —RIERT - AEBER HH
BRERREB NS NEERENERRY
XERBEPRERY - B AMEEERBE
BEBNEZHRIR -

PRIAREEERAF 1 7
2021 & 3



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S w0

CLEANING AND GREENING SERVICES

The Group provides property developers and property owners with
a series of indoor and outdoor environmental cleaning, greening
and maintenance. This business division also provides services to
the property developers and property owners of the property
management business division. Accordingly, segment result of
cleaning and greening division is evaluated by the Group’s
management on services as subcontracted from the property
management business division.

REAL ESTATE AGENCY SERVICES

The Group provides property developers and property owners with
agency services on the leasing and sales assistance of residential
properties and retail units.

OTHER BUSINESS

Other businesses comprise shuttle bus, security guard and
maintenance services in the PRC, engineering services, catering
services and the sale of engineering spare parts.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group will continue to maintain its own advantage as an
independent property management company and compete with
counterparts in the market by its high quality service and
operational efficiency. The Group will actively establish stable
partnerships with leading property developers and/or property
management service providers in all regions and explore potential
projects under development. The Group will strive to develop new
business relationships from its existing customers base and own
network in order to provide strong organic growth to the Group.
The Group also targets to expand its portfolio of customers by
pursuing properties with established owners’ association.
Furthermore, when right opportunities arise, the Group will
accelerate its expansion by expanding its business scope and
coverage in China by means of acquisitions and cooperation.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB1,873.5 million, representing an
increase of 6.9% over the year 2020.

Increase in the Group’s revenue was primarily attributable to the
growth in property management business revenue from
approximately RMB1,252.30 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB1,332.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and represented a 6.4% increase over
the corresponding year. In addition, the Group's revenue
generated from sales assistance services has decreased by
approximately RMB5.4 million, from cleaning and greening
business has increased by approximately RMB71.5 million, from real
estate agency business has decreased by approximately RMB72.4
million and from other businesses has increased by approximately
RMB47.7 million.

Breakdown of Revenue by business line and services

B E S WA

B RS R O R
Wy 5

HE2021F12A31BIEFE  AEEHEEKRZE
PIANRME1,873.5BETT © #2020 F 0 6.9% °

AEBWFEMFERRYESTIEERS R EHE
E2020F 12 A31TBIEFEHARE 12523085
TTENMEHE2021F12A3MHIEEEHARE
133218870 BEFEREER64% I &K
EEBEREOMERDOARBS4AEEL B
BRECEBHRSEMOARE7ISEE T
EERBEBNRZRIOOARET2AEE T
REMERRBEIEMHOARK LT TEETT

BEBR N RIGE D B s B AR

For the year ended

31 December

BZE12A31MALEE

2021 2020 Change
2021 20204 gy

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR TR AR®TTT ARETT %

Property management business EX R
— Property management services — MEEEBRY 1,332,054 1,252,251 79,803 6.4
— Sale assistance services — %R 24,992 30,351 (5,359) (17.7)
Cleaning and greening business b YU 155,036 83,567 71,469 85.5
Real estate agency business B ERIEER 165,417 237,863 (72,446) (30.5)
Other business H iR 196,034 148,285 47,749 32.2
1,873,533 1,752,317 121,216 6.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S w0

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

The Group's property management business includes the provision
of property management services, sales assistance services and
other services. Details of analysis of each service are as follows:

Property management services

Revenue from property management services increased by
approximately RMB79.8 million or approximately 6.4% over 2020
primarily due to increase in high unit price projects.

Sale assistance services

Revenue from sale assistance services for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB25.0 million, comparing to
approximately RMB30.4 million, representing an decrease of
approximately RMB5.4 million or 17.7%. The decrease was mainly
due to a decrease in the demand of this service during the year.

Cleaning and greening business

Revenue from cleaning and greening business for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB155.0 million, comparing
to RMB83.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB71.4 million or 85.5%. The increase was primarily due to
acquisition of Guangdong Huarui during the year and the full year
contribution from JEFERE RS AR A A (“Jinan Kuaiqin”) which
was acquired in mid 2020.

Real estate agency business

Revenue from real estate agency business for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB165.4 million, comparing
to approximately RMB237.9 million, representing an decrease of
approximately RMB72.5 million or 30.5%. The decrease was mainly
due to the full year count of revenue in 2021 instead of cut off count
of ten months revenue since the put option was completed. In
addition, the other reason were the prolonged Covid-19 epidemic
and the impact of the real estate market in PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other businesses

Revenue from other businesses increased from approximately
RMB148.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB196.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase of approximately RMB47.7 million or 32.2% over
the year was mainly due to the acquisition of BN EEHRBE AR
A F] in 2021 (Guangzhou Nuodeng Elevator Services Company
Limited*) (“Guangzhou Nuodeng”).

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

The Group's cost of sales and services primarily comprises (i) sub-
contracting costs, representing the expenses paid to sub-
contractors for various services under the property management
services and sales assistance services; (ii) staff costs; (iii)
depreciation expenses associated with equipment and property
used in providing services; (iv) costs of other services and sale of
goods such as salaries cost of the technicians in the provision of
elevator engineering services and weak-current engineering
services; costs of the spare parts sold and operating costs in
running the catering services and (v) costs of cleaning and greening
products and utensils as well as commission paid for the real estate
and property agency services.

Cost of sales and services increased by 9.9% from approximately
RMB1,310.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB1,440.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase was due primarily to the growth of the Group's
business and the corresponding increase in the labor costs and
sub-contracting costs.
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Ht 55
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S w0

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The tables below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross
profit margins by services for the years indicated:

EMRERR
TREFIEEENFAREERRBED WEFNR
EFI% -

For the year ended 31 December
BHZ12B31HLEEFE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F

% of % of
RMB’'000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
AR¥ T HE% ARETIT U ES %

Property management business MEEIRER
— Property management services — MEERERE 336,741 25.3 333,149 26.6
— Sale assistance services — R AR S 7,173 28.7 9,014 29.7
Cleaning and greening business TR MERA TS 12,781 8.2 11,715 14.0
Real estate agency business EiERIEESE 38,358 23.2 61,847 26.0
Other business HAuhZE 37,686 19.2 25,916 17.5
Overall e 432,739 23.1 441,641 25.2

The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB432.7 million, comparing to RMB441.6 million in 2020,
representing a decrease of RMB8.9 million, or 2%. The Group's
gross profit margin decreased from 25.2% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 23.1% in 2021.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group's other income and gains for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB51.1 million, comparing to
approximately RMB54.9 million in 2020, representing a decrease of
RMB3.8 million or 7%. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in government grants for subsidy to subsidiaries to face
the challenge under the Covid-19 epidemic.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group's selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approximately RMB12.4 million, which was
similar to that of approximately RMB12.6 million in 2020.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

22

HE2021F12A3NBUEFE AEBEFAA
RE40NTEETT B20200FMARK 44168 E
TR ANRESOEE LI 2% - REBEFRHR
#H £2020F 12 A31 8 IFF [E #925.2% 8 = 2021
FH23.1% °

HABW A K 2

HE2021F12A31HIEFE  AEENEMK
AR ABHOARESI1IBEE T - 2020E8]4
WARBSAOEE L B ARE3ISEE LK
7% ° B EEBRBUSRIMTE QB 5 IEE i
RZIEREFTIRERN IR -

HERDHEBEX
HE221F12A31BIEFE > AEENHEENR

DHEATAOARE 124G E T EH2020F A
REE126 BB ITAEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB234.1 million, comparing
to approximately RMB238.4 million in 2020 which was similar.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group’s net impairment losses on financial assets were
approximately RMB32.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, comparing to net impairment losses on financial assets of
approximately RMB22.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing a increase of approximately RMB9.5 million in
the provision for impairment losses on financial assets which was
primarily due to the acquisition of Guangzhou Nuodeng Elevator
and increase in overdue trade receivables.

OTHER EXPENSES

The Group's other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021
were approximately RMB18.6 million, comparing to approximately
RMB4.9 million in 2020, representing a increase of approximately
RMB13.7 million or 283.1%. The increase was due to (i) losses of
investment in EFAIBEEXZMBREABER A (“"Huihuang
Property”) and EFEIEFE #E A ARG AR A 7 (“Huihuang Real
Estate”) of approximately 7.5 million; and (i) increase in donation,
losses of disposal of property and equipment and legal professional
fee.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's net finance expenses amounted to approximately
RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 comparing to
net finance expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
approximately RMB18.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB11.7 million or 64.7%. The decrease was
primarily due to lower interest expenses of approximately RMB6.4
million imputed on consideration payable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB58.8 million, comparing to income tax
of approximately RMB51.8 million in 2020. The increase in income
tax was primarily due to increase in assessable profit from 5 A &
Y EE BRAA (Guangdong Zhong Ao Property Management
Company Limited*) ("Guangdong Zhong Ao”"), /N T ¥ ERZEE
MEERE AR A F (Suzhou Industrial Park House Construction
Property Development Company Limited*) and &5 2 & RELT
BPBRA7A] (Guangdong Xunhua Electrical Engineering Technology
Company Limited*) (“Guangdong Xunhua”).

GOODWILL

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded goodwill of
approximately RMB302.6 million, representing an decrease of
20.4% as compared with that of approximately RMB380.0 million as
at 31 December 2020. The decrease in goodwill of the Group was
due to (i) decrease of approximately RMB81.6 million of put option
exercised in relation to the disposal of Huihuang Real Estate and
Huihuang Property; and (ii) increase of approximately RMB4.3
million in relation to the acquisition of Guangzhou Nuodeng.

The goodwill primarily derived from the expected future business
development of the above acquired companies, increase of market
coverage, expansion of service portfolio, integration of value-
added services and improvement of management efficiency.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables mainly arose from property management services
income and real estate agency business.

As at 31 December 2021, total trade receivables of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB410.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB36.3 million compared to
approximately RMB374.2 million as at 31 December 2020. The
increase was primarily due to (i) an increase of approximately 7% of
revenue; and (i) increase in trade receivables ageing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments and other receivables primarily comprise payment on
behalf of customers to utility suppliers, prepayments, deposits paid
to utility suppliers and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's prepayments and other
receivables amounted to approximately RMB501.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB197.4 million
compared to approximately RMB303.6 million as at 31 December
2020. The increase was primarily due to increase in other
receivables by (i) the acquisition of Guangzhou Nuodeng at
approximately RMB103 million; (ii) put option exercised in at
relation to the disposal of Huihuang Real Estate and Huihuang
Property Advisory at approximately RMB34 million; and (jii) increase
in short term lending by Guangdong Zhong Ao.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB14.1 million mainly represented the fair value of the options to
dispose the acquired equity interest in acquired subsidiaries to the
non-controlling equity holders. Decrease in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss from approximately RMB15 million as at
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB14.1 million as at 31
December 2021 was mainly due to the disposal of Huihuang Real
Estate and Huihuang Property Advisory.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables primarily comprise payables to sub-contractors of
the Group. Trade payables increased from approximately RMB72.4
million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB%6.4 million
as at 31 December 2021. This was primarily due to the net effect of
(i) increase from the acquisition of Guangzhou Nuodeng of
approximately RMB34.1 million; and (ii) decrease from the disposal
of Huihuang Real Estate and Huihuang Property Advisory of
approximately RMB9.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals primarily comprise receipts on behalf
of community residents for utilities, contract liabilities, received in
advances, accruals, deposits received and other payables. Other
payables and accruals decreased from approximately RMB836.2
million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB832.1 million
as at 31 December 2021. The decrease in amounting approximately
RMB4.1 million due to offsetting effect of (i) the acquisition of
Guangzhou Nuodeng; and (i) the disposal of Huihuang Real Estate
and Huihuang Property Advisory.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial position. The
Group's principal sources of funds to finance the working capital,
capital expenditure and other capital requirements were internally
generated by cash flows and bank loans. As at 31 December 2021,
net working capital (calculated as current assets less current
liabilities) was approximately RMB306.0 million, representing an
increase of RMB206.8 million from RMB99.2 million as at 31
December 2020. The current ratio (calculated as current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.3 times as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 1.1
times).

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group's
borrowings were denominated in RMB except for unsecured
borrowings amounting to RMB20,071,000 as at 31 December 2020
which were denominated in HKD. A non-controlling equity holder
of a subsidiary of the Company provided a personal guarantee in
respect of certain bank loans granted to the Group of up to
RMB4,606,000 (31 December 2020: RMB7,750,000) at nil
consideration as at 31 December 2021. The bank borrowing
balances of the Group bore interest at floating rates, except for
bank and other borrowings of RMB44,950,000 at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: RMB58,200,000) that bore interest at fixed
rates. The carrying amounts of the interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their fair values.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group principally focused on the operation in the PRC. Except
for the cash, bank deposits and bank borrowings denominated in
foreign currencies, the Group was not subject to any other material
risk directly relating to the foreign exchange fluctuation. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, despite the depreciation of RMB
against USD and HKD, the Directors expected that fluctuations of
the RMB exchange rate would not materially and adversely affect
the operations of the Group. The management will continue to
monitor foreign currency exchange exposure and will take prudent
measures to minimise the currency translation risk.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is defined as total borrowings add amounts due
to non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and net of bank
balances and cash divided by total equity. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group was in a good financial position with a net cash position
amounting to RMB318.7 million (2020: RMB251.8 million).
Accordingly, no gearing ratio is presented.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2021, investment properties and property and
equipment of RMB104.6 million (2020: RMB54.2 million) were
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021.

PROFIT GUARANTEE
(a) Guangdong Jindun

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 20 December 2019 in relation to the acquisition of 60%
equity interest in Guangdong Jindun Zhengan Security
Services Company Limited ("Guangdong Jindun”). The
Vendor agreed to guarantee that Guangdong Jindun would
have (i) consolidated net profit after tax of not less than
RMB13,000,000 for the financial year ended 31 December
2020; (ii) consolidated net profit after tax of not less than
RMB 16,300,000 for the financial year ended 31 December
2021; and (iii) consolidated net profit after tax of not less than
RMB18,700,000 for the financial year ended 31 December
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Board has reviewed the performance of Guangdong
Jindun. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 April 2022, given that the profit guarantee could not
be met by the vendor for the financial year ended 31
December 2021, the purchaser exercised the put option to
dispose all equity interest in Jindun Zhengan to the vendor.
For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 21 April 2022.

(b) Guangdong Huaui

The Board has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of Guangdong Huaui for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 and is pleased to confirm that profit
guarantee of consolidated net profit after tax of not less than
RMB8,200,000 was met.

(c) Guangdong Xunhua

As disclosed in agreement, the Vendor agreed to guarantee
that Guangdong Xunhua will have (i) consolidated net profit
after tax of not less than RMB11,000,000 for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022; and (ii) consolidated net profit
after tax of not less than RMB13,000,000 for the financial year
ending 31 December 2023. The Company will keep the
shareholders updated as to whether this profit guarantee will
be met.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 7,528 (2020:
9,735) employees. In order to enhance the morale and productivity
of employees, employees are remunerated based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practices.
Compensation policies and packages of management staff and
functional heads are being reviewed on a yearly basis. In addition
to basic salary, performance related salary may also be awarded to
employees based on internal performance evaluation. Moreover,
the Company adopted a share option scheme in April 2015 and
share award scheme in June 2017 in order to retain elite personnel
to stay with the Group and to provide incentives for their
contribution to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group also invests in continuing education and training
programmes for management staff and other employees with a
view to upgrade their skills and knowledge. These training courses
comprise internal courses run by the management of the Group
and external courses provided by professional trainers and range
from technical training for butlers to financial and administrative
trainings for management staff.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 March 2022, Guangdong Zhong Ao, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the vendor entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Guangdong Zhong Ao
conditionally agreed to purchase, and the vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, 30% of the equity interest in Guangdong Xunhua for
a total cash consideration of RMB25,000,000. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16 March
2022.

On 29 March 2022, Zhejiang Yongcheng, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, Ningbo Yongdu, a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Group, &% (Huang Bogian*) (“Mr. Huang”), %% (Zhou
Daihui*) (“Mr. Zhou") and Guangzhou Nuodeng entered into a
cancellation agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, the parties
agreed to cancel two equity transfer agreements both dated 29
December 2020, and arrange for (i) the transfer of the entire equity
interest in Guangzhou Nuodeng from Ninbo Yongdu back to Mr.
Huang; and (i) the transfer of 49% equity interest in Ningbo Yongdu
from Mr. Huang back to Zhejiang Yongcheng or its designated
third party, which will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The above agreed cancellation arrangement will be
settled by the swap of equity interest in Guangzhou Nuodeng and
Ningbo Yongdu and there will not be any cash payment involved.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 29 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 31 March 2022, the Directors resolved to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HKD2.5 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HKD3.00 cents) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 9 June 2022. Subject to the approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the "AGM"), the final dividend is
expected to be payable on or about 7 July 2022. The aggregate
amount shall be paid out of the Company’s share premium account
if the payment of the dividend is approved by the shareholders at
the AGM.

On 21 April 2022, BRH B EEE AR QA (Guangdong Zhong
Ao Property Management Company Limited), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has served an option notice on the
vendor to request the vendor to purchase all equity interest in &5
B ELRRLIRBER AT (Guangdong Jindun Zhengan Security
Services Company Limited) held by the Purchaser in the total
amount of RMB15 million. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 April 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

DIRECTORS
MR. LIU JIAN

Chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 54, is the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 5 January 2015. Being one of the first members of the
Group, Mr. Liu founded Guangdong Zhong Ao Property
Management Company Limited (“Guangdong Zhong Ao") with
Ms. Chen Zhuo in September 2005. Mr. Liu was appointed as the
sole director of Zhong Ao Property in September 2005 and has
been primarily responsible for overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development. Mr. Liu plays a key
role in the Group's business development and has led its business
expansion from Guangdong province to other parts of China. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked at Guilin Park Hotel Co., Ltd.
(EMAEERJE B BR A F)) from May 1990 to August 1994 and his last
position held was manager. From September 1994 to March 1999,
he worked at Guilin Royal Gardens Hotel Co., Ltd. (e 28,8 /5 5
fR727]) and his last position held was manager. From 1999 to
December 2003, Mr. Liu served as general manager of Guangzhou
Olympic Garden Property Company (BRI 5= EE YA E)
and from February 2004 to June 2005, as general manager of
Nanguo Aoyuan Property Company (B B E ¥ % A7), both
companies being subsidiaries of Guangdong Yabo Property Service
Company Limited (BREF Y X REER 2 F]) (“Guangdong
Yabo"”). Mr. Liu graduated from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (R 2T KZ) with a bachelor’'s degree in
economics in 1988. In 2008, Mr. Liu attained a master’'s degree in
business administration from Asia International Open University
(Macau).

MS. CHEN ZHUO

Executive Director and vice president

Ms. Chen Zhuo, aged 44, is a vice president of the Company and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 5 January
2015. Ms. Chen joined the Group as vice president when Zhong Ao
Property was established in September 2005. As a founder and a
member of the core management team of the Group, she has been
primarily responsible for financial management, strategic planning
and business development. Ms. Chen served as deputy general
manager of Guangdong Yabo from August 2002 to March 2005. Ms.
Chen received a college degree from Sun Yat-sen University (1 1LX
£) in 1999, majoring in business management. Ms. Chen obtained
the qualification of a property management manager in 2000 from
the Ministry of Construction of the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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MR. LIANG BING

Executive Director and vice president

Mr. Liang Bing, aged 50, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 5
January 2015. Mr. Liang joined the Group as vice president in
September 2005. As a member of the Group's core management
team, he has been primarily responsible for overall operation and
management, strategic planning and business development. Mr.
Liang served as deputy general manager of Guangdong Yabo from
May 2002 to June 2005. Mr. Liang graduated and attained a
bachelor’'s degree in environmental engineering from Hunan
University (#1E5X2) located in Hunan, the PRC in July 1996. He
later obtained a master's degree in business administration for
senior management from Sun Yat-sen University (1 [LIKE2) in 2013.

MR. LONG WEIMIN

Executive Director and vice president

Mr. Long Weimin, aged 59, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 5
January 2015. Mr. Long joined the Group as vice president in June
2008. As a member of the Group's core management team, he has
been primarily responsible for overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development. Mr. Long has 14
years of experience in the hospitality industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Long served as a deputy general manager at Guangxi
Nanning Fenghuang Lodge (EFam %8l E & £F) from November
2001 to January 2004, as a deputy general manager at Purui
Hotspring Hotel (E 18 5B E) from 2003 to 2007 and as a general
manager at Luoyang Mudou International Hotel Co. Ltd. (/&[5 5 &0
BIBRERIE B R A A]) from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Long graduated and
attained a diploma from Guangxi Radio and TV University (E7HE
RBEKRER)in 1982,
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. WU ZHIHUA

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Zhihua, aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 29 June 2020. Mr. Wu has been an executive
director of Greentown Service Group Co.Ltd. (“Greentown Service”,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2869) since 27 November 2015. Mr. Wu joined Greentown
Property Management Co., Ltd. (B RGEEEERAF]) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Greentown Service) in June 2003, and
held various positions, including the assistant to general manager,
the vice general manager, the vice executive general manager and
Chairman from January 2009 to February 2011, from February 2011
to November 2014, from December 2014 to March 2018, and from
March 2018 to May 2019, respectively , he also served as a director
since 7 August 2015. Mr. Wu was appointed as the chief executive
officer and chief financial officer of Greentown Service from March
2018 to June 2021 and from August 2018 to June 2021, respectively.
Mr. Wu resigned as chief executive officer and the chief financial
officer of Greentown Service from 21 June 2021.

Mr. Wu graduated from Zhejiang University (412X 22) in Hangzhou,
the PRC with a bachelor’s degree majoring in tourism management,
and obtained his master’s degree in science in quality management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (7832 T AE) in Hong
Kong.

MR. JIN KELI

Non-executive Director

Ms. Jin Keli, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company since 17 July 2020. She has been the chief executive
officer and executive Director of Greentown Service Group Co.Ltd.
("Greentown Service”), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2869) since 21 June 2021 and 1
February 2022, respectively. She is responsible for management
work in relation to the overall operation of Greentown Service. Ms.
Jin joined the Greentown Property Management Service Group
Co., Ltd. (BB EREEEBR A7) ("Greentown Property
Management”) in May 2006 and held various positions in the
Greentown Property Management, including the administrative
director of the Administrative Management Center from January
2012 to January 2014, the assistant president from February 2015 to
July 2017, the vice president from August 2017 to March 2018 and
the president since March 2018, respectively. Ms. Jin served as the
chief operating officer and the chief financial officer of Greentown
Service from March 2018 to February 2022 and June 2021 to
February 2022, respectively. Ms. Jin appointed as an executive
director and resigned as the chief operating officer and chief
financial officer of Greentown Service from 1 February 2022.

Ms. Jin graduated from China University of Political Science and
Law in July 2006 with a bachelor's degree majoring in philosophy,
and obtained her MBA degree from China Europe International
Business School (B ELEIER T E8%) in November 2018.
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MR. CHAN WAI CHEUNG, ADMIRAL

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral, aged 48, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 May 2017. Mr. Admiral Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Admiral Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting and
auditing fields. Mr. Admiral Chan is an executive director of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 353), an independent
non-executive director of SFund International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1367), an independent non-executive director of China Water
Affairs Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 855). He was an independent non-
executive director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 996), from 10 December 2014 to 30 April 2019, a non-executive
director of China Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company
previously listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8306), from 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2019 and an independent non-
executive director of China Oil Gangram Energy Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8132), from 5 March 2020 to 4 August 2021.
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MR. CHAN KA LEUNG KEVIN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin, aged 53, joined the Company and was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 May 2017. Mr. Kevin Chan, holds a bachelor of
science degree in accounting and a master of science degree from
the University of Illinois of the United States of America. Mr. Kevin
Chan has extensive experience in corporate finance. He is currently
a responsible officer of a corporation licensed under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO") to conduct type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity. Mr. Kevin Chan has been an independent non-executive
director of Teamway International Group Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1239) since 21 June 2019 and S&S Intervalue China
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8506) since 18 January 2021. He was an
independent non-executive director of Greens Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1318) from 8 January 2015 to 12 November 2015.

MR. HUANG ANXIN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Anxin, aged 59, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 3
October 2017. Mr. Huang obtained a master degree in
management from Central China Normal University in 2000. He is
currently the professor of Guangzhou Open University and Deputy
Director of Human Resources Development Committee of China
Property Management Association. He has over 33 years of
experience of teaching in the People’s Republic of China and in
particular, the subject of corporate management and
administration. He also has intensive knowledge in other areas such
as property management, economic administration management
and community governance.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. CHAN KONG

Vice president

Mr. Chan Kong, aged 72, joined the Group as a vice president in April
2008. Prior to joining the Group, he served as an executive
housekeeper at Guilin Riverside Resort, China (B4 & £8) from
February 1987 to February 1988. From February 1988 to January 2002,
Mr. Chan worked with Macau CTS Hotel Management (International)
Limited (RPIFIR (FBR) JBEEIEHBRAF]). He joined as a project
coordinator in 1988 and was later assigned by a secondment to Hotel
Universal Guilin in the capacity of an executive housekeeper. He was
subsequently promoted and served as general manager of Hotel
Universal Guilin and general manager of Hotel Metropole, Macau (&
PIREBEE) and Xi'an Eastern Haojing Hotel (FA% B 5 REBH/E).
From 2003 to 2004, he served as a general manager at Man Wah
Dongguan Hotel (REZE3 A E).

MS. XIANG YAN
Assistant to CEO

Ms. Xiang Yan, aged 36, joined the Group in October 2005. She is
currently the Assistant to CEO of the Group. Ms. Xiang graduated
from Jinan University (@ KX2) and obtained a diploma in
property management.

Mr. Kwong Lun Kei, Victor

Company secretary

Mr. Kwong Lun Kei, Victor, aged 40, is appointed as the company
secretary of the Group. Mr. Kwong is a practicing solicitor and was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2010. He obtained his
Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Commerce from University of
New South Wales, Australia in 2007. He has over ten (10) years of
experience in corporate finance and primarily advises on listings of
companies on the Stock Exchange, mergers and acquisitions,
regulatory compliance and other commercial law matters. Mr.
Kwong is also the company secretary of Brainhole Technology
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2203) since 1 April 2020 and one of the joint company
secretaries of Sterling Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1825) since 1
February 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board ("Board”) of directors ("Directors”) of the Company is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance of the Company to ensure that
formal and transparent procedures are in place to protect and
maximise the interests of the shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities (“Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its code of corporate governance.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board is of the view that
the Company has complied with all code provisions set out in the
CG Code in force during the reporting period save and except for
the following code provisions:

Code Provision A2.1 of the CG Code (now Code Provision C2.1 in
the new CG Code) requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Liu Jian as
both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer in the same individual would enable the Company
to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when
formulating business strategies and executing business plans. The
Board believes that the balance of power and authority is
sufficiently maintained by the operation of the senior management
and Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals. The Board currently comprises four executive directors
(including Mr. Liu Jian), two non-executive directors and four
independent non-executive directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition.

Code Provision A4.1 of the CG Code (not provided for under the
new CG Code) requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-
executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term. They were, however, subject to the requirement of
retirement and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Company’s articles of association. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures were taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices were
no less exacting than those in the code provisions of the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in their dealings in Company’s securities. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all the Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's businesses.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

o To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

J To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and employees; and

o To review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

() Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. There is a strong
independent element on the Board, to ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board's decision making
process as well as the thoroughness and impartiality of the
Board’s oversight of the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board possesses, both as individual Directors and
collectively, appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to
discharge its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In
addition, the Board collectively has adequate knowledge and
expertise relevant to each of the material business activities
that the Company pursues and the associated risks in order to
ensure effective governance and oversight.

Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, professional
expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section "Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this
Annual Report.

The Board members have no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
with each other.

The Board of the Company currently comprises of the
following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Zhihua
Ms. Jin Keli

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2021, ten Board
meetings were held. Prior notices convening the Board
meetings were despatched to the Directors setting out the
matters to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be discussed and
approved. The company secretary is responsible for keeping
minutes for the Board meetings.
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40

Responsibilities of the Board and management

The executive Directors, with the assistance from the senior
management, form the core management team of the
Company. The executive Directors have the overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and
development plan of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) and the senior management
personnel are responsible for supervising and executing the
plans of the Group.

Independence of independent non-executive
Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate and
sufficient diversity, industry or finance experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of the Shareholders. One of the independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the
independent non-executive Directors has submitted a written
statement to the Stock Exchange confirming their
independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent
change of circumstances which may affect their
independence. In addition, the Company has also received a
written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence. Based
on such confirmations, the Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Induction for Director and continuous
professional development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he or she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as his or her responsibilities under relevant
status, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
provides Directors with regular updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The company secretary of the Company
has from time to time updated and provided written training
materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, each Director,
namely Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing, Mr. Long
Weimin, Mr. Wu Zhihua, Ms. Jin Keli, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung,
Admiral, Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin and Mr. Huang Anxin, has
participated in continuous professional development by
reading relevant materials on regulatory requirements and/or
attending training sessions or seminars organised by the
Company or externally.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman and chief executive officer are two key aspects of the
management of a company. Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership for the board and management of the board while chief
executive officer is responsible for day-to-day management of
business. Clear division of these responsibilities should be in place
to ensure a balance power and authority. The code provision A.2.1
of CG Code which provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

During the year, Mr. Liu Jian (“Mr. Liu") is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation from
the code provision A.2.1 of CG Code.

The Company considers that having Mr. Liu acting as both the
chairman and chief executive officer will provide a strong and
consistent leadership to the Group and allow for more effective
strategic planning and management of the Group. Further, in view
of Mr. Liu's experience in the industry, personal profile and role in
the Group and historical development of the Group, the Group
considers it is to the benefit of the Group in the business prospects
that Mr. Liu continues to act as both the chairman and chief
executive officer after the Listing. Therefore, the Company currently
has no intention to separate the functions of chairman and chief
executive officer.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term until termination by the notice period
as stipulated in the respective appointment letter in writing served
by either the Company or the respective Director. They were,
however, subject to the requirement of retirement and re-election
at least once every three years at the annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Company's articles of association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures were taken to ensure that the Company'’s
corporate governance practices were no less exacting than those in
the code provisions of the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 5 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rule and the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The audit committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral, Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin
and Mr. Huang Anxin, all being independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral is the chairman of the
audit committee with the appropriate professional qualifications.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four audit committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each Director
is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

At the meetings, the members of audit committee principally
reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company
about the Group's annual results and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the interim
review scope and process for the Group's result for the six months
ended 30 June 2021, the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 20271 and audit scope and process for the Group's annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and assessment, financial
reporting process and internal control system, respectively.

42

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FHITES

EEERTRNTRMRXALNRTE  FERTES
EEREERREARIERINEE - NRAFFEH
TERVERETH  EEAXRASEEHES
RELSABEZERMAIPHBMNSNEERNT
M IERIE - AT WEARREM SR AR
HEGX  REABTELF=F—REARQHA
BRERBFAGLERREBBENRE - It - AR
ARREEMENERERARANEEERT
MAERERE AT RIA ST AR -

ExRET

ENEES

ARBIC IR AR RIS 3.21 R DA K £ AR RIPH
R PrE R ER TR R RERREN 2015
FNASHRUEZZE S UBTHERBE
#HE - -BRZESR=-AKEENK  DHRKRE
BEE BRRRAELERERZLOLLE  BFH/E
VATEST REEXLESABEEZTEXER
MEZZBEGEIR BRZREENIZBERTE
BN SR B AR BB IS IR E A2 S A BDIE S AT
EEEREFMETESERRMEMBBE -

HE2021F12A3NBEFEARN EOREZE
BeeRRT SEFENERHERFINES
NEZM I Fcsk] —5 -

ket BERZEERETZEHIEARQFIN
M mAEBEEZ2020F 12831 HIEF
B 2FHERKEZEAVBRE  ASEH
FE0NF6HNBIENEAEE P EHEREGR
MiEF 822021 F6 A30HERNEAZFHEZE
ERAREEBEE2021F12A3MBIEEEZA2F
EEERBEBENEF U RIREEREE LT
it - MISSRERF RASEE RSN E RE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee three members, namely
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin, Ms. Chen Zhuo and Mr. Chan Wai
Cheung, Admiral. Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin is the chairman of the
remuneration committee. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and approve
recommendations on management remuneration.

The remuneration committee meets to determine the policy for the
remuneration of Directors and assess the performance of executive
Directors and approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts. In determining the remuneration for Directors, the
remuneration committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, three remuneration
committee meetings were held and the individual attendance of
each Director is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance
Records At Meetings”.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
nomination committee has three members, namely Mr. Liu Jian, Mr.
Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin. Mr. Liu
Jian is the chairman of the nomination committee. The primary
duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, three nomination
committee meeting was held and the individual attendance of each
Director is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.
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1.1

The nomination policy sets out the approach and
procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and
selection of Directors, including the appointment of
additional Directors, replacement of Directors, and re-
election of Directors.

Policy Statement

2.1

22

The Company recognises the importance of having a
qualified and competent Board to achieve the Group
corporate strategy as well as promote shareholder
value.

The Company believes that a Board that possesses a
balance of skill set, experience, expertise and diversity
of perspectives enhances decision-making capability
and the overall effectiveness of the Board. The Board is
committed to ensuring that proper nomination and
election processes are in place for the selection and
nomination of Directors.

Selection Criteria

3.1

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the potential
contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence,
age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following
selection criteria and such other factors that it may
consider appropriate for a position on the Board:

(i)  Attributes Complementary to the Board: The
candidate should possess attributes that
complement and expand the skill set, experience
and expertise of the Board as a whole, having
regard to the current structure, size, diversity
profile and skills matrix of the Board and the
needs of the Board.

(i) Business Experience & Board Expertise and
Skills: The candidate should have the ability to
exercise sound business judgment and also
possess proven achievement and experience in
directorship including effective oversight of and
guidance to management.
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(i)

(iv)

(vi)
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Availability: The candidate should have sufficient
time for the proper discharge of the duties of a
Director, including devoting adequate time for the
preparation and participation in meetings, training
and other Board or Company associated activities.

Motivation: The candidate should be self-
motivated and have a strong interest in the
Company's businesses.

Integrity: The candidate should be a person of
integrity, honesty, good repute and high
professional standing.

Independence: Independent non-executive
Director candidates must satisfy the independence
requirements under the Listing Rules. The
candidate shall be independent in character and
judgement and be able to represent and act in the
best interests of all Shareholders.

The above criteria are for reference only and are not

meant to be exhaustive or decisive. The Board shall take

into consideration the benefits of a diversified Board

when selecting Board candidates.

IV. Nomination Procedures

4.1 Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

()

(i)

If the Board determines that an additional or
replacement Director is required, it will deploy
multiple channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including referral from Directors,
shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of
potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
will shortlist candidates for consideration by the
Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The
Board has the final authority on determining
suitable director candidate for appointment.

TEERHME

(i) EFEZEH  BEARA T THE
FEZEETEERE  8ERA
RANEEEEL2MEHE 1B
FREMBEERARBREEE
) o

(v) MBM: EARBERTE o
RARRAEBERE R

V) B REABWE R
BANRBESE -

i
L4

(vi) B BIFRATERHREA
FETT & EMARRAABELIERTE ©
& ANFE RSB R HE T
WRE R R BRI RARENZRTT
=

W HEEESE TR RmES
AEREMES - RELE FEIRR
AB - EBREEESTEFTN
i o

V. RBRERF
41 EAFEEREHRES

() WNEFSRERAZEIBINESTHK

FHMES HKEBZBRED

BENEREREA  BREARQ

AEE KRR BEE BEER
SNERIEER N BIEE AT o

(i) MNHEEEEABEREALE
% REZBEREIERER
HRARBEENBRAEMEE - #
BENIARREEALERE
TR -EFEQHAMELRE
BEEFREARNREER -

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3

45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHMS

42 Re-election of Directors and Nomination from
Shareholders

() Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election, the Board shall consider
and, if consider appropriate, recommend such
retiring Director to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. A circular containing the
requisite information on such retiring Director will
be sent to shareholders prior to a general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(i) Shareholder(s) may nominate a candidate to stand
for election as a Director at a general meeting in
accordance with the “Procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director of
the Company” published by the Company from
time to time.

V. Review and Monitoring

5.1  The Board will from time to time review this Policy and
monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining an effective Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. The Board has adopted the Board
Diversity Policy with an aim to promote broad experience and
diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board has reviewed, through the Nomination Committee, the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board as well as the
nomination and appointment procedure of Directors during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT
MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at various meetings held THH I SEETRBE2021FE 12831 AIEEE
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the table  AFTERTEIBEHM P ERE
below:

EENEBNHELTE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Board

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
Name EREEE yMEES REEES Exg BRER
=L 253 25 25 25 BEXE
Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman) N/A N/A 3/3 9/10 1M1
Bk (XE) NEM NaEm
Ms. Chen Zhuo N/A 3/3 N/A 10/10 11
PRE &+ TEH TEA
Mr. Liang Bing N/A N/A N/A 10/10 1
REFAE i A A3 A3 A
Mr. Long Weimin N/A N/A N/A 10/10 1/1
BARKE TE A NaEm TEA
Mr. Wu Zhihua N/A N/A N/A 9/10 11
REFERE TEH iEA TEA
Ms. Jin Keli N/A N/A N/A 9/10 1
TREBL L TEH NiEM N
Mr. Zhang Weilun® 1/4 1/3 1/3 2/10 0/1
REfmELD
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral 4/4 3/3 3/3 10/10 11
BRIEBELL
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin 4/4 3/3 3/3 10/10 1
BRRRELE
Mr. Huang Anxin®@ 1/4 N/A N/A 10/10 11
BRLEED NaEm Es
Note: izt -

) Mr. Zhang Weilun has been vacated with effect from 11 November (1)  SR#fmEEE 2021911 A 11 HEEBER; -
2021.

(2)  Mr. Huang Anxin has been appointed as audit committee on 11 (2) BZOLEEDHN2021FE11 A1 BEESE -
November 2021.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
Ernst & Young are set out below:

BB ET &

HE221F12A31BIEFE > L kE:TAI=E
TEATIA AN B R AR R IER RS TR
NEREBEHNINT

RMB’'000
ARETT
Type of services: FRIG|A -
Audit services EZRTE
Audit of the annual consolidated financial ERFELA MWK
statements (2,800)
Interim review of financial results for the six months & Z 2020 € 6 B 30 B 1F /7~ B B 15 E£4A 5
ended 30 June 2020 RS AZ (1,400)
Other assurance services H A% B R % (110)
Audit fee of PRC companies BAAREER (52)
(4,362)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
the accounts of the Group and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and the management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’s independent external auditor, Ermnst
& Young, about their reporting responsibilities is included in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the chairman, Board and Board
committees by developing good corporate governance practices
and procedures. Mr. Kwong Lun Kei Victor of Michael Li & Co., an
external service provider, was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company. The biographical details of Mr. Kwong are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
in this report.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group's risk

management and internal control systems and reviewing its

effectiveness, while the management and other personnel are

responsible for implementing and maintaining the internal controls

systems that covers governance, compliance, risk management,

financial and operational controls to safeguard the Group's assets
and stakeholders’ interests. The system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

A.

Risk Management and Internal Control Review

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
following is the summary of the Internal Control and Risk
Management Report.

This report summarises our assessment and procedures for
the Company's risk management, and its internal control is
considered to be sufficient and at low risk. This report also
aims to assist the Company to recognise its internal control
weakness in relevant financial procedures, systems and
internal controls area.

Our assessment commencing from assessing the over
compliance system and risk management control, the financial
reporting and disclosure control, and the operating controls
of the Company. Approaches include interviews with
management, reviewing on relevant documents,
walkthroughs of processes, tests on selected operating
samples, and a follow-up assessment after implementation of

recommendation on internal control issues.

EEAWMSE

Bk EE R AR

%é'*,v ERASEZERERRANBEZER

I EMEANN MEREREMABRE
,\aﬁm&i’ﬁ%ﬁ\]*ﬂﬁbﬁ%t BBEREER A
M Rl BB RSB AREAKE
éfi?‘t&?ﬂﬁ%Zﬁ“Jﬁﬁ cREMZBRITEMEEE
EMIFREERREEREE AR ZAR - BE
B i IR EH R B NFE B AR R R

;n H

N a=] A\
BE ET#{(:\

HIBK -

A EREERAIEZERE

HE2021F12A3MBILFER 5oy
LKEIHA””EE&W*BWL? RE)E B
TTFERS - U TAZEBRERERANIE
z@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%xo

ARBEBIE T RGN QB R E R A
&%if i H A B ES R S e 5 B EL

o AE TG HEWB AR R ERE AR
E!ﬁ%%z”sl? R R AR e SRR e NP B
§9%h °

B PIFHE THEREFHE AR BT R RES LR

B TR BTG R AN R AR ) R A A
%U)\% HEFEARREEEEEN B
MR EERF - HEEEEHRERN
& AR B B AR SRR R
R AERE R

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3

49



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHMS

50

We have performed annual enquiries, reviewed of company’s
documents, and on-site inspection to identify and understand
the extent of the risks. The Board of Directors has full
responsibility to set up a strategy when designing a system of
internal controls that eliminate risk and achieve business
objectives. In our findings, an Internal Control and Risk
Management basic framework is established and it consists of
effectiveness and efficiency of operation; reliability of financial
reporting; and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. An Operation Manual is also imposed for
employees to comply with applicable laws and all in-house
procedures and practices.

On an annual basis, the Department Heads review and
update their risk registers; discussion sessions are then led by
the Chief Executive. Control activities are built on top-level
reviews, segregation of duties and physical controls by
documenting all control process in policies and procedures to
limit delegation of authority, identifying the material risks,
planning the action items, and finalizing the budget and
business objectives through variance analyses. The company
secretary and legal advisor are also responsible to review
adherence to the laws, while the Board is responsible to
delegate roles and authorities to the Board members and
senior management and ensure they understand them.

For employee risk management, the Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics are set out; training sessions are regularly
held to reiterate the Company’s zero tolerance approach to
bribery and proper business ethics.
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Internal Audit Function

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company has an internal audit department which consists of
2 employees to monitor the daily operations of the Group.
Besides, the Company also appointed an internal control
advisor (the “IC Advisor”) to perform internal audit for the
Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
The IC Advisor reported to the Audit Committee and to the
Company’s management. The IC Advisor conducted its
internal audit review activities according to the endorsed
internal audit plan during the financial year ended 31
December 2021. The IC Advisor reported the internal audit
findings and recommendations to both the Audit Committee
and the management of the Group. The management of the
Group agreed on the internal audit findings and adopted the
recommendations by the IC Advisor accordingly.

Management’s confirmation on risk management

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal audit
review activities mentioned in the aforementioned
paragraphs, the management of the Group had provided a
confirmation to the Board that the Group had maintained an
effective risk management mechanism and internal control
system during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

No significant areas of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, internal audit, risk
management and internal controls functions of the Group
were identified. There is no material weakness in the internal
control of the Company identified.

The Board and the Audit Committee, continue to evaluate
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the Group’s accounting and financial reporting and
internal audit functions, as well as that function’s training
programs and budget. Based on its annual review, the Board
and the Audit Committee are not aware of any material
deficiencies in the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
consider them effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")
and putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of the requisition the Board fail to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

The annual report and the Company’s website provide the contact
details of the Company. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing. Shareholders may
also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Cayman Islands
Company Laws or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to convene an EGM for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continue to maintaining a high level of transparency
in communicating with shareholders and investors through
diversified communication channels, including (i) printed copies of
corporate communications (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports, notice of meetings, circulars and proxy
forms) required under the Listing Rules, and shareholders can
choose to receive such documents using electronic means through
the Company’s website (www.gdzawy.com); (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise questions with
the Board: (jii) the Company's website contains the announcements,
latest data and information of the Group, so that the shareholders
and investors can access and inspect the information of the
Company in a timely manner; and (iv) analyse briefings are arranged
from time to time to update shareholders and investors on the
Group's performance.

The Company has not made any changes to the Company'’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association on or after the Listing
Date. A latest version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association is also available on the website of the Company and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Information on Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule

13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as follow:

M

o4

Mr. Wu Zhihua

— Resigned as chief executive officer and chief financial
officer of Greentown Service with effect from 21 June
2021.

Ms. Jin Keli

—  Appointed as executive director and resigned as chief
operating officer and chief financial officer of
Greentown Service with effect from 1 February 2022.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

— Resigned as an independent non-executive director of
China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8132), from 5 March 2020 to 4 August 2021.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EZEREH
AIRBEMRAEI13SIBMIERBECEETRHE
BT

(1) REFELE

— B2021F6A2I BREFAWRGE
FHTENERUBE -

2 =HEXRL

—  B20229F2 A1 BREZTEAEGEIRG
PITEENFTEEEEELERY
BE -

Q) MBREFSLE

— HB2020F3A5H%F2021F8H4HY
EER R REEEREGRA R (R
B X FTGEM LT R A - R
8132) B FEHITE S -



The Directors have pleasure in presenting its annual report together
with audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property
management services, sales assistance services, provision of
cleaning and greening services and provision of real estate agency
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2021,
and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of this annual report. The above
sections form part of this report.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to reducing emissions and minimizing
negative environmental impacts through the implementation of the
environmental management system (“EMS") across our properties.
The Group's EMS is certified to the international standard
ISO14001. Apart from complying with all relevant international and
local regulations, the Group regularly identify potential
environmental risks and strive for continuous improvement. The key
environmental concerns from the Group's operations relate to
resource use and waste management. The Group have
implemented relevant initiatives, such as implementation of
metering systems to monitor the energy and water consumption,
installation of LED lighting and energy efficient water pumps. The
Group also promote environmental protection awareness to its
employees and property owners through posting reminders and
providing recycle bins.
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The Group obtain the certification from OHSAS18001 occupational
health and safety management system. The Group prides itself on
providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment and it
values the health and well-being of its staff. Adequate
arrangements, training and guidelines have been implemented to
ensure its working environment is healthy and safe.

The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
regarding the same year covered in this annual report, will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
within two months from the publication of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has maintained a good relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers:

Employees: Employees are the most valuable asset for the
Group. The Group therefore strive to create a
motivated workplace by providing employees a
safe and healthy working environment, and a fair
workplace with a prospective career. The Group
also emphasis on its employees’ work-life
balance, and organised various activities
throughout the year.

Customers: The Group is committed to upholding excellence
in its service quality in each and every part of the
services, and providing a feel-at-home experience
to build customer connection. Various
communication channels are set up to listen to its
customers’ opinions.

Suppliers: The success of the Group highly depends on the
quality of products and services obtained from
them, hence, the Group developed procurement
procedures to select and assess its suppliers
carefully.

More details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which will be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company within two
months from the publication of this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on page 79 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.50
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Proposed
Final Dividend"”) (2020: HK3.00 cents) to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 9
June 2022.

Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM"),
the Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be payable on or about
7 July 2022. The aggregate amount shall be paid out of the
Company'’s share premium account if the payment of the dividend
is approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY
I.  Purpose

1.1 The dividend policy aims to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation
to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits
as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

IIl.  Principles and Guidelines

2.1 In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be
a balance between retaining adequate reserves for the
Group's future growth and rewarding the shareholders
of the Company.

2.2 The Board shall also take into account, among other
things, the following factors when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends:

—  the Group's overall results of operation, financial
condition, expected working capital requirements
and capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position and future expansions plans;

— the amount of retained profits and distributable
reserves of the Company;
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2.3

24

2.5

— general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group's business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

—  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association, the Listing
Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its
future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Review of the Policy

3.1

The Board will continually review the dividend policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and modify the dividend policy at any
time.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 232.

DONATIONS

The Group had no charitable donations during the year ended 31
December 2021.

LOANS

Please refer to note 30 to financial statements of this annual report
for details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2021.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group's property
and equipment are set out in note 14 to financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the Group's investment

BREWZE
ARAEERENENFRNEB N FERN B

PRS0 1918 3 (@3 2 A1 (1901-1903 %)

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

20561 B15HER

properties are set out in note 15 to financial statements. REME15 -
In addition, details of the investment property are set out below: BN - B E RIS EYINT -
The group’s Gross
effective Floor Area
Location Lease Use interest (sq.m.)
FEEN BEER
g HE Jiche3 ERED (FHK)
4 office units on the 10th floor (Nos. 10-1 to 10-4) of Held under a land use right for a Office 100% 2,753.31
Ningbo Fortune City, located at the northern side term expiring on 20 May 2048
of Jingjia Bridge and the eastern side of Binjiang
Avenue, Jiangdong District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang
Province, The PRC
FEMTHAERTIREREEBLARETIAERA  BEIOERESSE  BER N 100% 2,753.31
ERIEDOI10Z4ERAER (10-1E10-45) 204845 A 20 HEH
83 apartment units, 2 retail units and 9 car parks of Held under a land use right for a Dormitory, 100% 7,796.53
Shui mao Huayuan, located at No. 75-77 Lane 528, term expiring on 9 December commercial
Xindian Road, Haishu District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang 2049 and car park
Province, The PRC
FEM IR ERTERBEARES28F 7577 HKRE  RELMEAERS  BER BE AER 100% 7,796.53
ES3EAABEN 2T EEM R AR 2049F 12 A9 BER BE
A retail unit of Zhebei Commercial Square, located at Held under a land use right for a Commercial 100% 26.16
Longshan Avenue, ZhiCheng Town, Changxing term expiring on 1 December
County, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, The PRC 2049
FEMNIASN T REGEREE LCERLEEE RELDOEAERE  BER [EES 100% 26.16
B ETEEN 204912 A1 BER
3 office units on the 19th floor (Unit Nos. 1901 to 1903)  Held under a land use right for a Office 100% 818.09
of Yintai International Business Center, located at, term expiring on 15 January
No. 1600 Science Museum Street of Changhe 2056
Avenue, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, The
PRC
FENNIATMN T RUAEREEA 16005 RRER  RELOEHERE  BER YN 100% 818.09
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E=EWE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) BREWME#)
The group’s Gross
effective Floor Area
Location Lease Use interest (sq.m.)
KEEH BREER
uE HE Rz BERES (FBXK)
5. 3 apartment units (Nos. 1808, 1908 and 1909) of Held under a land use right for a Commercial 100% 151.62
Xiangxie Mansion, located at, Jiefang Avenue, term expiring on 3 December service and
Shaoxing City, Zhejiang Province, The PRC 2049 office
5 TEMIARETERAEEWAEIARABEN RELHERESE - BHR EE 358N 100% 151.62
(1808 1908 2 1909 %% ) 204912 A3BER
6. Aresidential unit (Room 3071) of a residential building, Held under a land use right for a Dormitory 100% 159.45
No.4 Xuehai Avenue, Nansha District, Guangzhou term expiring on 22 February
City, Guangdong Province, The PRC 2070
6. TEEREEMTELREEAGIFEETETH RELuERESE  HHER B 100% 159.45
—EEEERI(301E) 207042 A 22 BfEi
7. A residential unit (Room703) of a residential building, Held under a land use right for a Dormitory 100% 128.67
No.7 Zhong Jing Si Avenue, Nansha District, term expiring on 28 May 2077
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, The PRC
7. TEEREEMTELPRTRNG7HE-EETET - REDoERESE  H2ER B 100% 128.67
BEEEML(03ZE) 207745 A 28 B fEim
8. A residential unit (No.16, Building 9) of, Siji Jingu, Held under a land use right for a Dormitory 100% 200.07
located at Dongcheng Avenue, Zhaoging City, term expiring on 23 July 2076
Guangdong Province, The PRC
8. HEEREEETRUAEMFEREGTEMO  RELLEMRERS - EHR [ 100% 200.07
BR163%) 207657 A23RER
9. An apartment unit (No. 1415) of Kunlun International, Held under a land use right for a Dormitory 100% 47.38
located at Youyi Avenue, Baotou City, Inner term expiring on 1 September
Mongolia, The PRC 2081
9.  PERNKARETREAGERER-—EAREM RELHERESS - BN BE 100% 47.38
(1415%) 208149 A1 RAER
10. 9 car parking spaces of, Louvre Garden, located at, Held under a land use right for a Car park 100% 128.70
Jinxing Road, Yuyao City, Ningbo City, Zhejiang term expiring on 12 October
Province, The PRC 2080
10.  HREMIEERTRAT SR EETERE @ E RIELERERE - BHR B= 100% 128.70
2080410 A 12 A&
PRIARKEERD A
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws of Cayman Islands, distributable
reserves of the Company as of 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB322.2 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB324.7 million).

DIRECTORS

The following is the list of Directors during the year and up to the
date of this annual report.

Brief biographies of the current Directors of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
of this annual report.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Zhihua
Ms. Jin Keli

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Weilun®

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

Notes:

b Mr. Zhang Weilun has been vacated with effect from 11 November
2021.
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Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the office of a director shall be vacated if the director,
among other things, without special leave of absence from the
Board, is absent from meetings of the Board for six consecutive
months, and his alternate director, if any, shall not during such
period have attended in his stead and the Board resolves that his
office be vacated. Having considered that Mr. Zhang Weilun has
not been able to discharge his duties as an independent non-
executive director, the office of Mr. Zhang as an independent non-
executive director has been vacated on 11 November 2021 by
resolution of the Board.

Pursuant to Articles 84 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the
year 2021 and as at the date of approval of this Directors’ report,
pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses incurred by the
Director in connection with any legal proceedings in which he/she
is involved by reason of being a Director, except in any case where
the matter in respect of which indemnification is sought was caused
by the fraud or dishonesty of the Directors. The Company has
maintained insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis. During the year 2021, no claims were made against
the Director.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
holding company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Based on such confirmations, the
Company still considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or which otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

()  Long position in Shares

BMFRHITESHARR

ARRBE B ZIBILIFAITE SRR PTE S
EmARAT EWARR ) 5 3135 H A B 7 e
R > BERNZFHERL - AAFRBMEBILIE
WITERDRABIAL -

EERBEETHRAERKRSG - HER
D RESFER

HE2021F12A3MB EFRHEBEARAEAR
B EE B (TERBRBEESTI EES
FHEEN ([ EHFRBEMRG ) EXVEL) KRG -
TR MEHF T A RIEE S RS &S 352
AT EMNERMATRE: - BB ETRBIATE
FEHBTAESETEARARINZETRIANS
RAE) R Z RS

"R
KA R B R MARRER D eyt as
i) ROBHHFR

Approximate

Capacity in which interests Number of percentage
Name of Director were held shares of interest
EEnA BEEZNS 7 igvip 4= BAEEE DL
Mr. Liu Jian Founder of discretionary trust, Interest 473,528,000" 55.41%
in controlled corporation
E= e FREFEINA - R AR
Note: M5E

1) Dawngate Limited ("Dawngate”) holds 40% of the issued
share capital of Qichang International Limited (“Qichang”) and
is taken to be interested in all the shares of Qichang and all the
Shares of the Company held by Qichang for the purposes of
Part XV of the SFO. The issued share capital of Dawngate is
held as to 15% by Mr. Liu and 85% by Hilton Assets (PTC)
Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust. Being the settlor of
the Liu Family Trust, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in all the
Shares of the Company that the Liu Family Trust is interested
under Part XV of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debenture of the Company or any associated corporations.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into with any individual, firm or body corporate during the
year 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year 2021, no Directors had an interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition (the “"Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. Liu Jian, Dawngate Limited and Qichang
International Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”)
in favor of the Company on 5 November 2015, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure any
of its/his associates and any company directly or indirectly
controlled by he/it (not include any member of the Group) not to
either on his/its own or in conjunction with any body corporate,
partnership, joint venture or other contractual agreement, whether
directly or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry on, participate
in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate, or provide any form of
assistance to any person, firm or company (except members of the
Group) to conduct any business which, directly or indirectly,
competes or may compete with the business presently carried on
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other business that
may be carried on by any of them from time to time during the
term of the Deed of Non-competition, in Hong Kong or China and
such other places as the Company or any of its subsidiaries may
conduct or carry on business from time to time, including but not
limited to provision of property management services, residential
community O20 business and other related services.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2021, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO recorded
that the following entities, other than the Directors of the Company,
had an interest in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

FERR

R2021F12A31 8 AR ERIBEFEHF R E K
BIEBIEFENETERRAMILE U TEE
(RRBEEEBRIN RAR BB s H8 B I 5
HHUATHEZ

as follows:
Long positions =¥
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
Capacity and underlying percentage
Name of shareholder nature of interest Shares of interest
gzl B
g et SOREREE RGOS E Aot
Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited Trustee 473,528,000 55.41%
ZEEA
Dawngate Limited Interest in controlled corporation 473,528,000@ 55.41%
TBEBRAA ZPEAE R
Qichang International Limited Beneficial owner 473,528,000 55.41%
MEBEERER AT Emia A
Greentown Service @ Beneficial owner 159,571,300 18.67%
KBRS @ Ema A
Notes: sk

(1) The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15% by Mr. Liu and
85% by Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust,
a trust with Mr. Liu as founder and established in accordance with the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The discretionary beneficiaries of the Liu
Family Trust include Mr. Liu and immediate family members of Mr.
Liu.

(2)  Dawngate holds 40% of the issued share capital of Qichang and is
taken to be interested in all shares of the Company held by Qichang
for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO. Each of Suiya Investment
Limited, Signgain Limited and Onsure Limited, being the wholly-own
investment holding company of Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and
Mr. Long Weimin respectively, holds 20% of the issued share capital
of Qichang.

(3) Greentown Service disposed 5,488,000 shares on 29 July 2021. As at
31 December 2021, Greentown Service held in total 159,571,300
shares on hand.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter
into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which need to be disclosed in this annual report under
Rule 14A.49 of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group's major suppliers are sub-contractors providing relevant
services for the Group's property management and sales assistance
business lines. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 7.7% (2020: 2.3%) of
the Group's total purchases, and the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 11.5% (2020: 6.2%) of the Group's
total purchases.

The major customers of our property management business line
include property developers, property owners and property owners’
associations, while the major customers of the sales assistance
business line include property developers. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group's largest customer accounted for
approximately 0.9% (2020: 1.1%) of the Group's revenue, and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 3.6%
(2020: 4.2%) of the Group's revenue.

At all time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market rate.

The remuneration committee of the Company reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors
and senior management. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
9 to financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
pro-rata basis to existing shareholder.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no shares were
repurchased.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed herein, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young as
the auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 April 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EYzx

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong
Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 231, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

/0

REESEE

BB FEIREBAMOFEXHE - HAHME
RAEMBRRNBEAIREEZNTE - ZFFH
RAMETERGAVHTRERLLAZRREE -
AT EHZEEREHREBER - A T
EEHEETPROMERNHEMRITT AL RS R -

AFFERET T ARG [REBFAFERE
WEAENEE | FBOBMANEE - BIFEELH
REAFTEABENSE - HEM - AANFFTT
EBEERATREHFENREMBHRRERER
BRI R B2 T AR AT YRR © AFTRATTE AT IZFF
MER  BREH TABRES ETEMATHRE
F ARGl BBABREREARRREH®"HTE
B o



EY:

Key audit matters

BEETEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR LGk

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AWM EETPEERRETER

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables

B 5 FE WA K E Al B R R R R E

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of trade receivables
amounted to RMB530,069,000 and the related provision for
impairment amounted to RMB119,556,000. In addition, the
balance of other receivables amounted to RMB443,452,000
and the related provision for impairment amounted to
RMB40,804,000. For the trade receivables, management
recognised an impairment provision based on the expected
credit loss (ECL) model under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") 9 Financial Instruments. The
measurement of ECLs requires the application of
management'’s significant judgement and estimation, such
as the existence of disputes, historical payment record,
forward-looking factors and any other available information.
Meanwhile, for the other receivables, management
recognised an impairment provision based on the general
approach. The measurement requires management to
assess whether there is any significant increase in credit risk.
Therefore, we identified it as a key audit matter.
R2215F12A31B BEZRURBEEHRRARE
530,069,0007T * 48 BA B R E B 7 AR #119,556,000 7T °
BEAN - EoAh FEUCRRIE ) A 8RR A R 443,452,000 7T FORUE HY
R % A AR ¥ 40,804,000 - LB ZEWHIEMS © B
BEREEAMGREERN([ERMBREENDFE IR £
MIA|IBETHRAGEEBR (FRHEEER) EXERRE
BiE - TERBMEEEER  EREFTEEAEAAE G
Pl BE AT % BANNZLEE  ATEEREZ - U
REMEMAISER - R - tEMEYRENS - EBE
RIF—R AR ERE - FFE2REEEFEHEERR
RAREABEEEM - At - EER 2 RAREREIE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 4, 24 and 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BB EMAGE TS RRMES 4 24 %25

We checked the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables and other receivables and assessed the
assumptions applied, including existence of disputes,
historical payment records, historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking factors. We obtained
and tested the historical observed default rates
prepared by management. We also assessed the
adequacy of the Group's disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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EY:

Key audit matters

BREETSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AWM AEESPEERRETER

Valuation of investment properties

REMENEE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties
amounted to RMB178,012,000. The Group recorded a net
fair value gain of RMB1,825,000 for the year, which has been
determined with reference to the valuations performed by
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers using
the market approach. The valuation of the investment
properties involves significant estimates and key
assumptions on items such as the selection of comparable
properties and market price.

R2021512A318 EXEENRENVER/RARE
178,012,0007L - BEHEEZRBAFERFFEKSARE
1,8250007C © N2 EXBUBE S ERMEEMITEBTISE
FETREMETE - REMFENGES EMAI LB E R
MISEREFRENER G RERRR -

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
appropriate similar properties, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including current price
in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition or location, less active market transactions and
discounted cash flows of rental income.

ERREEMENEBHSNRTERBERT - EEEE
BREZETRRBNER  BEIRME - REKCER
MERERTSERERE  RNEBRTHERH MBS RAFER

BEM

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We examined the objectivity, independence and
competence of the external valuers. We checked the
property related information and involved our valuation
specialists to assist us in reviewing and assessing the
underlying assumptions adopted by the valuers in their
valuations, such as the selection of comparable
properties, market price and discounted cash flows of
rental income.
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Key audit matters
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AWM EETPEERRETER

Impairment of goodwill

AENRE

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB302,642,000 as at 31
December 2021 arising from the acquisitions of businesses.
R2021F12A310 - BERESBUREBERBOBEARY
302,642,000 7T °

Management is required to assess goodwill impairment on
an annual basis. The impairment reviews performed by the
Group’s management include a number of significant
judgements and estimates including those regarding the
identification of cash-generating units (“CGU"), operating
profit forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
Changes in these assumptions may have a significant impact
on the impairment assessment.

EEERAGFNERHBRE - AREEEEETARER
BREETERAE MM ERAHERcEAEN((REE
SEBM DR - 2ERNTER  KBERERYEEE - ZF
BRERNEH A LR EFAELEATE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 4 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MHERERBENAGE M BEHRRMES 4217 -

We obtained an understanding of management's
impairment model for goodwill and reviewed the key
assumptions adopted by management, including those
regarding CGU identification, operating profit
forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
We tested the mathematical calculation of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’'s impairment
model and compared management’s estimate of the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount of each
CGU.

RPTAERE T REAMBRER L TR ETEEMRM
BMRERR  BEREZSAHRNReELE N  £EHEN
TR K ABRERNITEE « APTAIH T IR M AREE
RERERERAPOBETE - WiGEIEE LA WA
RN RERSELBUMNKREELR -

We compared short and long-term growth rates with
the historical trends. We also considered the results of
management’s prior period forecasts. We involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the
perpetuity growth rate and discount rate for each CGU
by comparing with past performance and relevant risk
factors. We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed
by the Company’s management on the impact of
changes in the key assumptions.
KRR KRR R REFLBELE - RATER
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EY:

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Management
discussion and analysis on pages 12 to 30, which we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, and the other sections of the
Annual Report not including the consolidated financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon (the “Other Sections”), which are
expected to be made available after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on
the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY:

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

AR LGk
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HIERATREER BERETRAERELE

o  FESAMBHRRNEBEIEBIN - AEN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR LGl

EY:

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Ng.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2022

7 8 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HEECZBQBBNERT  AAEBETHAH
BEEMBBRRNBAEMEENEH  AME
REASEERT EIH - AMEZBERE P HELZE
B BIPARIEAR T A RRBEEZESH
SEHBGERNERT - MEEBRMERARE
TERRBRXEREKNAERRBLEENARA
g7 AIARNFORE NEERE R EELER -

HABYZAERENBABEARARRA

ZXEH BB
BT AT
)

20223 H31H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

.

a N\ 7/

_/_\ N7
FEES

Year ended 31 December 2021 EHZE 2021512 431 BILFE

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T T ARET T
REVENUE & 6 1,873,533 1,752,317
Cost of sales and services THE R ARIEA AN (1,440,794) (1,310,676)
Gross profit EF 432,739 441,641
Other income and gains =R PN ST & 6 51,088 54,909
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEMAY (12,361) (12,580)
Administrative expenses TERFAX (227,316) (238,401)
Net impairment losses recognised HRERMEERABEEE
on financial assets SREE (32,307) (22,837)
Other expenses HAthFA 2 (18,600) (4,855)
Finance costs BA TS AR AR 8 (6,378) (18,064)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE AT AR R & -
Joint ventures BB 2,824 2,595
Associates ERESR/NET 1,194 211
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B& % A0 R 7 190,883 202,619
Income tax expenses IR 1 (58,844) (51,839)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFHE 132,039 150,780
Attributable to: AT AZE, :
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZZ =N 13 106,282 131,509
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS RE RS 25,757 19,271
132,039 150,780
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE RS AR EEREE AR N
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BREAER
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HEARL#E
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FRABARET) 13 0.124 0.157

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EmiEmR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE 2021412 431 HILFE

2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRHE 132,039 150,780
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitt 2w s
Other comprehensive income that may REBEHRRRIEETHDES
be reclassified to profit or loss B EM 2 E Y
in subsequent periods:
Revaluation gains on transfer from property #5313 & ;& (e B = E ¥R
and equipment to investment properties R g 707 1,373
Income tax effect St s (186) (343)
Net other comprehensive income that may REEHE A EHDES
be reclassified to profit or loss BaRrEM S ERE
in subsequent periods 521 1,030
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAEM2E WS (NERHE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 521 1,030
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREERZEE
FOR THE YEAR 132,560 151,810
Attributable to: LA AT HEMS -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ YN 106,803 132,539
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE A 25,757 19,271
132,560 151,810

80 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

IN=NUE WIS

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property and equipment L EYNE 14 139,624 112,232
Investment properties WEMZE 15 178,012 188,951
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 10,365 32,687
Goodwill RS 17 302,642 379,984
Prepayments for acquisition of properties L B 4 26 B TR AN RROR 18 14,206 15,634
Investments in joint ventures NEEPEMNKRE 19 5,153 4,230
Investments in associates REE N AR E 20 6,283 4,789
Other intangible assets Hihmp & E 21 59,961 75,600
Long-term deposits EHiRS 2,435 4,657
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = 22 56,506 50,395
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 775,187 869,159
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 23 50,261 11,820
Trade receivables 2 5 e IR 24 410,513 374,202
Prepayments and other receivables FEAS 708 K E 4t fE U FE 25 500,982 303,570
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTABED
profit or loss EREE 26 14,076 15,008
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 27 436,464 495,773
Total current assets REEEHAE 1,412,296 1,200,373
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables 2 SN FIR 28 96,392 72,357
Other payables and accruals H b e A M EETE A 29 832,098 836,234
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 2 R17 R E M E R 30 41,097 53,952
Lease liabilities HERE 16, 30 9,944 30,033
Tax payables e FLIE 126,792 108,587
Total current liabilities REBAEERE 1,106,323 1,101,163
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 305,973 99,210
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBEE 1,081,160 968,369

PREXEEERAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BIRRE

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

2021 2020
20215 2020 4F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERS
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 22 22,366 24,842
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 2 8R17 R E M E R 30 14,859 25,319
Lease liabilities HEBE 16, 30 2,877 8,193
Other long-term payables Hih REAET IE 31 57,953 18,589
Total non-current liabilities FRBAEEE 98,055 76,943
NET ASSETS EEFE 983,105 891,426
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BARHEE AELER
OF THE PARENT
Share capital A& 7R 32 7,082 7,082
Reserves HE 33 892,173 807,244
899,255 814,326
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR HE 2 83,850 77,100
TOTAL EQUITY A 983,105 891,426
Liu Jian Liang Bing
2z RE
Director Director
EF EF
82 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z= 2021412 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRNERAEL
Capital Asset Share Non-
Issued Share  redemption  Statutory Other  revaluation Special option  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
EARO BEE(

BEARE  BhEE FE  EEEE  EtRA R WNEE ERERE REEN Nt FERER aEn
RMB'O00  RWMB000  RMB'O00 ~ RMBO00  RMB000 ~ RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB000  RMB(000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARMTT ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETR

As at 1 January 2020 #202051A18 6,745 431,037 48 45,542 14,000 - (26922) 19,879 188,102 678431 59494 731925
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - - - - - 13509 131,509 19211 150780
Other comprehensive income ~ FREM2 AR :

for the year: - - - - - - - - - - - -

Revaluation gains on transfer EREPEGEE
from property and equipment %&£

to investment properties Bfths - - - - - 1,030 - - - 1,030 - 1030
Total comprehensive income FREENLE:
for the year: - - - - - 1,030 - - 131,509 132,539 19211 151,810
Issue of shares BB 337 32,684 = = = = = = = 3,02 = 3,02
Acquisition of  subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - - - - - - - - 3720 3720
Capital invested by non-controlling FEHERRERE AT E
equity holders - - - - - - - - - - 340 340

Acquisition of the additional WEHBARA RS

interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - (9,131) - - (9,131) 8,290 (841)
Dividends declared BEERRE - (20,534) - - - - - - - (20,534) (13,584) (34,118)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-ZHEAR - - - - - - - - - - 431) 431)
Transfer from retained profits HEARBEF - - - 15,746 - - - - (15,746) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 120205125318 7082 443 187* 48 61,288 14,000 1030 (36,053* 19879 303865 81432 77,100 891,426

Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEAAEL
Capital Asset Share Non-
Issued Share redemption  Statutory Other  revaluation Special option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
EARE BEEf
BRORE  ROEE BE  EERE  AbHE @ RUEE BRERE REEN N FERER AR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTT ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
As at 1 January 2021 R202151818 7082 443187 48 61,288 14,000 1030  (36053) 19,879 303865 814,326 77,100 891,426
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - - - - - - 106282 106,282 25757 132,039
Other comprehensive income ~ FREM2ENRE :
for the year:

Revaluation gains on transfer BNERREERE
from property and equipment  RENEH

to investment properties Efils - - - - - 521 - - - 521 - 521

Total comprehensive income FRRAREEE -

for the year: - - - - - 521 - - 106,282 106,803 25,757 132,560
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-ZNEAE

(note 35) (B3 35) - - - - - - 1,009 - - 1,009 7,857 8,866
Capital invested by non-controlling FEHERRIER B AT E

equity holders - - - - - - - - - - 8,075 8,075
Dividends paid to non-controlling - B3R R MRS

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (4,093) (4,093)
Dividends declared BERRE - (21332 - - - - - - - (21,332 - (21,332
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 3¢)  H&E—KHBAR

(BrzE36) - - - - - (1,551) - - - (1,551)  (30,846)  (32,397)

Transfer of share optionreserve  JRUEE IR L BERIE

upon the forfeiture or expiry ENkEERRE

of share options g - - - - - - - (19.879) 19,879 - - -
Transfer from retained profits ERARBEF - - - 16,240 - - - - (16,240) - - -
As at 31 December 2021 #2021512A318 7,082 421,855+ 48* 77,528 14,000* =+ (35,044 - 413786 899,255 83850 983,105

2 These reserve accounts comprised the consolidated other reserves of ~ * ZERBREERAVBRARNGE EbRERE
RMB892,173,000 (2020: RMB807,244,000) in the consolidated A R 892,173,000 (20204F : A R *
statement of financial position. 807,244,000 7T) °

PRIAREEMERD A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEReRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE 2021412 431 HILFE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt e ARET T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZLLEDNHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: FREATAE 190,883 202,619
Adjustments for: AT BIERE
Fair value gains on investment properties & YERN R FEK = 15 (1,825) (696)
Depreciation of items of property MENKEBEEBETE
and equipment 14 25,495 22,932
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 16 10,287 23,050
Amortisation of intangible assets T B Y 21 12,977 13,933
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEYENKRFHEEER
property and equipment, net (Wzs) /BB 7 (751) 69
Loss on disposal of investment properties &% E Y Fia 1,250 =
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RYGRIERE 24 19,044 16,989
Impairment of prepayments, deposits A FIE -~ 1Re REHA
and other receivables FE W IB BB 25 12,388 5,848
Impairment of inventories FERE 23 875 =
Share of profits of joint ventures Bl SRR (2,824) (2,595)
Share of profits of associates FEAGEE & 2 BRI (1,194) 211
Fair value adjustment of contingent SAREZAFEFE
consideration 7 82 260
Finance costs BT R AR 8 5,063 14,557
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 W a5 35 7 (257) (2,034)
Other interest income from financial assets & A FEzt ABZHE F
at fair value through profit or loss & E TS EH AL 2 U A 6 (746) (2,412)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FXMBA A
BE(fas) 36 9,821 (1,520)
Bank interest income RITFEUA 6 (3,939) (4,559)
276,629 286,230
Increase in inventories FE® 23 (15,504) (7,937)
Increase in contract assets B HIEEL N - (4,9006)
Increase in trade receivables Z 5 FE W RIELE N (105,450) (19,688)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments FEAST FRIE M E At fE Wk IE
and other receivables (3gm), @ (111,482) 67,962
Increase in other long-term payable H b K EAE < FRIEIE N 57,953 -
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 R H A 5 K&
and accruals FERT & AR (34,324) (32,645)
Cash generated from operations REMBRS 67,822 289,016
Tax paid =ENERE (33,990) (71,758)
Net cash flows from operating activities REKEEFHNESHRETHE 33,832 217,258
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 EHZE 2021512 431 BILFE

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
PitaE ARET T AREBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREEBHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property HE W N RAERTS F0E
and equipment 1,200 804
Purchases of items of property and BEMENKHEEE
equipment (48,572) (16,209)
Prepayments of items of property Y5 KRR AIE B HIE T IR
and equipment (200) (6,469)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE 21 (2,547) (357)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g )P 35 444 (35,963)
Investment in associates REEE R RIIRE 20 (300) =
Investment in joint ventures RELERERE 19 (650) (650)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATERT AERH
through profit or loss BRVEEE M 26 (750) -
Interest income received ERF S A 3,896 3214
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE 15 1,500 —
Dividend received from a joint venture WH B —FaatENRKRE 19 2,551 2,181
Additions of investment properties REREME 15 (56) (832)
Other interest income from financial assets R AFEFTABHHNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss FiS E A A 2 U 6 746 2,412
Increase in other receivables H th R U IR AN - (26,790)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KKBAF 36 495 (2,066)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEEFTRABRESREEE (42,243) (80,725)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMEEFHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FIERITEK 68,550 122,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITEX (88,718) (181,701)
Interest paid BERFE (3,569) (2,936)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFH AR 16 (10,068) (15,527)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WA B SR IR - (23,341)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  JE¥ERREZSH)TE
interests 8,075 340
Dividends paid BERRE 12 (21,332) (20,534)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEZERR AR R AR B
shareholders (4,093) (13,584)
Issue of shares BITRGD - 33,021
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEEFTARESHRETFE (51,155) (102,262)

FRIAREEERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\/ S Eﬁﬁ/)lbgﬁé

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE 2021412 431 HILFE

2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AREET T ARET T
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH iﬁﬁ&Iﬁ,%%FW
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W) NS (59,566) 34,271
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning i%ﬂzfﬁﬁ&fﬁ TEEY
of year 495,773 458,000
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, fEREFH R EHEE
net 257 3,502
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBEREASEEY
END OF YEAR 436,464 495,773
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBeEEBNERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in WA ARTIRE &
the statement of financial position REEEY 436,464 495,773
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS HeRERMINEAER
STATED IN THE STATEMENT OF REEEY
CASH FLOWS 436,464 495,773
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law on 5 January 2015. The registered
office address of the Company is P.O. Box 2681, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° provision of property management services
° provision of sales assistance services

° provision of cleaning and greening services
° provision of real estate agency services

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Qichang International Limited
("Qichang”), a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

1y

BA 75 SR B a

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

ARIREEER
FRIAREEAR AR (AXRQT])K2015
FIASARBREHESAREEHEHE
AR EER A HEREERAR o &K
A Al 9% % 5 &9 4 ik R P.O. Box 2681,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

FA - AEERETIEERE

RHMEEERS

PR 175 35 AR 75

REUBRMAR RS

TRt i E ROR AR TS

EERR  ARFAEENMREERAR AR
EEREARAR(THE))  ZRRA—HR
RERZHE ((KEBELHS ) EMKZH
BRAR -

EEKE A B E R
AATEBHBA TR BN -

follows:
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration registered AAREEEZADL
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
£ MR BRTLE/ =§:3 B IEER
BEREEWH ElTEN
Zhong Ao Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands usD1 100% - Investment holding
hERERAR A F HBRAHS 1%L REZR
BERRRNEERERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Provision of property
("Guangdong Zhong Ao")* management services
ERTFRNXEEERAA hE R E R, AR 100,000,000 7T REMEEERS
([ERTR])
AT XKMEEEBR QA PRC/Mainland China RMB 11,000,000 = 100%  Provision of property
("Zhejiang Yongcheng")* management services
KR ERERAF RE/RER, AR 11,000,000 70 REMEEE RS
(M¥T &R )
PREREEERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NEIREBER (&)

BEMBERRNER (&)

38

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration registered AAREMEEEAD L
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A% ML, BRATEE/ EE B TEER
BRRERBE AR A
BM#EEERRGERAR PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,100,000 - 51%  Provision of engineering
("Guangzhou Nuodeng")* services and sale of
engineering spare parts
BMEEERRGERAR L AR #5,100,000 7T RETERBREETIR
(TEM=EER]) TRt
B RSRREERA A PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Foshan Pairuier”)* management services
FEILER BB ZREER AR R, E R, AR # 50,000,000 7 REMEER R
([ LIRS ])
HENIXRREEYXERERAT  PRC/Mainland China RMB32,352,941 = 66%  Provision of property
("Suzhou House Construction”)* management services
FNIXEREENMERRERAR T8 /FERKM ARM¥32,352941 R EIRRG
([EMNER])
EREBELZREREERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 = 60%  Provision of property
("Guangdong Jindun")* management services
EREEERRZRBERAT PE/HER AR H10,000,0007C REMEER RS
([ERERE])
BRERBIETIEAR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 51%  Provision of property
("Guangdong Huarui")? management services
ERERBEETIRERDA P/ HER AR 20,000,0007C REMEERRE
((ERER])*
ERAZESRRMER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,100,000 - 70%  Provision of engineering
("Guangdong Xunhua")* services
ERAZEREMERDA TE/RERL AR#10,100,0007C RETRRS
((ERAE])*
B EEEENERGER AT PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Provision of property
("Ningbo Reston”)* management services
EREEBENERBERAF HRE R E R, AR#5,000,0007C REMEER RS
([EREHE])"
ERREREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Jinan Kuaiqin")* management services
ERRBREERAF FE/RERL AR #30,000,0007C R ERRG
([EEHRSY )"
* Foshan Pairuier are registered as wholly-foreign-owned BRI BIEETREEIMAEINEBEE

enterprises under PRC law and the registered capital of Foshan
Pairuier has been fully paid up.

# The subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

During the year, the Group acquired Guangzhou Nuodeng.
Further details of the acquisition of the subsidiaries are
included in note 35 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and other long-term payables
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“"RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

1.

2.1
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2.1

20

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income s reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

2.1

2.2
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are

22

described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative risk-free rate (“"RFR"). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting
the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon
designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in RMB based on the Loan
Prime Rate ("LPR") as at 31 December 2021 and certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) as at 31
December 2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings
are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply the above-mentioned practical expedient upon
the modification of these instruments provided that the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met. Additional
information about the transition and the associated risks
is disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2021. However, the Group has not received
covid-19-related rent concessions and plans to apply
the practical expedient when it becomes applicable
within the allowed period of application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

2.3 EEMEERERNE BT KR
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these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts*®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current**
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract'

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

S No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
s As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June
2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

26

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is
subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end
of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the
Group's accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2.3

98

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with
any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component of
equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier
application is permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and
are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group

are as follows:

100

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F— — HREEHEENERMISN
active markets for identical assets or TIEHRE CREHE)
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which £ — [HERMAERE AT ERE
the lowest level input that is significant to = B EAR &K E AR
the fair value measurement is observable, T BEE I EEBEME
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which F£= — [HERMMAERE AT ERE

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
0] has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

38

BEASTHERE &)

MR REEITE

VD3 KRR M DA AR R 5T B R AT LA
B - MERREEAOKAREREE
R fEfa 6 4 EE B A 6 iR 28 RB SRR
B UA 1R B E i B0 R RS PR

MERZEEBRAEFEERELNFH(F
g RRERS) —RRELHRBEER
R - AN ARERBRENBRT  EXR
ERXNEERBEENMEREERAE © fi
RBAMERREETFESR - NEE S
REFMD /EAFEAERFRMTENE
AEE -

FERE A ERFRABREMESED

off the cost of each item of property and equipment to its ERREORAZHRMERTE - LUt B &R

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal BAEFEFRET :

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5% BF 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease HEMELE FHEASK Al s AR
terms and their useful lives MERREE

Furniture and fixtures 20% to 33'/:% RIE R EERHE 20%2%£33"/:%

Motor vehicles 10% to 33'/3% YRE 10%%£33"/3%

Telecommunications 14% Bk E 14%

equipment

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

1o

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property and equipment and depreciation”
for owned property and/or accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of other intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Software and trademark

Purchased software and trademark are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Acquired property management contracts

Acquired property management contracts are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the sum of
the years digits basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to
15 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

114

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. The cost of a
right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 2to 10 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3. EASHBERME )

HE®)
AEBEREBA ()

(a)

EHEEE

AEEREERK B A (EEBEER
HERER)EREAEEE - FH%E
B ERRAR IR REHTE KRR
BEEFE YREAEHTEHEE
BEFLHAR - EREEEZKAE
HRERAMNEAGESE CBLEVR
HEERARRAB AR ZAINZ
HEMFRE BB ERHEHERS -
EREEERATEIEIFE RBERA
MEEXKHBEESHBEEME
WERNMGERA - EREEENE
OEMNEEA R EE M AR FH
(ABEERE)FTE - T

BF 2E 104
MREEAEREHESENEAEE
BENEE KA R REE BRI
I & BRI & E R b 5t AT 3 3 GE HA 5T

st
= o
A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change

in lease payments (e.g.,

payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings.

a change to future lease
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that is considered to be of
low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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118

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third-party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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120

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

38
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Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

3.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

BEARSTHEBE &)

TREERME#®)

— 15
PO R g el
wEEREABRERNOEERRTS - B
1 R B it 1208 A AT R

HEHMBBMNEEBBE(I2EAEHREER
Ei8)FHREE - LAV ERELEEE
ENNEERBME @ TRAREERELY
RHETRRFHANEREEBBS AR
EiaRE (2HEREEEE) -

E’\ BERH  AREFHEEMTANEER

% B VIR R A DERE LN - YEH TG
5o ARERBEREAMEMTARAR
iﬁE’JJ—L REYAERADNERTAELEY
MERETTILE - YEBERBNETIHE
MEIMNK ARG N AR S A 2 BB RIER
B BRELRATEIEER

AEEEESONBEH0RREED A
BEEN - A EETHERT - HAK
SNEPERRIR - TR A RAKEEMRA
EERIER - AEE KA B HKE
REBEAOFE  MAKETARASERE
ERSEN BYEBSERHAKEENERS
C BMIHERMEE

7 B pt
/miﬁv

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3

121
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27

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Financial liabilities TRIBE
Initial recognition and measurement NIRRT E

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, other long-term payable, lease liabilities and
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the
Group's own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

3.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

BEARSTHEBE &)
%

A A=RETC )
BATVEFABSNESREE

BAVHEFABRENERABECERFERS
ZEMBERRNSERLE D REAFE
AFABEMERAE -

HEAZREBEZBENAERBARE - %
FEMBEIEARIERS AP BEAE
BEIYHARBIEEREPAR(ERRER
MBRESEREIR) hE R TANITES
BMITE - BYUBRARXTET RN BARE
RHAE - BIFEBIEERBRNENTA
A= ERIR - FiER 2 Mg A A KRS E
BB RAER - RBERRERNATE
Wk B RFRL T EREMNRZEFERE
B FrHIRR BT RIS, o

TR R TR A FEARERN WS RE
BreRAERNPEABS - MMEST
ERBMBREENFEIRMBREZREL
BRTETOE - HER/BRAFE AR
ZERAENRERERRBERAER
BAKEB S EERRAELNRERER
EEMEEW T IR - ZF R R
BIGEREFVEEEAR - RBERRME
RO FERESEEFRL T BIEEMAR
ZETEBEPTNERAFE -

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3

123



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

124

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

38
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ETRBE @)
BBERATNEREE (ERRER)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other FIRERE - T RRITREMMERREM K
borrowings and other long-term payable are subsequently HA R ST RRIR B AR 0 AR B IR A SR B SH A A

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from

T2 BRIEMIEMFZERNK F EHIER TR
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the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms BEREHEELHAE W BEEENIEIL
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an BAREE] - B A BERSSETRIER ETER
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the REBTHERAFEE EHEREZENE
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the FANMEZRRIER o

difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments SRIT BEiKy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net ERNIR H—;ﬁ/im—jiﬂﬁﬁgiﬂjﬁﬁfﬁEﬁﬁw
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if 28 N E LR AE RIS fﬁé}*&
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the EEAE A EHESsHmEaEA K -

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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Income tax (Continued) FriE®i (&)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and BRI EEMRREH B EERUTER

only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which

Al T - AN AREA SRR HIRITHERN
15 BN AR 18 4 2= B B HAT 1R & R 1K 35 BB AT
IR E B MOE R IA & (BT [ — SR R
BE— R E R T RERTE AR
PISH - MERKBELEHR AR BEHEETR
R AE R E NS REAEE BAFEE
REENRARENREE  AAKZRE
EXHEEAE -

T 75 B

BTN A A BRES KW BEETERE
M R I A A ERER - MR TR
TR B B - BLRZ B B BT ST 3H Y AR A &
PRI REEER DA -

KEFFENNEES
EEMEHIRIRGERERPHNERRMR
AEBEFERARBZEE mARE M AEE
BHRER  BARBFPA LMY -

EANTHRETTREEN - B AR
B3 R P 5 SR R 5 S

the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the B EBELHE - AR EREIN A HR{EET
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration WA AR - E2En SR ERENTETE
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is EERIERAR  BRERM AT ALREE

highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

(a) Provision of property management services

Revenue from the provision of property management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

(b)  Provision of sales assistance services

Revenue from the sales assistance services is recognised
when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

(c)  Provision of cleaning and greening services

Revenue from cleaning and greening services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered and
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

3.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

BEARSTHEBE &)

W s e ()
REEFENNWES (#)
”

==]

BHTEE—ERERND AEPREME
BEmAIRGEE — FOEERE N -
Wiz S ERRERE - WERRBRX
B HEANFERRRAEASEEES
ZEHNBIRER ST - EANEBRAE
B8 —FNEAMBEHRABETD
- RIBAOERH M a B RRERN XX
AENANBEMELNNERX - HRE
PR EER B AGE R o kAR 2 & iR
B—FHUATHEY  XRZERLTIREKN
BMEHNDHNTERAEEUHEREERE 15
RS EEEIERAT AR -

(a) RHYXEERH

REMEEE RS RSN BT HE
NEHEER  AREFPREZKRE
HFREA S BR AR R -

(b) 1RAGHHEIRE

1% 3H BR 75 B0 W s IR B AR B AR TS L
5 [ By i B B O FE AN SR B4 1 A ) 25
5 EERR ©

(c) RHEBEBRFILIRE

ER AR BRI 0 M5 24 4R (4R B AR
45 T 7 5 [ B M ER T 24 2 o 38
PRI B R -

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3

129



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

130

Provision of real estate agency services

Revenue from real estate agency services is recognised
at a point in time when the service is rendered and the
property buyer has executed the sale and purchase
agreement and made the required payments according
to the terms and conditions stated in different agency
contracts, since only by that time the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the property
developers for the services performed.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Installation services

The Group provides installation services that are either
sold separately or bundled together with the sale of
industrial products to a customer. The installation
services can be obtained from other providers and do
not significantly customise or modify the industrial
products.

Contracts for bundled sales of industrial products and
installation services are comprised of one performance
obligation because the promises to transfer the
industrial products and provide installation services are
not capable of being distinct and separately identifiable.
Accordingly, the transaction price is allocated based on
the bundled selling prices of the industrial products and
installation services.

Revenue from installation services is recognised at the
point in time when installation is completed.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3. EASHBERME )

Iy 25 HERT (42
REEFENNWE (&)

(d)

(e)

(f)

151 E R AR

55 1 2 OB AR 75 ) MR ER TR B 1R S AR 75
BYMEBEREFIVEEHR  YER
BT RRIE S AR PGSR R R 4 32 A
REMNREER  RERKE &%
B AR AIRHIRE A RFER
WEER -

HEEm
HEEmMRSEEEENESER
EFNEHEHMERR  BREREXNE

1+
an R o

LZRIRE

AEBEEHOZERE B HESL
HAFEPHETXERRAMLE - &
KRG A BEMBEHREADNSG  MBA
RIBEEERAB THEER -

BITEEMRLZERBEALENS
WER-—BROVERE REARARSE
EIXEMIRRERZEREE IR
FABILER - Fi - XPERTIRIE
TRERRZERBOBAEEMND
[

22 3R AR 75 o s 0 22 3K S K RO B ) A

e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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1oy

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred
to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset
if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 14% to 20% of
its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company'’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of certain subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of certain subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue
from contracts with customers:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

138

Identifying performance obligations in multiple
underlying activities of property management services

The Group provides property management services
which comprised multiple underlying activities to the
customers (i.e., security, maintenance, cleaning,
landscaping, administrative and support services).

While each of these activities are individually capable of
being distinct, the Group determined that they are not
distinct within the context of the contract because the
ultimate objective of the management services is to
perform any activities that are necessary to ensure that
the properties are operating as intended. In addition,
the Group determined that the management services
represent a series of services that are substantially the
same and have the same pattern of transfer to the
customers over the term of the contract. Each distinct
service represents a performance obligation that would
be satisfied over time (i.e., over the length of the
contract, not at a point in time) and has the same
measure of progress (e.g., time elapsed). Consequently,
the Group determined the multiple underlying activities
of property management services to be accounted for
as a single performance obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)  Determining the method to estimate variable
consideration and assessing the constraint for property
management services

The Group gives discount to the customers as a strategy
to improve the cash collection of property management
fees, which give rise to variable consideration. The
Group determined that the expected value method is
the appropriate method to use in estimating the
variable consideration for reductions in property
management services, given that there is a wide range
of possible outcomes which are subject to specific cases
and negotiations with customers.

Before including any amount of variable consideration
in the transaction price, the Group considers whether
the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The
Group determined that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical
experience, current negotiations with customers and
the current economic conditions. In addition, the
uncertainty on the variable consideration will be
resolved within a short time frame.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Significant judgements and estimates are involved
in the identification of cash-generating units, operating profit
forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
Changes in these assumptions can result in material
differences in impairment charges or available headroom.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was
RMB302,642,000 (2020: RMB379,984,000). Further details are
given in note 17.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

BEAGHE K& @)

st THREM (@)
BERE

EREEEVETECHERAARNE  WEXK
HEESERERcEABEMMNERER -
MEEEBMBA - LEBFTA - kKAE
RERIFIRE S REBRAE REET - ZFR
BRHEBEBURER AN AFEEAT
B R2021F 12 A31 BN EEREEAA
R ®302,642,0007C (2020 : A R #
379,984,000 7T) © #E—FEHIBEEHAMIFE7 -

AEERSHREHRFE2HFEEREE(R
RERREE) SR A EMARMEDTR - ER
FHZ BV EERASFRNFERETRZ
HAp R EETRERH - EtMIFemEER
A B 5 FEUR AT B A UK 0 AR TR B ORI SR
B BEEXRECELBEMNZRAEBBE
A i E S BE s  AVFAERE - A MBS R
HEAHERBEERAREREEMET 2T
BEHE - AFERHENARBUEER
RFRAETENRAZHER ST ZH
BRAUBRMSERRLEEEZEERA
AE - BEEEEEREERER  AGEE
FIRMEELEM I BRRKRERE MER
BEMRIRE - LAt EAMREREZRE -

g |



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer

type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables is disclosed in note 24 and note 25 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of
deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31
December 2021 was RMB2,550,000 (2020: nil). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was
RMB125,088,000 (2020: RMB94,867,000). Further details are
contained in note 22 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of the investment properties involved
estimation and assumption on items such as the selection of
comparable properties and market price.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources for estimation of fair value of investment properties,
including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences; and

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash
flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2021 was RMB178,012,000 (2020: RMB188,951,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurements, are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into

business units based on different lines of services rendered in
the PRC as follows:

(a)

The Group primarily provides property developers and
property owners with a broad range of property
management services for mainly residential properties,
and commercial and government buildings. Services
provided by the Group include standard property

management services and ancillary services;

The Group provides property management services to
property developers for their sales centres. The services
rendered by the Group include the cleaning, security
and maintenance for their model houses and sales
centres and the provision of general assistance to
facilitate the sales process of the properties;

The Group provides property developers and property
owners with a series of indoor and outdoor
environmental cleaning, greening and maintenance
services. This business division also provides services to
the property developers and property owners of the
property management business division. Accordingly,
segment results of cleaning and greening division are
evaluated by the Group’s management on services as
subcontracted from the property management business

division;

The Group provides property and real estate customers
and investors with real estate information consulting
services, real estate brokerage and consulting services,
real estate marketing planning, house leasing, real
estate investment consulting services as well as agency

services for obtaining property ownerships; and

Other businesses comprise sales of elevators and
installation services,provision of security services,
consulting services, engineering services, catering
services and the sale of engineering spare parts.

5.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment revenue and profit (which is a measure of adjusted
profit before tax). The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax except that
bank interest income, other interest income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, changes in fair value
of investment properties, fair value adjustment of contingent
consideration, net foreign exchange loss, share of profits of
joint ventures, share of profits of associates, net foreign
exchange gains, non-lease-related finance income/costs as
well as head corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

5.

CEDWER (&)

Eﬁ@$ﬁ9¥$ﬁl%§%ﬂ2¥%
EHEBE RS NRRBEFTEZIRE - D5
%ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁgmﬁﬁ% %MMWEZ

2wl R AEE TR - KFEBKR
MWWEZﬁEEKEIWHWWﬂ*ﬁ
HRITHEBA - A FEFABRNR
BEMEMMNBERA REVEQIFEE
B IRAREQXFERE ELBEEFR -
EIERERENE - BGBEQRAE - &
Hle g BAEEENOMBKRA KR
AR BRBIFAZERAABRTE -

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash PHEETRREEHIBEEE Be kA&
equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZEY A FEFAERZEREERE
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as ARDEAHERENCESE  HZEEE
these assets are managed on a group basis. TR A EEEIR o

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (other than lease liabilities), other long-term
payables, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RESHER @)
(Continued)
Operating segments KL
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's NREMURERERE D 2 AR B R E
revenue and results based on the types of business: BT
Property Sales  Cleaning and Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
BER BibE
NEEBER BHER BILER REZK A% @t
For the year ended HZE2021%512R318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2021 LEE ARBTR ARBTR ARET T ARBTR ARETR ARBTR
Segment revenue (note 6) Az (FizE6)
Sales to external customers ANPEFHEE 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 196,034 1,873,533
Intersegment sales NHEEE 13,927 - 96,085 894 150,698 261,604
1,345,981 24,992 251,121 166,311 346,732 2,135137
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment sales HERHEHH (261,604)
Revenue s 1,873,533
Segment results PEE 177,318 7416 19,523 17,681 11,668 233,606
Reconciliation: Bk
Bank interest income FATFSBA 3939
Other interest income from financial RATER ABEN
assets at fair value through EREENE
profit or loss MEHA 746
Changes in fair value of investment REMENATEED
properties 1,825
Fair value adjustment of contingent IARBLTERE
consideration (82)
Net foreign exchange gain I 5 s F R 257
Corporate expenses RER% (48,363)
Share of profits of joint ventures FEfhaErERE 2,824
Share of profits of associates il NG 1,194
Finance costs (other than interest BBRA(RERRE
on lease liabilities) FEBRIM) (5,063)
Profit before tax BHtATAE 190,883
HRIREEHRA T
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REsHER @)
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) 1R R (42 )
Property Sales  Cleaning and Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
FER B E
NEEREY nEES BLER RE£% Hiv¥% o
31 December 2021 20215128318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR AR¥ETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Segment assets PHEE 2,033,058 105,240 149,495 - 215,629 2,503,422
Reconciliation: % -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 347 & fE A (1,064,522)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ (¥ R E &S EEﬁE 748,583
Total assets BEER 2,187,483
Segment liabilities 2HEE 1,235,740 64,080 95,707 - 137,036 1,532,563
Reconciliation: Ea)
Elimination of intersegment payables WO MEENTE (1,064,522)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities % K E K% @Eﬁﬁ 736,337
Total liabilities AfEEE 1,204,378
Other segment information HtaBEH
Share of profits and losses of: FEEHERER
Joint ventures (:.\ b 2,824 - - - - 2,824
Associates YN 1,194 - - - - 1,194
Net impairment losses recognised/ RERMEER/(EE)
(reversed) in profit or loss BEBETE 19,408 1,634 601 12,233 (1,569) 32,307
Depreciation and amortisation TERE
Unallocated N 1,669
Segment Vol 31,080 285 645 7,651 7429 47,090
Investments in associates i AN 6,283 - - - - 6,283
Investment in joint ventures REELERE 5,153 - - - - 5,153
Capital expenditure* ARRX*
Unallocated FOR 12
Segment pax: 8 19,085 264 2,045 528 29,341 51,263
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property and * BARBY BIERBYEREE  5EWE -

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and

prepayments for acquisition of properties.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REsHER @)
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) BEDER(E)
Property Sales  Cleaning and Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
BEZR BiE
MEEREH SRR Bl ER RBEH Eth%% e
For the year ended BZE2020512831H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2020 LLEE AREFTT ARBTT ARBFT ARETT ARBTT ARETTL
Segment revenue (note 6) 2EEE (Fiske)
Sales to external customers RN R FHHE 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Intersegment sales NEEEE 15,790 - 93,162 926 121,741 231,625
1,268,041 30,351 176,729 238,789 270,032 1,983,942
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEHELHE (231,625)
Revenue g 1,752,317
Segment results DS 188,883 9,006 22,303 27,597 12,609 260,398
Reconciliation: HEE -
Bank interest income FITREWMA 4559
Other interest income from financial BATE A BEH
assets at fair value through CREENER
profit or loss FEMA 2412
Changes in fair value of investment RENMENATEED
properties 69
Fair value adjustment of contingent FARBATERE
consideration (260)
Net foreign exchange gain 5 e H 2,034
Corporate expenses PEBEY (55,469)
Share of profits of joint ventures AR ) 2595
Share of profits of associates NGl M
Finance costs (other than interest BERA(RERE
on lease liabilities) FISBAN) (14,557)
Profit before tax BB AR 202,619
FRIAREEERAF
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RE&EHBER (@)
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) REDER ()
Property Sales Cleaningand Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
BER BibE
MEEREH RS BLER RIEBE At it
31 December 2020 20206127318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL AREFT ARETTT ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
Segment assets SHEE 1,726,074 46,903 131,188 218,488 248,486 2,371,139
Reconciliation: % -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 347 & fE MR (1,073,218)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ (¥ R E &S @Eﬁ@ 771,611
Total assets BEEE 2,069,532
Segment liabilities FHEE 911,638 24,281 60,767 95,199 118,751 1,210,636
Reconciliation: Ea)
Elimination of intersegment payables WO MEENTE (1,073,218)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities {>% R E A5 @E’E & 1,040,688
Total liabilities BELH 1,178,106
Other segment information HtaBEH
Share of profits and losses of: M ERER
Joint ventures (:.\ A 2,595 = = = = 2,595
Associates NG| 21 = = = = 21
Net impairment losses recognised/ RERNEER/ (EE)
(reversed) in profit or loss BEEREE 19,310 4,299 (605) (1,104) 937 22831
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH
Unallocated FOR 1,401
Segment Vol 20,529 13611 310 20438 3,626 58,514
Investments in associates REFAATIRE 4,789 = = = = 4,789
Investment in a joint venture R—HAERERE 4230 = = = = 4230
Capital expenditure* ARRX*
Unallocated FOR 2370
Segment Vol 14,400 830 98 6,085 84 21497
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property and & BARAS BIEREYEREE &é%%

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and

prepayments for acquisition of properties.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

Since 100% of the Group's revenue and operating profit were
generated in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group's
non-current assets were located in Mainland China, no
geographical information is presented in accordance with
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

5.
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REFTER (&)
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wi - Hilw A Rk
An analysis of revenue is as follows: R DT
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET AREETIT
Revenue from contracts with customers FEEEE LB
Rendering of services REARTS 1,810,626 1,729,266
Sales of goods HEEMR 62,907 23,051
1,873,533 1,752,317

i |
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(Continued)

(i)

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wz - HMWAR WS @)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEANNNZE
Disaggregated revenue information (i) CofFkzEER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHZE2021%F12831HILFEE
Property Sales Cleaning Real estate
management assistance  and greening agency Other
Segments business business business business businesses Total
b BER EiE
NFEVEE iEELd BlxH REEHK At @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Types of goods or services ERIBBER
Rendering of services AR 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 133,127 1,810,626
Sale of goods HEER - - - - 62,907 62,907
Total revenue from contracts RERF A D&
with customers 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 196,034 1,873,533
Geographical markets BETZ
Mainland China B 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 196,034 1,873,533
Timing of revenue WE BN
recognition
Revenue recognised WE— BB RN R
over time 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 - 133,127 1,645,209
Revenue recognised WNE— B SRR
ata point of time - - - 165,417 62,907 228,324
Total revenue from contracts KRB B A #ME
with customers 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 196,034 1,873,533

1oy
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wi - Hb AR W= (@)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHNNNE &)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) iy CoirWzEER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2020F12A31HIEEE
Property Sales Cleaning Real estate
management assistance  and greening agency Other
Segments business business business business businesses Total
Bl FER FiE
MEEREK R RICER REXH Atk &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT AREFT AREFT
Types of goods or services ERARBER
Rendering of services TR 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 125,234 1,729,266
Sale of goods HEEM - - - = 23,051 23,051
Total revenue from contracts  RERF A hEs
with customers 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Geographical markets BETE
Mainland China FE R 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Timing of revenue WREA R
recognition
Revenue recognised RE-R R ERNE
over time 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 - 125,234 1,491,403
Revenue recognised WNE— B RERN R
ata point of time - - - 237,863 23,051 260914
Total revenue from contracts  RERF A DM
with customers 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
PRIAREEFRAR
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information:
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Property Sales
management assistance
Segments business business

2%
NREERH RS
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR  AR®TR

6.

Wz - EbWA R WS @)

REEFEFEXNHRE (#)
() BoFREER @)

ATEINREEFANWRmED BE
BB S A H AR

HZ2021F12A31HLELEE

Cleaning Real estate
and greening agency Other
business business businesses Total
RER BHE
BIEH REXH Eft%% @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARETR

Revenue from contracts ~ REEF &AMk
with customers

Sales to external customers [N FRFEHE 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 196,034 1,873,533
Intersegment sales SEHEHE 13,927 - 96,085 894 150,698 261,604
Intersegment adjustments SRR R4

and eliminations (13,927) - (96,085) (894) (150,698) (261,604)
Total revenue from contracts  RERFAMEE

with customers 1,332,054 24,992 155,036 165,417 196,034 1,873,533

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Property Sales
management assistance
Segments business business

ok
WRERRH S
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETE

BE2020F12A31 HIEFE

Cleaning Real estate
and greening agency Other
business business businesses Total
BER FiE
BIE% REX% i) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT  ARMTT  ARETL  AR¥TR

Revenue from contracts ~ REEFAXHNE

with customers

External customers NI EHE 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Intersegment sales AHREE 15,790 - 93,162 926 121,747 231,625
Intersegment adjustments A HfAE R H

and eliminations (15,790) - (93,162) (926) (121,747) (231,625)
Total revenue from contracts REZF A D

with customers 1,252,251 30,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

6.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

Wi - B ARKE @)

REFFEHNH R (#)
() BoFKEER @)

TRETRARE BEERN WSS
B EARSHINANEE:

2021
2021 F
RMB’000
AR®TF T
Revenue recognised that was included in contract BEFAREHYEHNEEN
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: BRI -
Property management services (note 29) M E IR AR (M 5E 29) 123,359
2020
2020 F
RMB’000
ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included in contract Bt AREHIENEEDN
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: B RN
Property management services )3 B TR AR TS 123,057

(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Provision of property management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing.

Provision of sales assistance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing.

(i) BHEE
BERAKEROEEMNEMBAMNT -

RHRYREERE

BHEERREIRIGRER - HE—
AR AR EE HEEET Q0 H M EIH -

rR AR 15 AR TS

BHBEER IR AR A - SRR —
AR B AR B8 H HIAERT 90 B A BIHA -

FRIAREEERAF
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

156

Performance obligations (Continued)
Provision of cleaning and greening services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing.

Real estate agency services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the services. The property buyer has executed the sale
and purchase agreement and made the required
payments according to the terms and conditions stated
in different agency contracts and payment is generally
due within 60 days from the date of billing.

Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days from customer acceptance of delivered goods.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 are as follows:

6.

ez -

HiaWm AR W= &)

REFFEHKE &)

(ii)

BHERE(E)
R Z R AR IR

JE IR AR B AR TS B 2 A - FRIA —
MR ARE A HEET 90 B A EH]

EitE IR
BHEERRXNREEET - WEE

REVEEHALRBEIRRIESH
ot R R R XA REN K - B
MRBREREAZEREBMEFORR
28 -

BEmiHE
BRHOBEREmMXMRZENR - SRIE—
BRREFP KB EE miEFH 30290
RAZIH -

72021412 431 B K 20204 12 A 31
DEEHRTEMOARECRETHR
DARBIT) R ZERBIT

2021 2020

2021 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFTT

Within one year —&FR 203,552 123,359
Over one year BB —F 57,953 =
261,505 123,359
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.

(Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations (Continued)

Sales of goods (Continued)

All the remaining performance obligations are expected
to be recognised within one year. The amounts

disclosed above do not include variable consideration

which is constrained.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

Wi - B ARKE @)

Py
(ii)

BEFEHHRE (#)
BHERE ()
Koe(E)

PIASR TRABEEFRPN —F AR
EXHENSRL TBEXR A

2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARET T
Other income Hi A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 3,939 4,559
Other interest income from BEAVEFAEENSREE
financial assets at fair value Fr A5 E 71 B
through profit or loss 746 2,412
Government grants IR #e B 24,214 30,875
Rental income HEBA 4,353 5,240
Others 15,003 9,093
48,255 52,179
Gains
Fair value gains on investment BEDFE DT EWRE
properties 1,825 696
Gain on disposal of items of property HEYE N RETE B Bk
and equipment 751 =
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W w558 257 2,034
2,833 2,730
51,088 54,909

FRIAREEERAF
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158

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBLATRIE
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBHBRFRAAED IR (GTA) T38|
(crediting): H:
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BeE ARBT ARKETTT
Cost of services provided IR R KA 1,384,453 1,294,826
Cost of goods sold B EEmKA 56,341 15,850
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERAHSZ (TREES
directors’ and chief executive's RE&=m1THA B
remuneration (note 9)) (FF5E9))
Salaries and other benefits N K2 E b T 656,855 660,843
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  RREF|EH 2130 36,727 10,099
693,582 670,942
Depreciation of items of property YERREBEBITE
and equipment 14 25,495 22,932
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BREEERE 16 10,287 23,050
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih R & ESH 21 12,977 13,933
Impairment of financial assets, net SREEREFE
Net impairment losses recognised on TE 5 UG IRRER R
trade receivables REEEFE 24 19,044 16,989
Net impairment losses recognised on ThE b UL FRIB FE R A
other receivables VEREY Ei=be ] 25 12,388 5,848
Fair value gains on investment properties & & ¥ A FEWKZ 15 (1,825) (696)
Gross rental income WA LR 6 (4,353) (5,240)
Foreign exchange gains BEE 3, U 25 6 (257) (2,034)
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEABEFEN
measurement of lease liabilities HEM 16 7,035 1,518
Fair value adjustment of contingent HAREB AT EFHE
consideration 82 260
Bank interest income HRATH B A 6 (3,939) (4,559)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEMENKREEERN
property and equipment (=), B8 (751) 69
Auditor’s remuneration AN & 4,362 4,623
Other interest income from financial assets & A {EF ABZH
at fair value through profit or loss TREENEMAEUA 6 (746) (2,412
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XHBARZ
BB (fas) 9,821 (1,520)
Write-down of inventories to net WoR 7 & 2 Al #3858
realisable value 875 -
Government grants* IR T 4 B 6 (24,214) (30,875)

Government grants include various subsidies received by the

Company's subsidiaries from relevant government bodies.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to

these grants.
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FINANCE COSTS 8. BIIERRA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: PR AR DT
2021 2020
2021 % 20204F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETFT
Interest on bank borrowings ITB AR 3,569 9,905
Interest expense imputed on REMSREMHEENF B
consideration payable 1,494 4,652
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHNS 1,315 3,507
6,378 18,064
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESITHAESM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, WRIEB T rEA MR (T EHRA ) - F
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of A TEBIE 383(1)@) ~ (b) * (o) B () IE &
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), NE(FBEEEMNZER) RAIZE 250 FEH
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies ARFEEEERESTHRABHFMIOT :
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
Group
KEE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETIT
Fees %@,@ 9,487 9,667
Other emoluments: HibE4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAREYHS 1,368 1,565
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIMER 39 20
1,407 1,585
10,894 11,252

anesnznas il
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9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESTTHRAEHM @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FHRNENBIIENTESNRSOT ¢

during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT
Mr. Zhang Weilun SRR A 129 157
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BRIEELE 149 157
Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin BRRR 4 149 157
Mr. Huang An Xin BRI AE 150 157
577 628
There were no other emoluments payable to the FREEMEMNBIENTEED
independent non-executive directors during the year B <5 (2020 4F : £&) ©

(2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

31 December 2021 2021912 A 31 H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERBETHRAEHM
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITES - kHITESRES
and the chief executive TBAE
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
allowances and  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions  remuneration
e 2ZER BEEE Bihe
e ENRlE BRERX HE 5 Fas
2021 2021 % RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Executive directors: WTES:
Ms. Chen Zhuo BEg+ 1,742 456 - 13 2,211
Mr. Liang Bing RESAE 3,235 456 - 13 3,704
Mr. Long Weimin ERREHE 3,235 456 - 13 3,704
8,212 1,368 - 39 9,619
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Ms. Jin Keli*** ERBL L 100 - - - 100
Mr. Wu Zhihua*** REELE 100 - - - 100
200 - - - 200
Chief executive: BR{IHAS :
Mr. Liu Jian et 498 - - - 498
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 R B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERBEITHAEHM =)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITES - kHITESERES
and the chief executive (Continued) 1TTHAE &)
Salaries,  Equity-settled Pension
allowancesand  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions  remuneration
e 2R EnkE BHe
e ENiE RRERX TRl Has
2020 2020F RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Executive directors: RTES
Ms. Chen Zhuo ReEz+ 1,768 456 = b 2,230
Mr. Liang Bing RESEHE 3,282 456 = 2 3,740
Mr. Long Weimin ERRLAE 3,282 458 = b 3,746
8,332 1,370 - 14 9,716
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Ms. Jin Keli*** SRBL L 46 - - - 46
Mr. Wu Zhihua*** REZRE 51 - - - 51
Mr. Wei Zhe* ERE 50 - - - 50
Ms. Wu Qimin** REGHL L 55 = - = 55
202 - - - 202
Chief executive: RETHAR :
Mr. Liu Jian Bl 505 195 - 6 706
* In June 2020, Mr. Wei Zhe resigned as a non-executive * MN20205F 6 B - BHERECBERR
director of the Company. AIEMITES -
*x In July 2020, Ms. Wu Qimin resigned as a non-executive * 202097 A 0 REFLLIERHEAR
director of the Company. NEFEHITESE -
**%  Mr. Wu Zhihua was appointed as a non-executive o REEZEREBEX LR
director in June 2020 and Ms. Jin Keli was appointed as 2020F 6 AT 20207 A EZERIE
a non-executive director in July 2020 respectively. HITESE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. IBmREHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FAREHREH EERE=ZZEE (20204 :
three directors (2020: three directors), details of whose —REE) EHEMFBHN EXXHIFE - &
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the FEHBWEZ(2020F : MB)BEIEARR 7]
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2020: two) FEENIERSTHRABNRSHEES 8 ZH
highest paid employee who are neither a director nor a chief E-P NN

executive of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUMEEYA TS 2,172 3,591
Pension scheme contributions RN FHEIMERK 29 14
2,201 3,605
The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive FBENIEERSTHAS BN FELATE
highest paid employee whose remuneration fell within the BN RS EEMNINT :

following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
Nil to RMB1,000,000 T &= AR# 1,000,000 1 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMBS5,000,000 AR #1,000,001 TTE
AR ¥ 5,000,000 7T 1 1
2 2

|



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

11. INCOME TAX 1. FrEs
A provision for PRC corporate income tax (the “CIT") has HE2021F12A31HIEFE  FBHLEFT
been provided at the applicable income tax rate of 25% for BR(EEMER D BEIHAER KT
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 25%) on the 7 b B BT BB R T Y JE AR AR A B 4% 25% (2020
assessable profits of the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland F25%)MERTERRTIR S ZARK
China, except for those subsidiaries which enjoyed a lower tax MEREBEAHTB R TIRIN o

rate as a benefit.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the BRAMEFE A ERERHEFEREEE -
financial statements as no assessable profit was derived from AR IS SRR P EAF G B BHE -

Hong Kong during both years.

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT

Current — Mainland China: BNHER — A B A,
Charge for the year FAXZH 71,553 45,944
Deferred tax (note 22) EFEFIE (B 5E 22) (12,709) 5,895
Total tax charge for the year FRBTIA L 58,844 51,839
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective

rate is as follows:

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

11. FrE®H (®)

RAAE B K51 8 8 AR R B AT A B e B8
X BRI RSt E A BIER < 2 $IRR A
T

2021 2020
2021 20205
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Profit before tax MR A AT E 190,883 202,619
Tax at the applicable tax rate RE AR R ERNTIE 47,721 50,655
Profits attributable to joint ventures B &I R E A A RS ) E
and associates (1,005) (702)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 6,268 1,790
Tax losses and temporary differences RERIBEIE LTS E58
unrecognised 6,934 2,802
Tax losses and temporary differences AR IEEE R
utilised from previous periods st EER (2,453) 4,510
Withholding tax on distributable profits of — ZN& @ FR BB A 7R 2K A E A
the Group's PRC subsidiaries TEHR 1,379 1,804
Tax charge for the year FRFIAZ H 58,844 51,839

The share of tax expense attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to RMB1,341,000 (2020: RMB936,000) is
included in “Profits and losses of joint ventures” and
"Profits and losses of associates” in profit or loss.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group has applied an applicable rate
of 5% in 2021 (2020: 5%). The Group will be liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

BENCERBERREEDEHIBERY AA
R #51,341,000 7T (2020 4F = A R # 936,000
L) BETABR [ ¥ LENABEREE]
M BEARNABRER]|ET -

BB R BEMETE - KRB A A
HNEIIE A P EMINRIEE B S IRA B
10% AT - ZMREE2008F1A1HRBAE
R - WA 200712 31 BLABENEF] -
70 5 R B PR i ER O B 4% 2 AT AE R I AT
EREERELEE - AR RRAREKNBINER
R o KB FA20214F B B A i A B R 5%
(20204 : 5%) o A~ £ B 1% 72 5t 8 2008 4 1
R1BEANAFBZERPREARHAKH
B AR DRI S AN TEIORL

FRIAREEERAF
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

12.

13.

166

DIVIDENDS

During 2021, a dividend of HKD3.00 cents per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020 was declared by the
directors of the Company and approved in the Company'’s
annual general meeting on 31 May 2021. Dividends
amounting to RMB21,332,000 were paid on 30 June 2021
(2020: RMB20,534,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HKD2.5 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 3.00 cents) to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 9 June 2022. Subject to the approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “AGM"), the final dividend is expected to be payable on
or about 7 July 2022. The aggregate amount shall be paid out
of the Company'’s share premium account if the payment of
the dividend is approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent for the year, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 854,550,000 shares (2020: 837,350,658
shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is

12.

13.

Hﬁ /%\

R20214F - ARAREEBEZ IR 20214F5
ANBARRMBRRAF RS LHEERE
20204 12 A 31 B L FE /IR B AE%3.007%
il 2021 F6 A30BEMNKEESEAAR
#21,332,0007C (2020 4F : A R ¥ 20,534,000
JT) °

BEEEDRFZEZM2022F6 A9H LA
7 7)) AR R 2 i A A% RR B B &= 2021 £ 12 B
31 B IEFE 2 KRB &A% 2.5% 10 (2020
F :3.0081) o FARQBPRENRENEERTT
ZHRFEBFARE(RRBFAE]) Li#
% - TEEIRAIIR B8R 2022497 A 7 B 2k Al
BIRAT o tRATAY SRR R R IR IAF R
HibE - BeBmBEE AR RMNRGRERA
IRA e

g?ﬂ%ﬁ%é%ﬁk@ﬁ%&

—

BREARFSEIRAFEGT QB EEE
HEBAELME  ARFEADBITEER
ok F 15 854,550,000 % (2020 4F :
837,350,658 % ) 5+ & o

AEEBREARNSEIERNTIEE

based on:
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Earnings BZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders &2 B E RIS B A B FE
of the parent 106,282 131,509
Shares idi)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 4 A1 2 3817 & s A% N4 F 15 8%
in issue during the year 854,550,000 837,350,658
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 13. B AT BESEEAELEER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRI )
PARENT (Continued)

R

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the HE2021 FE R 202012 A3 B IEEE » 51
computation of diluted earnings per share did not include the EHRE SR ET RAR R B EE
exercise of the share options of the Company since the T DERERENTEESNAR AR
exercise price of the share options was higher than the DR EB R 2021 FE K 202012 A31BILFE
average market price of the Company’s shares during the ANH IS EE -

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. MEREE
Leasehold Furniture Motor
Buildings  improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
BF HEVEEE GAREERE RE &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTL ARMTFR ARBTL ARMTFR ARBTL

31 December 2021 2021%12A31H
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 R2021F151H 72,381 26,213 41,989 43,339 183,922
Additions NE 427 4,909 32,683 10,553 48,572
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) U8 — IR B 2 7] (FfisE 35) 9,921 - - - 9,921
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &M B A &) (P 36) (1,086) (1,964) (8,511) (181) (11,742)
Transfer from investment properties & &R E Y% 1,906 - - - 1,906
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERE TR EYE (5,266) - - - (5,266)
Transfer from long-term deposits ~ EE B REFER 1,628 - - - 1,628
Disposals HE (1,516) (503) (1,276) (4,652) (7,947)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A 318 78,395 28,655 64,885 49,059 220,994
Accumulated depreciation ZIRE
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 518 (6,179) (18,111) (30,560) (16,384) (71,234)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ FRFTEHEITE (3,266) (1,057) (9,335) (11,837) (25,495)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEEREYFE 329 - - - 329
Disposal HeE 1,368 499 1,097 4,534 7,498
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEMBAE (H5E36) 473 - 7,482 33 7,988
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H (7,275) (18,669) (31,316) (23,654) (80,914)
Impairment HE
At 1 January 2021 and R20211E1A18 R

31 December 2021 202112 A318 - - (456) - (456)
Net carrying amount RRIERHE
At 1 January 2021, net of N2021E1 818

accumulated depreciation MR R E 66,202 8,102 10,973 26,955 112,232
At 31 December 2021, net of R2021612A318

accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 71,120 9,986 33,113 25,405 139,624
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. MERKREZ)
Leasehold Furniture Motor
Buildings  improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
By HENREE KEARETRE e At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTT ARETT ARBTTT ARETT ARBTTT

31 December 2020 20205 12A 318
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 #2020 1 A1H 29,368 19,840 36,558 20,891 106,657
Additions NE - 6,648 4,891 4,670 16,209
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKB AR 155 7 1,583 19,201 20,946
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT = = (85) (249) (334)
Transfer from investment properties &% 51X & ¥% 931 = = = 931
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZEEREYE (4,061) = = = (4,061)
Transfer from long-term deposits EEAREER 46,674 = = = 46,674
Disposals e = (968) (958) (1,174) (3,100)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 73,067 25,527 41,989 43,339 183,922
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A18 (3,474) (11,114) (25,700) (10,685) (50,973)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ FERFTEHEITE (3,094) (7,195) (5,932) (6,711) (22,932)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EBEZREYE 389 - - - 389
Disposals HeE = 198 1,069 960 2227
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FAME LA - - 3 52 55
At 31 December 2020 202012 A 318 (6,179) (18,111) (30,560) (16,384) (71,234)
Impairment RE
At 1 January 2020 and R2020F1A1BR

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H - - (456) - (456)
Net carrying amount EEEE
At 1 January 2020, net of M202061 818 -

accumulated depreciation HKk 2t E 25,894 8,726 10,402 10,206 55,228
At 31 December 2020, net of R2020%12F318 »

accumulated depreciation HKk 2t E 66,888 7,416 10,973 26,955 112,232
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

15. REWHE

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREFT

Carrying amount at 1 January W1 A1 BREREE 188,951 183,309
Additions NE 56 832
Transfer from owner-occupied property EEEEAME 5,643 5,045
Transfer to owner-occupied property ERZEgRAME (1,906) (931)
Disposal HE (5,830) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) & — M B A R (M FE36) (10,727) -
Net gain from fair value adjustments ANERER R FRE 1,825 696
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31 BREREE 178,012 188,951

Certain investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, the details of which are included in
note 16.

The Group’s investment properties are all situated in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company have
determined that all the investment properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property. The Group's investment properties were
revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the market approach, as at 31
December 2021. Each year, the Group’s property manager
and the directors decide, after approval from the audit
committee, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's property manager and directors
have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The Group's investment properties with a carrying value of
RMB98,964,000 (2020: RMB54,187,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as at
31 December 2021 (note 30).

ETREMFERBELEHMERETF =
77 HEFIBERHIEE 16

REBEREMELRF RN EE
AAREFCDRESMENEE - HERE
SRETHBREMESRBEME - 12021
F12A3 0 AEBENKEMERERS
BEALAERGEMTHEBRTEETHRE
AR QRN 2021F12 A 31 B AT G A#E
THHEET - BF  ASBEHOMELER
BEREREE QI EBRATERTINEBEE
MEaERNEEMENIINDHE - BBREER
EMSAE - B2 BUUMEEHEFEE
KF - REBMMMESEREEERFPHK
FREGBREETHER - BAEMREE
R RGBS REITRIN TR ©

R2021F 12318 AEBEREAEASAR
#98,964,000 7T (2020 & : A R # 54,187,000
TR EMERRE - UREERTALE
B —RZERTTRE (BIFE30) ©

FRASREEEAT e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWME &)
Fair value hierarchy NEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TREAAEEEEVENRTFEFERE
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: A

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

FAUTEER2021 512831 BN A FEHE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME  EATEHRE BEATTER
HNERE WABE WABE
(5—-18) (=) (B=[8) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%¥TR AR%®Tn AR%TxR

Recurring fair value ATIE B & F 1t
measurement for: N R
Commercial properties EEME - - 178,012 178,012
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
fEFALA T BIER 20205 12 A 31 HM A TEF 2
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERMYE  EAABRE BEANAER
HRIE W ABIE W ABE
(F—E) (B=E) (=) st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Recurring fair value ATIERRE T
measurement for: NFEFE -
Commercial properties [GEZ/ES - - 188,951 188,951
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

15. REME &)
NP EBR (&)

RAFE F-EBREX_BRZRALER
FEAENER  TEAFEAEBEAZ=
BN E =ERE L (20204 : &) -

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within PEENTEEBLHEE=GHN N EEE S
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BE -
2021 2020
20215 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 BEREE 188,951 183,309
Additions NS 56 832
Transfer from owner-occupied property EEEEAYE 5,643 5,045
Transfer to owner-occupied property RS g A E (1,906) (931)
Disposal HeE (5,830) =
Disposal of a subsidiary & —fE B AR (10,727) =
Net gain from fair value adjustments NP ERBEENWEFRE 1,825 696
Carrying amount at 31 December 712 A 31 BEREE 178,012 188,951

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the

AT RIREMFRGEEMBGEERT M MEER

key input to the valuation of investment properties: BEAZIBENTE :
Range
&E
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input 2021 2020
fEERTS EATAEHERABE 2021 F 2020 4F
Commercial properties  Direct comparison Market unit price 7-27 7-24
method (RMB/sg.m)
[EELZ/ES BEBUE M5 B ER
(ANREETL/F73K)

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally
similar change in the rent growth per annum and the discount

— MRS - B S EE R R
TIREET & F R RUREN LS
PED - HUREHEEEHED AR -

rate and an opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.

FRIAREEERAF
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

16. LEASE 16. HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings AREBRHLSEMANSEEFTERIAME
used in its operations. Leases of buildings generally have EE54 - BFHEMMBEE BN T 2E55F -

lease terms between 2 and 5 years.

(a) Right-of-use assets () fEAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEBFEREEE ZEAERFRE
and the movements during the year are as follows: R :

Buildings

BF

RMB'000

ARETT

As at 1 January 2020 7202051 A1 8 46,769

Additions INE 9,488

Depreciation charge FrEX T (23,050)

Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors KEEBEANFEMABBEES S (520)

As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 PR 2020F 12 A 31 H X% 2021 F1H1H 32,687

Additions INE 4,137

Depreciation charge FrEX T (10,287)

Disposal HE (12,287)

Decrease as a result of disposal of a subsidiary E & —Ef B A R mm S (3,885)

As at 31 December 2021 W2021%12 A31H 10,365
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16. LEASE (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

16. HE (&)
AEBEAEBA (&)
b) HEEE

movements during the year are as follows:

FAE B 2 SRS (5T AT B ARAT R
fufg M) REREBIT :

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January N1 A1TBZEEE 38,226 47,291
New leases MHE 4,069 6,982
Accretion of interest recognised FAATHERRFEIG N (HHFE8)
during the year (note 8) 1,315 3,507
Covid-19-related rent concessions B8 AR FE A A
from lessors HEeRR - (520)
Disposal HE (14,755) -
Decrease as a result of disposal o & — R B AR R4
of a subsidiary (4,651) =
Payment INES (11,383) (19,034)
As at 31 December 2021 202112 A 31 B2 REE 12,821 38,226
Analysed into: PRV
Current portion BRERER 9,944 30,033
Non-current portion JEBNER > 2,877 8,193

FRIAREEERAF
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A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

16. LEASE (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

16. HE (#®)
AEEEESEEA (&)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () MRERPHERNEERBEFIELAT

leases are as follows:

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFTT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEB BN S (MEE8) 1,315 3,507
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {f A& ENER 10,287 23,050
Expense relating to short-term leases and  E242 HiFH & K #4  FH &
other leases with remaining lease terms R 2019412 A31 Bk 2 Al
ended on or before 31 December 2019 e vk ) B Ath A8 B A A A B S2
(included in cost of sales) (Gt ASHERKAK) 4,996 919
Expense relating to leases of HREEEEHERFBMNRAY
low-value assets (included in Gt ATTEAX)
administrative expenses) 2,039 599
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R85 HER B A5 18,637 28,075
The Group as a lessor REBERHEA

The Group leases its properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms within five

AEERBEEHECHHEERDX - %F
MELERNFHARFIUARN - EHEH

years. The terms of the leases generally also require the BER—RTRERP X NRER °

tenants to pay security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

RBEHR - RIBEBS RIS ATFH
FHNTAEEEEHE  AEENARKEK
EHEERKFIREARENT

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 £

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET R ARET T

Within one year —F R 2,776 3,342
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFERLF(BREEMF) 1,506 6,250
4,282 9,592
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31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2020 M202051 A1 H

Cost and net carrying amount AN R AR TS E 248,315
Acquisition of subsidiaries s E A A 132,537
Exchange realignment & 5 & 6,135
Disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A (7,003)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 2020412 B31 H &% 202141 A1 HH
and 1 January 2021 PR 7R R BRTESHE 379,984
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) 1o i — BT /28 22 =] (B =% 35) 4,268
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEMTB A T (Mt 36) (81,610)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 7220214 12 A 31 B 89k 2~ 2 BE E % B 302,642

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment

testing:

° Ningbo property management service cash-generating
unit ("CGU A”")

° Nanning real estate agency cash-generating unit (“CGU
B")

° Guangdong property management service cash-
generating unit (“CGU C")

O Suzhou property management service cash-generating
unit ("CGU D”)
° Hangzhou property management service cash-

generating unit (“CGU E”)

. Huarui property management service cash-generating
unit (“CGU F")

° Others cash-generating units (“Others”)

B R (E =

BEREBWEMBSNRECHRETIIR
CEABM(REEEEM)) AERENR

Al -

s ERVEXEERGERESELBU(R
TELEMNA]

e HMERHERERSEABU(RE
ELEBEMB])

s ERVEEEBRGERESELBU(R
EELEMNC))

s HMNDEBEERBHESELSEU(R
EELEMND))

MM EEERGREELEM (TR
EELEBEMNE])

s ERYWEEBERBHESELEG(R
EELENF])

e HiREeEAFM([HEM])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

17. & (&)

BB ERIE ()

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215 2020 4F

128318 128318

CGUA BEEABMNA 101,083 101,083
CGUB e EESEMNB - 74,911
CGUC HEELEEMNC 83,034 83,034
CGUD WEELEMND 20,171 20,171
CGUE MEELEBEMNE 14,987 14,987
CGUF REEABMNF 37,637 37,637
Others EHh 49,011 51,442
305,923 383,265
Impairment VERIER (3,281) (3,281)
Total FEE 302,642 379,984

The recoverable amount of those cash-generating units has
been determined based on a current market value calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15%
and the cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2020: 15% and 2 %).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
cash-generating units for 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake an impairment testing of goodwill.

Budgeted revenue  The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the revenue from the
segment is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and
expected market development.

Budgeted operating The basis used to determine the values
expenses assigned is the cost of inventories
consumed, staff costs, and other
operating expenses. The values
assigned to the key assumptions reflect
past experience and management'’s
commitment to maintain its operating
expenses at an acceptable level.
Discount rates The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the
unit.

No impairment losses (2020: Nil) was recognised for year
ended 31 December 2021.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of the value in use of the cash-
generating units, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would
cause the carrying value, including goodwill, of the cash-
generating units to exceed the recoverable amount.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

17. & &)

RERERH (@)

STE 2021412 A31 B & 202012 A 31 B
ReELBNEERABEEREABRR - UT
R EMKIBELIR S RETER AETT
BEAEY: Bl E R

BE W BETE D RRE £ A Y s by TR
RMEERREZBEFA
FEMERNFHRA - 1
= H) P TR R RO B R iU e TR
HMSRE -

REFAXBE BARETHETEENELRR
ERAEAFEERA BT
AR EMEEFX - D
TEEBERWEERBRBE
R M EIBEAEREEE
FASTAE RS IR RIS KEE -

REIR =R PR RORG IR R R B AT RA R
R WRREANBHERSE
HEM R E R o

REBE2021F12A31 B ILFE - WEER
B EE (20205 © &) -

HERRBZEBNHRE

HEHERSELBM(EREEEDFERE
e - B ERENFEEMRER DR
BRRAEAFRENEHSEHERBEENR
MREELEMARAEBBE R KRESHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

18. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF

19.

178

PROPERTIES

18.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had deposits of
RMB 14,206,000 (2020: RMB15,634,000) in relation to the
acquisition of properties situated in Mainland China paid to

property developers. The Group paid RMB200,000 (2020:

RMB&,469,000) for acquisition of properties in 2021.

WEMEBFANARE

R2021F12A31 8 ' AEERYERER
WHIBAINFR B A ME - SR 2ZEBA
R #14,20600070 (20206 : A R ¥
15,634,00070) e 221 FAEBE X AR
# 200,000 7T (2020 4F : A R ¥ 6,469,000 7T)
AR -

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENRE
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFT
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 5,153 4,230
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: REFBESLOEMNFABHOT -
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H
Percentage of
P UTEENEA
ace of
Paid-up  registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
£ BREX EBEREXMLH Fre kR RER  AEIE IEXH
ERmaEBENERE RMB1,500,000  PRC/Mainland China 60 (a) 60 Provision of property
BB 27 ("Ningbo Disai”) management services
BERMBEEENE RS AR¥1,50000 B/ FERKM REMEERRY
BRAR ((ERER])
REMERDREMELEE RMB2,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 65 (b) 65 Provision of property
AR AH] (“Laibin Chantou”) management services
RETERTPRUMELEE  AREK2000000 HE/FERKM RENZERRY
BRAR ([ REER])

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENRE W)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRHFEPAAREENESZEDENTIFEREKR
information of the Group's joint venture that is not individually AR B2 B FE B R
material:
2021 2020
20214 2020 F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the year JE(EF A& & %5 H 2,824 2,595
Share of the joint ventures’ total ElEaE B2 E
comprehensive income 2,595 2,595
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ANEER AL P ERENAREE
investments in joint ventures 5,153 4,230
20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REFERBAINRE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTT
Share of net assets EIEBEFE 6,283 4,789

o7
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES Continued)

Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

31 December 2021

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

20.

REEE NTNIRE (&)
AEBBANTOEBENT :

2021%12H31H

Place of Percentage of
paid up  registration ownership interest  Principal
Name capital  and business attribute to the Group  activities
rEEEERARE
£ EREX BEREBLH BREAL TEEE
BMNBEESHRAR RMB7,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 40 Provision of sports venue
("Aoye Sports”) leasing services
BMNRXERERAR((RERE]) ARE7,0000007T  FE/HRERNM REBESHEERS
BN R By EER N RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 49 Provision of business
("Wuzhou Chengtou”) management services
BNTRERHRYEERAT AR¥1,0000007T  HE/HEAM REBREERE
([EMNER])
BN T£ERRENEEEERAH RMB500,000  PRC/Mainland China 49 Provision of business
("Suzhou Shengjian”) management Services
FNTXERERNEERERAR AR¥5000007 B/ FERKM REHEERRY
([FMNER])
NP RAEEREER AR RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 30 Provision of wholesale
services
MR REEREERAR AR™1,0000007  REL/RERH R B AR

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

TRHFANEE R E QBRI IEERIEAX

information of the Group's associates that are not individually KB R FE AR
material:
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE ARETET
Share of the associates’ profit for the year  F&{5 & B & A 7 7 )E 1,194 211
Share of the associates’ total FEGEEE A AR E WA
comprehensive income 1,194 211
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's  AN&EEIRE & A F1%E W AREE
investments in associates 6,283 4,789

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. Ht B EE
Acquired
property Software
management Customer and
contracts  relationships trademark Total
FREVEI R
EEEN EFHE% BHREE st
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2021: MR2021 1418 :
Cost IB#N 121,724 7,000 9,817 138,541
Accumulated amortisation Sy (57,148) (2,037) (3,756) (62,941)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 64,576 4,963 6,061 75,600
Cost at 1 January 2021, netof ~ 7202141 81 HAAK -
accumulated amortisation b Rt 64,576 4,963 6,061 75,600
Addition NE - - 2,547 2,547
Acquisition of a subsidiary U i — BB A 7
(note 35) (Pff=E35) - - 242 242
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) H & /&E A &) (ffsF 36) - (4,073) (1,378) (5,451)
Amortisation provided FRFTEHEEE
during the year (10,324) (890) (1,763) (12,977)
At 31 December 2021 202112 H31H 54,252 - 5,709 59,961
At 31 December 2021: R2021F12H31H :
Cost AN 121,724 - 10,406 132,130
Accumulated amortisation S (67,472) - (4,697) (72,169)
Net carrying amount REFE 54,252 - 5,709 59,961

g |



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

21. EtEREEE &)

Acquired
property Software
management Customer and
contracts  relationships trademark Total
FRENSYIR
EREH LIS HHRER st
31 December 2020 202012 A31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2020: 20201 A1 8 :
Cost [B#N 121,724 7,000 9,460 138,184
Accumulated amortisation ZEtE Y (45,188) (1,556) (2,264) (49,008)
Net carrying amount BREEE 76,536 5,444 7,196 89,176
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of ~ 74202041 B 1 B 7N -
accumulated amortisation Nk Rt #s 76,536 5,444 7,196 89,176
Addition B - - 357 357
Amortisation provided FNFTRH RS
during the year (11,960) (481) (1,492 (13,933)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 64,576 4,963 6,061 75,600
At 31 December 2020: MR 202012 A31H :
Cost (DN 121,724 7,000 9,817 138,541
Accumulated amortisation S (57,148) (2,037) (3,756) (62,941)
Net carrying amount BRI FE(E 64,576 4,963 6,061 75,600
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22 ELEBEEE (AE)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FREEFRBEERBENEESWOT :

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets ELEBIREE
2021
0215
Allowance Losses Depreciation
for doubtful available allowance in
debts on trade Fairvalue ~ for offsetting  Impairment excess of Other
Lease and other change of ~ against future of related payable
liabilities  receivables FVTPL profits inventories  depreciation  and accruals Total
BARYRE
R RAVE lsis Fiteril ]
BhEE  HABEN ARAE fEN  AfEARE
HERE  HRERE  0TESD NESR FERE BREFE  RETER Eh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEMTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTZ  ARETR  ARMTR  ARWTR

At January 2021 RON%E1R18 9,557 45,801 168 - - 1,530 1,51 58,567

Credited/(charged) to the ERRNERKITA/ (1)

statement of profit or loss (FrzE1)

during the year (note 11) (5,189) 8,811 - 2,550 219 381 220 6,992
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWHBAR (1,163) (5,298) - - - - - (6,461)
At December 2021 RN E12A3E 3,205 49,314 168 2,550 219 1911 1,731 59,098
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

22.

EEHBEEE (8E) @)

===

2021
2021 %
Fair value Withholding
change of tax on
investment Intangible undistributed Right-of-
properties assets earnings use assets Total
REMEN MR E
AFELD BlREE BAENH EREEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AR¥TL AR¥TR AR¥TT AR¥TR
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 /18 (4,116) (18,214) (2,512) (8,172) (33,014)
Charged/(credited) tothe  FRPMERR
statement of profitorloss 31K /(5 A)
during the year (note 11) GEX (583) 3,071 (1,379) 4,608 5,717
Credited to other AR MZERE
comprehensive income (186) - - - (186)
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WEE—EIH B AR
(note 35) (B3E35) - (265) - - (265)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLRR
(note 36) GEXY; 1,819 - - 971 2,790
At 31 December 2021 R2021% 128318 (3,066) (15,408) (3,891) (2,593) (24,958)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

31 December 2021 2021912 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22. BEEMRIEBEE (B6)®)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets RLEBIEEE
2020
2020%
Losses Depreciation
available  Allowance for  allowance in
Fairvalue  foroffsetting ~ doubtful debts excess of
Lease change of  against future on trade related  Other payables
liabilities FVTPL profits receivables  depreciation  and accruals Total

RATE AR
sTARA ARNE  BERNFE  BRABNE  AHERNHE
RERE  AVEED MER  ORERE  NBRERE  RESER it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  AREBTE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R00F1A1E 11,823 - 16,564 42,514 1,151 - 72,052

Credited/(charged) tothe ~ FRRBHRHA/
statement of profitorloss ~ (F1B) (Fit311)

during the year (note 11) (2.266) 168 (16,564) 4,467 379 15N (12,305)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHIB A - - = 1,346 = = 1,346
Disposal of a subsidiary HeE—EHBAR = = = (2,526) = = (2,526)
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12 A318 9,557 168 - 45,801 1,530 1,51 58,567

a1 (5



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

22

EEREEE (88 @)

===

2020
2020F
Fair value Withholding
change of tax on
investment Intangible undistributed Right-of-
properties assets earnings use assets Total
REMEN RMEAE
NTEZE EVEE AR fEREEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 8 (3.593) (20,744) (2.511) (11,692) (38,540)
Charged/(credited) tothe  FRPMERR
statement of profitorloss 31K /(5 A)
during the year (note 11) GEN) (180) 3,070 - 3,520 6410
Credited to other stARMZ B
comprehensive income (343) - - - (343)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt E A A - (540) (1) - (541)
At 31 December 2020 R20206 127318 (4,116) (18,214) (2512 (8,172) (33,014)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

22.

B3R

R EE

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

EEBIREE (BE) 4@

)

EJNEMME FTEERAREENAR
ERMBEARRPEE - AT RRF TR

B A BAREBELTH GRS

#r

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE TR R IER A
consolidated statement of financial position RIER B E EFE 56,506 50,395
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the  FA4RE BIFSHR RIERHY
consolidated statement of financial position EERTE B EF5E (22,366) (24,842)
34,140 25,553

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of

the following item:

ARATEE ERNWELERERE :

31 December 31 December

2021

2021 %
12A31H 1

RMB’000

2020
2020 4F
2A31H
RMB‘000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Tax losses and temporary differences AEROBIBEE TR EERE

not recognised

125,088

94,867

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3

187



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22 EEFHEBEEE (BE)#)

(Continued)

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
arising in Mainland China could be carried forward for a
period of five years to offset against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the above item as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above item can be
utilised.

At 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities of RMB3,891,000
(2020:RMB2,512,000) have been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. Pursuant to a resolution of the
board of directors of the Company, these subsidiaries would
not distribute any earnings derived up to 31 December 2015
and 75% of the earnings from 1 January 2016 onwards will not
be distributed. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised was RMB192,073,000 (2020:
RMB186,557,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

23. INVENTORIES 23. 78

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Raw materials R 5,507 11,820
Work in progress EER 21,156 -
Finished goods B & 24,473 =
51,136 11,820
Less: Impairment allowance B R ERE (875) =
50,261 11,820

The movements in the impairment allowance are as follows: WMERENESHNT
2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
At beginning of year FH - -
Impairment loss, net REEEFE (875) =

(875) -

ransARIEZ 189



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. EZEWRIEA

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021 % 20204

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Trade receivables B 5 WA 530,069 490,156
Less: Impairment allowance R ERE (119,556) (115,954)
410,513 374,202
Trade receivables mainly arise from property management 2 5 P U R TE I B ) R RS L A
services and other businesses income. The credit period is P - EEH—BAE—EA  HAXE
generally one month, extending up to three months for major SLEE=@AR - BAEEHESSEEE
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Eo AEEERYHE R ESERKIEESR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding FREE o Jp S8 ST (= B B fr 0P UK E B A
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise B LM ESREEBTHRS MR
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior EHEERERGERE — K o &R T
management and credit limits attributed to customers are MRAEEBSEWSIERENZEEE S
reviewed once a year. In view of the aforementioned and the TREEERE  ALTEEAEHhEER

fact that the Group's trade and bills receivables relate to a o B EIKIEREREZE AR S -

large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the date of demand note, net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

. BESEWEE2)

RBEHR - REFBANEBRFENES
FEUGRIRHIBR B R BB R DT ¢

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021 % 20204

12HA31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETFT

Within 1 year 19FR 308,857 243,975
1to 2 years 1822F 74,198 61,700
Over 2 years BiE2F 27,458 68,527
410,513 374,202

The movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables are

B HREGIRBREEOESIT

as follows:
2021 2020
20215 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
At beginning of year F1] (115,954) (99,219)
Impairment loss, net BEEE T (19,044) (16,989)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B A A (5,546) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 19,250 254
Amount written off as uncollectible s AN AT Y B Y & 58 1,738 -
(119,556) (115,954)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

REW|E B AR B BREETRED T -
U EEMEEER - BEXNERARR
UBERRA 2 A% P 0 80 A I B H A &
EE (NEPER) - At B RSN R g
ER - BEERERNHREEHAISNERSB
EEH - BRI RARREEREERANE
BRAFER - —KRMNE - BB REKFEN
BHEE - FRBAXRNREINITEE R
T UAMEH o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. ESRWRIE )
Set out below is the information about the credit risk IR ANEB (G ARG EEAENE S E
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision WA EERBER
matrix:
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12H831H
Less than 1to2 Over
1 year years 2 year Total
DR1E 182%F BiBE2F st
Expected credit loss rate TBHEERBEE 7% 16% 75% 23%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREI42E(ARET L) 333,720 88,519 107,830 530,069
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) ~ TBHiEEEE (ARE T L) 24,863 14,321 80,372 119,556
As at 31 December 2020 MR 202012 B 31 H
Less than 1to2 Over
1 year years 2 year Total
PR E 1E2F A2 F et
Expected credit loss rate JEHEEEEX 13% 40% 35% 24%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREA&E (AREFT) 281,887 102,468 105,801 490,156
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  TBHAfzEEE(ARETIT) 37,912 40,768 37,274 115,954
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FE{JZhE R it EW =18

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021 F 20204

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Payment on behalf of customers to RERBEPRAREFEHER

utility suppliers 80,335 76,439
Deposits paid to utility suppliers MAREEHER RS 53,606 53,366
Other receivables H b e I FRIA 309,511 138,307
Prepayments BN REA 98,334 65,315
Other tax recoverable E fth AU [ 718 - 879
541,786 334,306
Less: Impairment allowance o RE R (40,804) (30,736)
Total fEt 500,982 303,570

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

Hit MR ERBIRRENESIT

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 %

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREFT

At beginning of year REF) (30,736) (37,744)
Impairment loss, net (note 7) BB EBFEE (MH3E7) (12,388) (5,848)
Write-off T35 - 6,082
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMEAR 2,320 6,774
(40,804) (30,736)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent a
performance bond, bidding deposits for contracts and loans

to employees. Expected credit losses are estimated by

applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical

loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect

the current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31
December 2021 ranged from 3% to 30%. (2020: 3% to 30%).

GREEMERZEEELBARES &
WBIRE RMEEER - BHEBEBEDNZ
EREEMNES BIELEERBBEREMY
2 o BB RIS 1R TR A R ML E AiTAR S K
RAREEAR R (L0 E ) B9 FER o 722021 F
12A318 - EAMEEENT3I%ZE30%
(20204F : 3% = 30%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. EBRAVPEFABEZENEREE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021 2020 4F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Bank financial product RITEEE M 750 =
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFFABZNE R EE

profit or loss (a) 13,326 15,008

At end of year FR 14,076 15,008

(a)

194

The Company had put option to dispose of the acquired 51%
equity interest in EPHIEIE B 354 1R A IR A 7)("Huihuang
Property”) and EFAIEIEFHE R RS B R 2 7](“Huihuang
Real Estate”) to their non-controlling equity holder in three
tranches prior to the year of 2022. The fair value of the option
would be adjusted based on the future financial performance
of Huihuang Property and Huihuang Real Estate in 2019, 2020
and 2021. The option was classified as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2020. The put
options were exercised to dispose of the Group’s equity
interests in Huihuang Property and Huihuang Real Estate
during year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 60%
equity interest in Guangdong Jindun to its non-controlling
equity holder. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Guangdong
Jindun in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The option was classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 51%
equity interest in Guangdong Huarui to the non-controlling
equity holder. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Guangdong
Huarui in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The option was classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 70%
equity interest in Guangdong Xunhua to the non-controlling
equity holder. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Huihuang
Property and Huihuang Real Estate in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The
option was classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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AACIEEREEARE - ATR2022F 51D =
A TFREAZELEEABREEXE
HARBERAG ([BEBE ) MEMEE
EEZARESERAR(BEEHE])
S1% KRR #E FIEIERERIT A A - BIRE
NFEEHBR 20194 + 2020 6 5 2021 F 1% R
BEBEERBEEMENRKMERET
PAFHEE o HARERY 20204F 12 A 31 H D $E AR
AFEFABENEREE - ROHED
RELE 2021 4512 A 31 B I FEITERHE
BEAHEASERNBEEXERBERIE
HORR#EE o

ARB ARG - LA SRR 2+
B AL E TS B E R S & 60% H AR AE -
B R AE A A 5 2020 £F - 2021 £ }2 2022
FIRBERSENRRIERIE T AR -
HARE 7R 2021 €E R 20204E 12 AN B A ¥ A
BRAFEFABENSRHEE -

AATHER RO - AR
BEALEKRENERERS1%HARE -
B IR HE N SEAE S 7 2020 € ~ 2021 4F % 2022
AR BB R EIR AR RIS R IR T AFE -
HARE 722021 65} 2020F 12 31 H D A
BAFEFABENEREE -

AR BEAREERE - AR IEE AR S
B A& BT U S B9 B EE 70% H AR AE -
B I HE N SEE G 7 2020 5 ~ 2021 4F % 2022
FIRRERAEN R R ERIE T AR -
HA #E 722021 FF ) 2020F 12 A31H D 8 &
BRAFEFABSHNSHEE °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

27. RERREEEY

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215 2020 4F

12H31H 12HA31H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Cash and bank balances IRE MIRIT4 436,464 487,236
Time deposits TE B R - 8,537
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 436,464 495,773

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB427,657,000 (2020: RMB490,849,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Group collects deposits from certain community residents
to establish daily repair and maintenance funds in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.

All of the deposits collected are required to be kept in
designated bank accounts under the name of the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group though the deposits collected and
the related interest income belong to the community
residents. Pursuant to the property management agreements
between the Group and the community residents, the
withdrawal and use of the funds are subject to approval by
the community residents. As the monies maintained for daily
repair and maintenance funds are not controlled by the Group,
they are not recorded as bank balances by the Group. As at 31
December 2021, RMB21,902,000 (2020: RMB19,489,000) was
kept in the daily repair and maintenance funds on behalf of the

community residents.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The cash and bank balances and pledged
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

RBEHR » REBUARBHENRS R
&S EYWAAREE4L27,657,0007T (20204 -
AR #490,849,0007T) - AREETTRI LA B A
RAEMER R - AR E A INE
BRI RAEE SERMETERTE © &
EERESBEREETTINEESNIETE
AR SHMEY -

AEBERBEPEMERRAERAE THER
FREERS - WRIABRERREES -

BEFMWERS REEAFBRATIBILEE
RA#EE - FBAMRERSHAENASEER
BB ARMBETAETRITERE - BIE
AEFEHBERIIAVEEERZ I8
BRFEAESAGLREERIE - AR
EBEHEERREESHIEIERE BT
Hll - MR AEBRESRARITAR o 722021
FNANA - EREHEBERESARE
21,902,0007T (20204F : AR#19,489,0007T)
BARBHERREES -

BARSERG BETERAE LB FIE
BEFIE - B e RBTRBREEHBITE
BT T B ST 2018 40 SRAR I (S BB E 1048
7 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 R R P 5E

31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EZREARIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the REREHAR » IR ERHTERNE ZER K
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: TEHEEER ST -
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Within 60 days 60BN 84,462 60,596
Over 60 days and within 180 days A 60H X180 HA 4,137 3,650
Over 180 days and within 365 days HBim 180 H & 365 HIA 2,236 3,967
Over one year Bl —F 5,557 4,144
96,392 72,357
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally B ENFTIBATTER —HBRI0ENH
settled on terms of 30 to 90 days. nEE -
The fair values of trade payables approximate to their carrying HAAREE EBEERE - HE S EMNRENA
amounts due to their relatively short term maturity. T EEAREERE -
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. EHbME(EIE R ESHE A
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F
12A31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ftzF AR%T R ARETTT
Contract liabilities aHak a 261,505 123,359
Receipts on behalf of community MAREERLRER
residents for utilities R U= 266,526 208,079
Received in advance U A 6,434 6,167
Accruals fEst &M 151,944 177,017
Other payables Hub e A 37,006 40,983
Deposits received 2 iz e 68,296 65,429
Amounts due to non-controlling equity  FE{HHT B A FISEHEARRE 2
holders of subsidiaries A AR FIE 61,848 164,677
Other tax payables H At 1R 36,492 50,523
890,051 836,234
Non-current portion (note 31) FEBNEAED o (PHEE31) (57,953) -
832,098 836,234

1 96 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s amounts due to non-
controlling equity holders of subsidiaries included
outstanding consideration payables in respect of the Group's
acquisition of the equity interests in the subsidiaries from
those non-controlling equity holders which are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

Except for other payables for an option and amounts due to
non-controlling equity holders of Huihuang Property and
Huihuang Real Estate as at 31 December 2020, other payables
are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three
months.

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 are as follows:

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

29. HttEAREREER @)

R2021F12A31 8 REEEMNKHBA A
IEIERES A ANTEREAEERZE
IR A ABERNT B & Rl AE m FE
RREENRE  EAEER . 28 RTER
TE B FHARR o

B EL th HA 2 < 3R TE I 74 2020 F 12 A 31 B
FEBEEXMNEEEEFTERERES
AHFRIESN  EbEMAZEARE - FHEH
RA=@A -

(@) R2021412 4318 &2020%12 5318 &
BHREFEET

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Advances received from customers BEWREF 2
Sale of goods and installation services HE G MR LERSE 105,333 =
Property management services (note 6) MEESIBRA (Mf3E6) 156,172 123,359
Total contract liabilities BB ERE 261,505 123,359
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver AHBaE &%ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁuﬁiﬁ
property management services and sales of elevators and EBRETEREMBRI B -

installation services.
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. sTESRITREMMER

198

BORROWINGS
2021 200
20215 10%
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 %) Maturity RVB000
ERAE (%) R ARMTR  EEAE® A ARETR
Current il
Lease liabilities (note 16 (o) HEAE (W 160) 4.75-9.06 2022 9,944 475906 2021 30033
Bank loans — secured BITET—HEM 4.48 2022 10,000 38-5.85 2021 33,000
Bank loans — unsecured BITET — BEMW 3.75-6.00 2022 29,950 = = =
Current portion of long term bank ~~ REVF{TE HA AL LS 3.75-6.00 2022 1,147 522 2021 1,000
loans — secured —E#Hf
Current portion of long term bank ~~ REIB{TE FAAHLH - HIBOR*+15 2021 19.952
loans — unsecured — B
51,041 83985
Non-current £
Lease liabilities (note 16 (o) HEAE (M 160) 4.75-9.06  2023-2025 2,877 475906 2022-2025 8193
Bank loans — secured RITER—EHH 3.88-450  2023-2029 14,859 520-665  2022-2024 25,200
Bank loans — unsecured FITER — EHH - HBORH15  202-2003 119
17,736 33512
68,777 117497
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 755 s B

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. sTESRTREMBER &)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

31 December 31 December

2021
2021 %

2020
2020 4F

12HA31H 12A31H

RMB’'000

RMB'000

AR®TRE ARBTT

Analysed into: PITR

Bank loans repayable: ARATEREENRITER -
Within one year or on demand —FRIZER 41,097 53,952
Beyond two years, inclusive MEL F(BIEFEME) 14,859 25,319
55,956 79,271

Other borrowings repayable: AR AN BARR (B E A E A fE 3K
Within one year or on demand —FRIRERK 9,944 30,033
Beyond two years, inclusive MEFE F (BIEEME) 2,877 8,193
12,821 38,226
68,777 117,497

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's bank loans were secured by the pledges of the
Group's assets with carrying values at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020 as follows:

FTESRITREMERE)

AREBRIRITE AR AL B 7 2021 F
12 831 B %2020 12 A 31 B N 3BREEH
BEERER

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021 % 2020 4F

12A31H 12A31H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

kg ARMTRT ARBTT

Investment properties REME 15 98,964 54,187
Property and equipment EINE ] 5,587 =
104,551 54,187

In addition, a director of a subsidiary guaranteed certain of
the Group's bank loans of up to RMB4,606,000 (2020:
RMB7,750,000) in aggregate as at the end of the reporting
period at nil consideration.

As at 31 December 2021, all the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in RMB.

The bank borrowing balances of the Group bore interest at
floating rates, except for bank borrowings of RMB44,950,000
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB58,200,000) that bore interest

at fixed rates.

The carrying amounts of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings at floating rates approximate to their fair values.

200 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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AN —HHBARMESENREHRAE
REERAEEETRITERALEARK
4,606,000 (20204 © AR#7,750,0007T) °

R2021F12 A31 B » NEBEFRA B A
AREEHE -

AEBORITERERRIBN XL -
72021912 A 31 B AR #44,950,0007T (2020
F : AR ¥ 58,200,0007T ) &) f& 5k 2 [E £ A
ETBERIN
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31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

31. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES 31. Htt R FIR
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 2020 4F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Contract liabilities EHBaE 57,953 =
Amount due to a non-controlling equity FES — MM B A & FEIE R - 18,589
holder of a subsidiary EamrB ANIA
57,953 18,589
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BRA&
Shares % 10
Nominal
value of
HKDO.01
each
Number of BREE
ordinary 0.01%&T
shares HKD'000
TEREE FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 R2021F1 1B K
202112 A 31 H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAER :
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 R221F1 A1 B R
2021912 A 31H 854,550,000 8,545
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T AREFIT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE
Ordinary shares IR
At 1 January »1A1H 7,082 6,745
Shares issued 2217 % - 337
At 31 December M12A31H 7,082 7,082
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 83 of
the financial statements.

(a)

202

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the PRC
subsidiaries’ articles of association, each subsidiary
registered in the PRC as a domestic company is
required to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net
profit as determined under generally accepted
accounting principles of The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC GAAP") after offsetting any prior years’
losses to the statutory surplus reserve. When the
balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the capital after these usages.

Other reserve

The amount represented the contribution from Mr. Liu
Jian, the controlling shareholder and director of the
Company, through transferring his 40% equity interest
in Guangdong Zhong Ao, a subsidiary of the Company,
to Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang Bing, both being
directors of the Company and employees of
Guangdong Zhong Ao in 2011.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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33. f#fB
AEERANFEMEEFENRFRENSER
HEPRUBBRREBEANGCREED
RET| -

(a)

EERE
BRABEARERDENEQFAE
BER SRETHELRRNERT
B P 2 RIZEAS B DA TE AR (1A
PEARAMBEAZR S RAU(HER
B ER D MEE) (R EMEFES
BR)MI0%BEEXTRAGREE - It
EREHREEREANS0%E - B
BRERBEIE M E < AT R B IEY
HEFERIBRER - A ATE
BRFRENESRNZERERBAR
FrE& MG B A 25%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Special reserve

The special reserve mainly represent (i) capital
contribution amounting to RMB258,000 by Mr. Liu Jian
and non-controlling equity holders for the transfer of
75% and 25% equity interests in BN BiE SR AR
‘A7) ("Guangzhou Maiyue”) to the Group in April 2015
through structured contracts at nil considerations; (ii)
further capital contribution to Guangzhou Maiyue made
by Mr. Liu Jian amounting to RMB750,000 in 2015; (iii)
the obligation in relation to the acquisition of the
remaining 30% equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng
recognised in the amount of RMB80,630,000, which was
decreased by RMB41,895,000 due to further acquisition
of the 7.5%, 7.5%, 7.5% and 7.5% equity interests in
Zhejiang Yongcheng at 26 July 2017, 22 June 2018 ,3
July 2019 and 7 July 2020, respectively; (iv) additional
interests in EMAEREEEZFRAF (“Guangzhou
Shangye”) acquired by the Group from a non-
controlling equity holder in 2019, with the difference
between the consideration paid and the additional
share of net assets in Guangzhou Shangye as acquired
by the Group amounting to RMB2,111,000 being
transferred to the special reserve; and (v) the difference
between the then fair value and carrying value of 49%
equity interest in Ningbo Yongdu amounting to
RMB1,009,000 recognised at date of acquisition of
Guangzhou Nuodeng in 2021.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arises from change in use
from an owner-occupied property to an investment
property.

(c)

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

33. #E )

1Bl AR

BRI = 248 ) 2015F4 A 212 5%
EREEREERFEASBEBES
(e85 E AR ¥ 258,0007T ¢ LAMEA
SEHEZENEUEERBEARAA
([ BB |)75% 2 25% I HE + (i)2015
FRARLEERMEMNBEBITEARE
750,000 7T  (jii) 7 7R B8 pA WL B AT )L 5K B
#47F 30% P A & 1T A R85 80,630,000
T Hep ER20175E7 268 - 2018
F6H228 201997 A3H K& 2020 F
7R78 5 BB YEE AT KA 7.5%
7.5% * 7.5% . 7.5% W #E o > AR
41,895,0007T : (iv) A20194F + &K &
m—BIEERERTE AR EMNS
HEXBEARARA(EMNEED D
EMER - ENREAENEENE
EFEMNNEBMBENEINGD 2
BHZZARKE2111,000 TEEHE
BERIRE A+ & (v) 2 2021 SR U B & M1 56
B E TR A BE R K # 49% IR /O ' B
A E B AR T E Z= &8 A R 1,009,000
=

EEEMEE
AEEHRBERERANENAREE
REBAMEMESE -

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 34. BFEEARFERERNMRTHER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING B I 2 F
INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non- AEEHEAEAFIERERNME R R FE
controlling interests are set out below: ;T -
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
Percentage of equity interest held by IR RE R AT IAE B D L

non-controlling interests:

Huihuang Property BIEES - 49%
Huihuang Real Estate PEIE B b B - 49%
Suzhou House Construction BmMEE 34% 34%
2021 2020

2021 & 2020 4F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE ARKTE

Profit for the year allocated to DEEZEIFERE R FEAFE
non-controlling interests:

Huihuang Property BIEE X 1,723 2,181
Huihuang Real Estate BB IR B 3 EE 4,667 2,185
Suzhou House Construction BRINEE 8,252 6,356

Accumulated balances of non-controlling RIRE B HA IR e ) R 5T 4554
interests at the reporting date

Huihuang Property EIEE - 6,333
Huihuang Real Estate BEAE 5 i A - 18,239
Suzhou House Construction BINEE 36,374 28,122
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests.

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 755 s B

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

4. FEEAFEREZNHOEE

LI PNGIE )

PR & BRI A IS -

TRHGAEEERIERERON B R FH
BRI ER -

Suzhou

House

Construction

BEMNER

RMB’000

2021 2021 F AR®T R
Revenue W %5 160,039
Total expenses bk (135,767)
Profit for the year FRAE 24,272
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREBAETE 24,272
Current assets RBEE 181,287
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,730
Current liabilities MEAE (82,530)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE -
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEEMEIR SRS FEE 18,719
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEFSHFAARSREFE (3,169)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BMEEHTARSREFHE (6,548)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBFEYIEINFE 9,002
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

4. BEERFEZERESNBHEE
VRl NGITE ),

206

INTERESTS (Continued)

Huihuang Huihuang Suzhou House
Property Real Estate Construction
BEEX BERME HNER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 2020 ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue Wiz 106,747 86,909 181,727
Total expenses gt (102,295) (82,450) (163,031)
Profit for the year FRFHE 4,452 4,459 18,696
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBAETE 4,452 4,459 18,696
Current assets MEEE 36,632 56,646 176,038
Non-current assets FRBEE 32,332 11,310 2720
Current liabilities mEaE (52,439) (35,201) (95,145)
Non-current liabilities ErREERE = (6,605) (900)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BeEB(MA)/ FMERERETE
operating activities (5,370) 17,092 42,142
Net cash flows used in investing activities REABHMARE RS TR (619) - (863)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REZYFMAREREFE (2,000) (16,502) =
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRASSENRD) / EINFE
cash equivalents (7,989) 590 4,279
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The major acquisitions of subsidiaries accounted for as
business combinations not under common control are set out
as follows:

In December 2020, the Group acquired 100% of equity
interests in Guangzhou Nuodeng from an independent third
party at a consideration and in exchange for a 49% equity
interest of a subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition was
completed in January 2021. Guangzhou Norden is engaged
in sale of elevators and the provision of elevator installation
services. The acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy to expand its market share of property management
operation in the PRC.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of all

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

35. ¥%56t

ANRIIMERE A O TR & BEGIR M B A
AR EEWBHIINT

2020612 - ARBENURERBILE=
FURBE BN B R 2 IBAE - NRERAREE
— B A A149% B AR #E o W iE L 2021 4F 1
A7 - BMNEBEREEHIEEWIREEH
THIRIE - BRI AEERAEFTERY
XEEEBMBHBEREHN—D -

PR B0 PR B BB 2 RO U B Ry I 28R

the subsidiaries acquired as at the dates of acquisition were EEHBEOHAFEDT
as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
W BB R RERR Y
AFE
Total
#Et
RMB’000
AREFTT
Property and equipment EISE ] 9,921
Other intangible assets HivmEEE 242
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R IE R EWEE 17,151
Inventories e 24,806
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{3IH - #&2& K& E b EUKIE 122,657
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 444
Trade payables B ENTIA (35,124)
Other payables and accruals H e AN /0B M B R B B (122,771)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &1 B8R 1T K H At (13,253)
Financial assets designated as at fair value BERATESFABRNEREE 790
through profit or loss

Deferred tax liabilities RIETIA R G (265)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAFEENFHAEEFEER 4,598
Non-controlling interests AR (1,866)
Goodwill on acquisition g e 4,268
7,000
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35. ¥E¥&0t @
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of all Fris BE My BT A B B A Bl AU EE B BARY ] 5% B!
the subsidiaries acquired as at the dates of acquisition were EEHBENAFEWT : (&)

as follows: (Continued)

Guangzhou
Norden
BMNHEE
RMB'000
ARETFT
Satisfied by: ATINAAZAT
Non-controlling interest FEFERRHE 5,991
Special reserve el ] 1,009
7,000
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of BN E—RNELRNEREER
the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: DITET
Cash and bank balances acquired BUWEEIR € MIRTTHE &R 444
The fair values of property and equipment and other V3 R A DA R BT 8 E R R B BRRY A
intangible assets as at the date of acquisition amounted to B9 5l & AR %9921,000T & A K #
RMB9,921,000 and RMB242,000, respectively, the book values 242000 EFREEES NI AARE
of which were RMB8,966,000 and RMB 136,000, respectively. 8,966,000 7T K A R 136,000 7T °
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be WEE R BRI HBFEE -
deductible for income tax purposes.
Since the acquisition, Guangzhou Norden contributed BUREBEE - BMFEEREE 2021 F12 A 31
RMB43,571,000 to the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 BEFEEMAEEER K AR
December 2021. 43,571,0007T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the HEGERERT#ETT - REBRBARNMWEEE
period, the revenue of the Group for the period would have A AR ¥ 1,872,740,000 7T ©

been RMB1,872,740,000.
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35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of all
the subsidiaries acquired as at the dates of acquisition were
as follows: (Continued)

As part of the purchase agreement, contingent consideration
is payable, dependent on the amount of profit before tax of
Guangzhou Nuodeng during year of 2021, 2022, and 2023.
No initial amount was recognised. The result was determined
using the discounted cash flow model and is within Level 3
fair value measurement. The consideration is due for final
measurement and payment to the former shareholders on 30
June 2024. At the date of approval of these financial
statements, no further significant changes to the
consideration were expected.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair value
measurement of the contingent consideration are as follows:

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

35. ¥ 86t

P B B0 T B BB 2 RO U B Ay T 2R
BESEBENQATENT : (&)

EBEERZEN—Hn  AXMKBRE

BT BN 55 & 5 2021 £~ 2022 4F N 2023 F
R ADGE R M E o WERERVIIASEE ° %
ERTIVRABMIBIRSREEAEBEE  BE3
BAVETEEHE - RERIBFETER

B A 2024 6 B 30 B XA FRIARE o

WHEM#W%ﬁ%ZE% BEHTASHA
BEHE—FSEAE

IRREZ R FHEFENERTABREMGE
BWABBLT

2022 2023
2022 2023 F
RMB’"000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREETIT

Projected profit before tax of BN B EIBETBR AR A
Guangzhou Nuodeng 4,100 4,158
Discount rate BHIR & 15.28% 15.28%

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries which mainly include the 51%
equity interest in Huihuang Property and Huihuang Real
Estate for an aggregate consideration of RMB37,521,000.

36. HERBLQH

REZE2021F12A3NBIEFE - AEEH
EETHEBRAR  FEREREREXENE
BEHMENS%NKRE BREAARY
37,521,000 7T °

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of those

36. HEKE AT (&)

subsidiaries disposed of during the year on their respective AIMEERBEMNEREDT :

dates of disposals were as follows:

REEFERHERREFALEXZSHEL

2021
2021 F
RMB’ 000
ARBT R
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE -
Property and equipment IE Y E L] 3,754
Investment properties KREWE 10,727
Other intangible assets EmEpEE 5,451
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,885
Goodwill e 81,610
Long-term deposits REFER 680
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE &= 5,490
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHEER 7,173
Trade receivables 2 Z FEWRIR 67,246
Prepayments and other receivables FEAHFRIA [ E At FE MR IR 60,125
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A FE AR S REE 2,461
Inventories FE 994
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T RIRTT REAMERK (16,400)
Lease liabilities MEAE (4,651)
Trade and bills payables E ZIER A R ER 2B (9,162)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E Ath FE T RIR (42,150)
Tax payable JERTTRIE (20,315)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE (1,819)
Non-controlling interests FEPRRSHE 51 (30,846)
124,253
Asset revaluation reserve BESMFHE (1,551)
122,702
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KKT B QR EE (9,821)
112,881
Satisfied by ATHI A XA
Other receivable H fth pE I8 35,853
Other payable waived BEA R B FE T 5RIE 69,360
Cash B& 7,668
112,881
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMIEB AR (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BALE—ZXHMBRARIZIREMIREEED
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: R AFREADITIT
2021
20214
RMB’ 000
AR®T T
Cash consideration HERE 7,668
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHER S MRS &% (7,173)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRLEHNBRARNERES R
respect of the disposal of a subsidiaries ReFBYRNFHE 495
37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. ZRERTREBRMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEFRERS
During the year, the carrying amounts of trade TN B 5 RIGRIANRIEM AR
receivables and prepayments and other receivables Hin B RIBENREECIERSKEY
were offset as payments for acquisition of properties ENNHEBHRARY,628,0007T
and payments of RMB1,628,000 (2020: RMB46,674,000). (20204 : AR 46,674,0007T ) F LA
A o

|
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. REREREBKRMEE @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEITELEENE
activities
Interest-
bearing
Lease bank Other
liabilities borrowings payable
HEEE FEHRTER HttESRE
RMB’' 000 RMB’' 000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®T R ARETT
At 1 January 2021 R2021FE1 A1 H 38,226 79,271 67,866
Changes from financing MERTREMEL
cash flows G (10,068) (20,168) -
New leases g 4,069 - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary It — R B A - 13,253 -
Disposal HE (14,755) - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMERA R (4,651) (16,400) (69,360)
Interest expense (note 8) AERMZ (MIFES) 1,315 3,569 1,494
Interest paid classified as ENMES RS
operating cash flows 4T UKTE 57 (1,315) (3,569) -
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12 831 H 12,821 55,956 -
Interest-
bearing
Lease bank Other
liabilities borrowings payable
HEBE FERITER EMEMNZIA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTIT ARET T
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 47,291 130,535 85,714
Changes from financing BMERESREAMEE
cash flows b2k (15,527) (62,637) (22,500)
New leases g 6,982 - -
Foreign exchange realignment N % - 1,468 =
Interest expense (note 8) FEFZ (H5E8) 3,507 9,905 4,652
Covid-19-related rent KB HHEARFEA
concessions from lessors THEBE SRR (520) = =
Interest paid classified as ENMESER
operating cash flows KRB (3,507) = =
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A 31 H 38,226 79,271 67,866
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38.

39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

1 755 s B

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

37. REBRERERMTE #)

() MERESHRLAZE
AR RERNNEERS RN E

statement of cash flows is as follows: RN
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBTF T
Within operating activities KRN 7,035 1,518
Within financing activities BEEBA 10,068 15,527
17,103 17,045

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

38. RERE

HE2021F 128318 "EBITHEE A
SREE (20204 : &) o

39. EREKIE
MRS R - ANEEE A TEAAE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204
128318 12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB‘000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Contracted, but not provided for: EETA) - B ARFTIRRE -
Acquisition of property and equipment WML RENEEMEREE

and leasehold improvements

906 538
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(a)

214

Related party transaction

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the Group had the following related parties’
transactions during the year:

A director of a subsidiary of the Company provided a
corporate guarantee in respect of certain bank loans
granted to the Group of up to RMB4,606,000 (2020:
RMB7,750,000) at nil consideration as at 31 December
2021 (note 30).

Outstanding balances with a related party

The amount due to a director of a subsidiary of the
Company of RMB53,000,000 as at the end of the
reporting period. This balance is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Compensation to key management
personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel during
the year was as follows:

40. BEE S R 5 R A=tk

(a)

BB RS
M BHREREREEIN  AEER

FRBEUTEBAIRS

ARR—RHEBRARNESRH2021F
12A31BEER TASEMNE TIRT
BERE% AR 4,606,000 7T (2020 4F
AR %57,750,000 7T ) FR 4 1b S 4R AR (Y
F£30) °

ERBARE TS o RIE B LSRR

RBERRENARE —FHHER R
& =508 A KR #53,000,0007T © #% #&
SR EEA - oS AEETEEFPR -

BTEEEEABNIE

FRATIZEEABNFMAOT

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®MTRE ARETE

Short-term employee benefits 72 BiE B 1E A 13,019 14,035
Post-employment benefits 53 g 132 49
13,151 14,084

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by reference to the performance of
individuals and market trend.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. €@ T B (3R¥E5R)
LEFE BT ANESRMERMEL T -

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

31 December 2021 2021%12H31H

Financial assets TREE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at  at fair value
amortised through
cost profit or loss Total
RS A RAYE
ATEHN FFABRSN
TREE TREE st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT AR®BTR AR®BTR
Trade receivables (note 24) B 5 e kA (i 5k 24) 410,513 - 410,513
Financial assets at fair value through & AF{EzH ATBZER
profit or loss (note 26) REE (FTEE26) - 13,326 13,326
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) IR& NMIR&EEY (K15E27) 436,464 - 436,464
Financial assets included in FTATERFIEREM
prepayments and other EUFIENERMEE
receivables (note 25) (BftzE25) 402,648 - 402,648
Long-term deposits RHEIFER 2,435 - 2,435
1,252,060 13,326 1,265,386
Financial liabilities sREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
REHR A
STE/
sRIBE st
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTR
Financial liabilities included in other FTAEMENFIERETERN
payables and accruals (note 29) TR A (FEE29) 592,054 592,054
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEERIT M A A E R (M5 30)
borrowings (note 30) 68,777 68,777
Other long-term payables Hth R BAE N 3RIE 57,953 57,953
Trade payables (note 28) B SRR (M5E 28) 96,392 96,392
815,176 815,176

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3
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31 December 2021 2021412 A 31 H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. €®m T B (IR¥ER|) (&)

(Continued)
31 December 2020 2020 12 A 31 H
Financial assets EREE
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
amortised through
cost  profit or loss Total
R SH A AR BATE
ER FTABERA
TRIEE TRIEE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARETT ARETIT
Trade receivables (note 24) B 5 W GRIE (5t 24) 374,202 = 374,202
Financial assets at fair value through 12 A F(EzF ABZEH
profit or loss (note 26) SRVEE (Mf:E26) = 15,008 15,008
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) 3R 4 RIRSZEY (Mi:E27) 495,773 = 495,773
Financial assets included in ST AFE R FRIE K E A
prepayments and other FEREIB S & E
receivables (note 25) (B£E25) 237,376 = 237,376
Long-term deposits RHEAFER 4,657 - 4,657
1,112,008 15,008 1,127,016
Financial liabilities cHaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
LB SHR AR
STER
TRIBE st
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETTT
Financial liabilities included in other = AE b fE AR08 N BT B R A
payables and accruals (note 29) TR A& (FEE29) 662,352 662,352
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERTT M A A AR (M5 30)
borrowings (note 30) 117,497 117,497
Other long-term payables EAth R EAFE T 5RIE 18,589 18,589
Trade payables (note 28) E 5 e kA (955 28) 72,357 72,357

870,795 870,795
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31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42 €@TEMNAFERLAFEER
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial REEEEAFEAERBEEN SR I AN
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that NEBE SR TENERERAFEENT :

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AYVE
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 F 2020 20215 2020

RMB'000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETL

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BATHEG ABRZ

through profit or loss TREE 13,326 15,008 13,326 15,008
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Interest-bearing bank and AT RRITREMER

other borrowings 44,950 58,200 45,187 58,459
Other long-term payables H i R HAEN B - 18,589 - 18,497
Amounts due to non-controlling AR YNGE e

equity holders of subsidiaries BAEANFAE - 49,277 - 49,034

44,950 126,066 45,187 125,990

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EEELIGHIRSRESEEY  BHEK
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial B BHFENMNEIE S ATFENZRIE - Hib
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other EWFERHEMEEN SR EE KT AEM
assets, and financial liabilities included in other payables and ENREREAERANSREBEEFZNE
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to HEAE  TEHNZET A SR
the short term maturities of these instruments. )

7
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. ¢BTEWNAFERAFEESR

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to directors
and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss was based on the expected return rate.

The fair values of lease liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’'s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and other long-term payables as at 31 December
2021 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss have been calculated using Monte Carlo simulation with
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating rates,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the fact
that these borrowings are made between the Group and
independent third-party financial institutions based on
prevailing market interest rates.

2 'I 8 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Except for the fixed rate portion of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, and other long-term payables,
management has also assessed that the fair values of the

Group's other financial instruments approximate to their

carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of

these instruments.

Below is a summary of the significant unobservable input to

the valuation of financial instruments together with a

guantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 20214 12 A 31 H

42. TRTEANRFERRIFEER

(%)

BRat BARTT R EL M A8 R0 Bl E M R B8 0 A I
Hip RHIENRIAS - BEREFEFE @ K
SEEMERMTANRFEARKREEM
- TEARZETANIH A BEEBEM
B o

UTARSmT EGENERTAERE A
EEB BB R R 2021 F X 20209 12 A 31 H
MECBRE DT

2020:
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EERZE BEXTUHEGAEE &E DAY EHBABNSERE
Financial assets at Monte Carlo Discount rate 2021: 14%-15% 1% increase/decrease in discount rate
fair value through simulation (2020: 14%-15%) would result in a decrease/increase
profit or loss method in fair value by RMB140,760
(2020: RMB150,080)/
RMB140,760 (2020: RMB150,080)
BOHEAHARRS FERE B % 20215 : 14%-15%  BEREIEM, WA 1% KEHATE
SREE BRER (2020 : 14%-15%) WD/ HEMARE140,760 7

(20204 : AR¥&150,0807T),/
AR#140,760 7T
(20204 : ARR¥150,0807T)
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42 €@TEMNAFERLAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy NHEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TREAASESRTANATENERE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: F

BAVERENEE
R2021F12A31R

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using

ERNTBENAFETE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERMS  EATERE BEAFTEE
HRE WARE WABE
(5—-F8) (=) (=) wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥ETR AR¥TR AR%T:x
Financial assets at fair value through A BT AEB A
profit or loss SREE - - 13,326 13,326
As at 31 December 2020 202012 H31H
Fair value measurement using
ERATEEND T EE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTG EAAEE EATAER
B RME W ABUR W A\ 2R
(5—FE) (B=RE) (F=E) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Financial assets at fair value through /A AT AEZA
profit or loss CREE - - 15,008 15,008

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. €T EWAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N EER &)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed EEEATFENEE
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTHEN A FETE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERmE  EATBRE EAFUHEE
HRE BAYE BAHE
(%) (B=fE) (B=FE) #st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETFT AR%BTR AR®TR AR%¥Tx

Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITREMER
borrowings - - 45,187 45,187
_ - 45,187 45,187
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A 31 H
Fair value measurement using
ERATBIEN DT EE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME BEAABER ERATAEBE
HHR(E BARE BABE
(5—E) (5=FE) (F=FE) #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and STRIRITREMER
other borrowings = = 58,459 58,459
Other long-term payables HiREfEN IR = = 18,497 18,497
Amounts due to non-controlling FEATHT 2 B IE AR
equity holders of subsidiaries EmiEE AFRIE - - 49,034 49,034

- - 125,990 125,990
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31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. cRiEREEEERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments include financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents,
other payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and other long-term payables.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as financial assets
included in prepayment and other receivables, trade and bills
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank borrowings
set out in note 30.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

43. S RIEMEEBEERBKE @)

FIEER

RER B FAGE R T 5 ) R 2 B R i I 2 2
EI0FTEAEBENRITERER -

TEHBEHEABTLEDTAA LIS
BRETROBRT - AEERBAFE(H
TR EROTE) OBAE -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

B  BREAFE
EA (T &/ (Rd)

RMB’'000

ARETT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A31HLFE 50 (225)
(50) 225

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F 12 A1 BIEFE 50 (290)
(50) 290
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group's businesses are located in Mainland China and
nearly all transactions are conducted in RMB. All of the
Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for those owned by the Company and certain subsidiaries
which are denominated in United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
USD and HKD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

43. S REREEREERBE &)

SIS B

AEBNERBUNTEANM - BETFHRAR
HUAREHET - ARBABEERAEN
ARBGHE  HEAARBRETHEARM
BEEARTTRABTTHERS) ©

TERAFRBEPRRETRATERNEE
AIREE B M AT E E M EBRFTENER
T AEEBRGAMNEB(REREEREE
MR HEZE M) VEURE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
USD/HKD in profit
rate before tax
ERHERT BRBE AT
fE %= 8
EHCFR) i OGEd)
% RMB'000
ARETT
2021 2021 %
If the USD weakens against the RMB HETHAREELS 10% 2
If the USD strengthens against the RMB EETLHARERER] (10%) (2)
If the HKD weakens against the RMB ERTLH AR 10% 878
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB HBTTHARKEER (10%) (878)
2020 20204
If the USD weakens against the RMB BELAARBES 10% 69
If the USD strengthens against the RMB BRI AR SR (10%) 69
If the HKD weakens against the RMB A TTH AR 10% (3,429)
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB BRI ARG (10%) 3,429
Credit risk EERkE

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group. The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term
deposits, trade and bills receivables and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for
the financial guarantee contracts.

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

43. e RIEMEEBEERBE @)

RARE RN FRERE D

TEREINEBEAEEEEIRNEEERR
FrEENRAEERR - I EZUBEHE
B AKIE(BELEERE ZKANLE BN &
BHEMERERIN) - RFERREES DR 2021
F12A31BKX2020F 12 A31 B#EFTHHE -
FrEferAeMmEENRREENRREE
RELHPFMTABNEERR -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 AT H
FEFE 2HEHEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PR 1 PEEL 2 B3 k(47 @t
RMB' 000 RMB’' 000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TR AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR
Trade receivables* B SR - - - 530,069 530,069
Financial assets included in SABRNFUER
prepayments and H o UGB A
other receivables SHEE
— Normal** — T 443,452 - - - 443,452
— Doubtful** — R - - _ _ _
Cash and bank balances Be kRIS 436,464 - - - 436,464
Long-term deposits RRe 2,435 - - - 2,435
882,351 - - 530,069 1,412,420
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

43. S REREEREERBE &)

RARRNFRERE D (@)

(Continued)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 78 HA
EEEE 2HRAEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEER1 PEER 2 REER 3 B Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables* B REWHIER - - - 490,156 490,156
Financial assets included HABENFIER
in prepayments and H fth FE TR IR
other receivables TREE
— Normal** — L@ 268,112 = = = 268,112
— Doubtful** — REE - _ _ N _
Cash and bank balances HE RIBTEE 495,773 = = = 495,773
Long term deposits RHEe 4,657 = = = 4,657
768,542 = = 490,156 1,258,698

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

“doubtful”.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group. The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term
deposits, trade and bills receivables and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables and financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables are
disclosed in note 24 and note 25, respectively, to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Cash flows are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

43. S RIEMEEBEERBKE @)

EERR#)

B RN B P bR ) & 5 I MR KAt A TR
N RIR e B Al R R RO & B B EE P EE AR Y

EERBNE—STEEEES B ERI S
R 24 R M 5E 25 ©

RBE SRR

AEEH B IZR AT BRITREAMERER
EoEBMRBELNTE REREAR

FETYER -

AEBRREBMRBIRC TOERFTRN K
ME R B ERRIHMRNT

On  Lessthan 3to 1to5 Over
demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
BER DHR3MEA 3E128A 1E5F  SHENULE At
31 December 2021 2021F12A31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR AR¥MTR ARBTR AR®TR ARMT:R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t 88471 - 30,185 12,186 12,863 4,004 59,238
Lease liabilities HEAR - 2,517 7,738 3,510 - 13,765
Trade payables BHEMNTE - 96,392 - - - 96,392
Other payables and accruals HEEARER 266,526 325,528 - - - 592,054

EStER

266,526 454,622 19,924 16,373 4,004 761,449

FRIAREEERAF
2021 & 3
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

43

228

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

tREREEBERBEK®)

MREE SRR #)

On Less than 3to 1to5 Over
demand ~ 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
BERk  DSW3EA 3E12EA 1E5% S5EE st
31 December 2020 202012 A31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%®TT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETRT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T S R1T{E = 1,196 76,143 23,036 = 100,375
Lease liabilities HEAR - 7,602 23,370 10,405 = 41,377
Trade payables 2 S ENTIE = 72,357 = = = 72,357
Other payables and accruals H b e TIE R 209,470 422,882 30,000 = = 662,352
st &R

Other long-term payables Hi R AR KB = = = 20,000 = 20,000
209,470 504,037 129,513 53,441 - 896,461

Capital management EXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. TREMREEERERBR @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued) EAREE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEBNEEBEBLREIEER - BELE
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt AEBFERACAZREANEIEFE - &
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, other TEFREAETERITREMER  EMEH
long-term payables less cash and cash equivalents. Capital ENZEFRREREBESEEBY - BASER
includes equity attributable to owners of the parent. The NRER ANELER - RBREHRRNEES
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as BLLEMT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
2021 F 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Interest-bearing bank and other FTRIRTT R E A& (M5 30)
borrowings (note 30) 68,777 117,497
Other long-term payables H b R BAFE T 50IB - 18,589
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RE RIS EEY (436,464) (495,773)
Net debt B HE (367,687) (359,687)
Total equity SRR 983,105 891,426
Gearing ratio BEAGEHLE N/A T iEH N/A 7T~ A

TR e s 229
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  44. &2 T B AR R &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the BREARATNIRE RN BRI R E £
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: m

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 2020
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment ) EY L 3 m
Interest in subsidiaries NERIEENGI oL S 325,881 370,395
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 325,884 370,506
CURRENT ASSETS nEBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIA K B At MR IR 351 451
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 4,565 3,962
Total current assets MBEERE 4,916 4,413
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables and accruals H h fE A< 5RIB M FE 5T & 1,538 1,466
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings B R1T & E b & 5K - 19,952
Total current liabilities mEaEeRE 1,538 21,418
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE(BE) FE 3,378 (17,005)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERREEE 329,262 353,501
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t BR1T & E A {3k - 1,841
Total non-current liabilities FEnEBaEReRE - 1,841
NET ASSETS BEEZFE 329,262 351,660
EQUITY =
Share capital (note 32) A& (B 5E 32) 7,082 7,082
Other reserves H b i# 322,180 344,578
TOTAL EQUITY DB 329,262 351,660
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

45.

46.

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the

A 75 R P 5

31 December 2021 202112 A 31 H

44. KR T BERRE &)

BREARRRREBROB BN RAER

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: R (&)
(Continued)
Note: 5T
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: AARIHEBRBLT
Capital Share
Share  redemption option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
REE BEXEDRE BRERE RitBE #st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®FT AREFT AREFT AR®TT
At 1 January 2020 ®2020%1 A 1R 431,037 48 19,879 (105,815) 345,149
Issue of shares BT 32,684 = = = 32,684
Loss for the year ERNEE = = - (12,721) (12,721)
2020 dividend 2020 5% 8 (20,534) - - - (20,534)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12A31 B K
1 January 2021 2021F1A1RH 443,187 48 19,879 (118,536) 344,578
Loss for the year ENEE = - - (1,066) (1,066)
Transfer of share option reserve upon  REERRRE#R U sk
the forfeiture or expiry 3| EE R R
of share options i = = (19,879) 19,879 =
2021 dividend 2021 R S (21,332) = = - (21,332)
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12A318 421,855 48 - (99,723) 322,180

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 3 to the financial statements. The amount was
transferred to retained profits when the related options
expired after the vesting day.

PLEDGES OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's bank
loans are included in note 30 to the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2022.

BRERERBEDREERTRBRENR
EE(NF B RERMEIBABR D NROE
ABRCRATE — P RE) - EARBBRER R
BRERIME  ZEBRBARFRN -

45, EEEKF

AEBERERITEFRAEROEEFFTER
BT ERRPRE 30 ©

46. BT RAVALE

PHEBRRENR2022F3IANBLESTH
HE R IR RE TS o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M E

For the five years ended 31 December 2021 &% 20214 12 A 31 HIEAEFE

Results 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
E3 2017 5 20184 20194 2020 2021 %
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)  (RMB'000) (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)
(AEETT) (ARETRT) (ARETR) (ARETRT) (AR%TX)
Revenue ey 977,552 1,023,011 1,519,482 1752317 1,873,533
Cost of sales SHEKAR (680,715) (740906)  (1,116041)  (1,310,676)  (1,440,794)
Gross profit E] 296,837 282,105 403,441 441,641 432,739
Other income and gains Hi A Rz 20,617 30,809 33,844 54,909 51,088
Selling and marketing expenses HERGHERY (6,394) (5,539) (13,455) (12,580) (12,361)
Administrative expenses THES (115,121) (151,065) (192,296) (238,401) (227,316)
Net impairment losses (recognised)/  (F&:R),/ BBl & B E E
reversal on financial assets AR R T8 (29,472) 1,672 (26,763) (22,837) 32,307
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE AT FH R EHE
Joint Ventures AL E 2,645 2,895 1,438 2,595 2,824
Associates NG| (111 @) 466 211 1,194
Other expenses HiEy (10,282) (1,641) (10,195) (4,855) (18,600
Finance costs BTSN (9,512) (1,833) (21,501) (18,064) (6,378)
Profit before tax BREA AT A 149,207 157,399 174,979 202,619 190,883
Income tax expenses FERREY (49,919) (50,449) (41,059) (51,839) (58,844)
Profit for the year FEEFE 99,288 106,950 133,920 150,780 132,039
Assets and liabilities 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
BEREE 2017 4 20184 2019 2020 4 2021 %
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)  (RMB'000) (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)
(AEETT) (ARETRT) (ARETR) (ARETRT) (AR%TX)
Non-current assets EREEE 448,519 519,681 751,724 869,159 775,187
Current assets TEEE 787,852 821,538 1,142,902 1200373 1,412,296
Total assets WAE 1,236,371 1,341,219 1,894,626 2069532 2,187,483
Current liabilities MEAE 561,642 649,974 1,019,211 1,101,163 1,106,323
Non-current liabilities EREHEE 128,036 85,295 137,490 76,943 98,055
Total liabilities BEE 689,678 735,269 1,156,701 1178106 1,204,378
Net assets EEZE 546,693 605,950 737,925 891,426 983,105
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